EDGAROnline

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/14/14 for the Period Ending 12/31/13

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

3020 CALLAN ROAD

SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

8584580900

0001095981

CYTX

3841 - Surgical and Medical Instruments and Apparatus
Medical Equipment & Supplies

Healthcare

12/31

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2015, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com
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OR
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PART |

Iltem 1. Business

References t“Cytori,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Cytori Ther apeutics, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiariesfelRences to “Notes” refer
to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeanthided herein (refer to Item 8).

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains certain statements that magdemed “forward-looking statements” within the migg of U.S. securities laws. All
statements, other than statements of historicdl| that address activities, events or developmereswe intend, expect, project, believe or
anticipate and similar expressions or future coiudial verbs such as will, should, would, could aynoccur in the future are forward-looking
statements. Such statements are based upon cagsimptions and assessments made by our managartight of their experience and the
perception of historical trends, current conditipespected future developments and other facteng bielieve to be appropriat

These statements include, without limitation, steets about our anticipated expenditures, includivase related to clinical research studies
and general and administrative expenses; the piatiesize of the market for our products, futurevelepment and/or expansion of our prod
and therapies in our markets, our ability to gertergproduct revenues or effectively manage ourgpwsfit margins; our ability to obtain
regulatory clearance; expectations as to our futpegformance; the “Liquidity and Capital Resourcesgction of this report, including our
potential need for additional financing and the #afility thereof; and the potential enhancemenbaf cash position through developme
marketing, and licensing arrangements. Our acteallts will likely differ, perhaps materially,dim those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of various factorsluding: our need and ability to raise additiorzdsh, our joint ventures, risks associated
with laws or regulatory requirements applicableu® market conditions, product performance, pagtfitigation, and competition within the
regenerative medicine field, to name a few. Thedod-looking statements included in this report aubject to a number of additional
material risks and uncertainties, including but tiatited to the risks described under the “Risk feas” in Item 1A of Part | above, which we
encourage you to read carefully.

We encourage you to read the risks described utRisk Factors” carefully. We caution you not toagk undue reliance on the forward-
looking statements contained in this report. Thetatements, like all statements in this reporgasponly as of the date of this report (unles
earlier date is indicated) and we undertake no gdition to update or revise the statements excemasred by law. Such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performamckeactual results will likely differ, perhaps ragaally, from those suggested by such
forward-looking statements.

General

Cytori (NASDAQ: CYTX) develops cell therapies unéy optimized and formulated for specific therapeapplications, with a core
focus on cardiovascular disease, thermal burn#ret soft tissue injuries. Cytori Cell Therapyitreatment utilizing a mixed population of
adult stem and regenerative cells from fat tis®\BRC’s) that are extracted using our innovative praprietary Celution@ystem technolog
Our Celution® System technology automates the cermptocess of digesting fat tissue, releasing th&8s, and concentrating them into an
optimized and proprietary formulation in a steglevironment. The system is comprised of a centralog and single-use, per-procedure
consumable cartridges. The business model is laséte sale of the device and generating recuramgnue from the cartridges that are
utilized in each procedure.

In the U.S. our goal is to bring Cytori Cell Theyap market for treatment of heart failure duestchiemic heart disease through Cytori-
sponsored clinical development efforts and to dgvel treatment for thermal burns combined withatdin injury under a contract from
BARDA, a division of the U.S. Department of Headthd Human Services.

In addition to our targeted therapeutic developmesthave continued to commercialize the Celuti@y®tem under select medical dey
clearances to research customers developing neapingtic applications for Cytori Cell Therapy inrBpe, Japan, and other regions. The earl
sales of systems, consumables and ancillary preduacttributes margins that partially offset ourrgpieg expenses and play an important
strategic role in fostering familiarity within theedical community with our technology. These salege also facilitated the discovery of new
applications for Cytori Cell Therapy by customeosducting investigator-initiated and funded reskarc
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Cardiovascular Disease

Cardiovascular disease is the most advanced thdiaggplication of Cytori Cell Therapy in clinicdevelopment. In 2013, we further
refined our therapeutic focus to concentrate effort our U.S. ATHENA trial for patients with hefatlure due to ischemic heart disease.

ATHENA is a FDA approved, multi-center, randomizédduble blind, placebo controlled, safety and feitisi trial utilizing Cytori Cell
Therapy in ischemic heart failure patients. Thal id expected to enroll up to 45 patients at egjfies in the United States. Enrollment in the
ATHENA trial is ongoing and we expect to reportiali results from the study approximately 8 mordfter the last patient is treated. In 2013,
we received approval from the FDA for ATHENA Il $tudy a higher dose in the same population of petieATHENA 11 will enroll an
additional 45 patients at ten trial sites. Enroliingt two new trial centers will start in the fitslf of 2014; enrollment will begin at the eight
ATHENA trial centers immediately following completi of ATHENA enroliment. We anticipate full datafn both ATHENA and ATHENA
II'in 2015.

ADVANCE is our European clinical trial for acute opardial infarction (heart attack). As part of aqwehensive evaluation of our global
cardiovascular strategy, resource utilization agdetbpment priorities, we determined to discontitheeADVANCE trial as of September 30,
2013. All evidence to date supports the currempwmsafety profile for Cytori’'s Cell Therapy ancdetpatients enrolled in the trial will continue
to be followed according to the protocol. The ontes will be fully analyzed in conjunction with thgisting safety and feasibility data from
the APOLLO acute myocardial infarction trial. Wdélocus our internal and financial resources ba highest clinical development priority,
which is the expanded U.S. ATHENA trial.

Previously, the Company established clinical prastoncept for the treatment of damaged heart meussing Cytoris Cell Therapy base
on the outcomes from two European pilot studieshénPRECISE trial, in patients with ischemic hdaiftre, primary sixmonth outcomes ar
longer-term 18-month data demonstrated safety as@isied improvement in cardiac functional capaagtyneasured by VEMax. In the
APOLLO trial, in patients suffering from acute hieatacks, 18-month data demonstrated safety astdised improvement in infarct size and
perfusion.

In addition to the Company-sponsored clinical wonkthe ATHENA trial, Cytori Cell Therapy is availalon a limited commercial basis
for vascular conditions in the EU. On February 2B 3 we received CE Mark approval in Europe fordwase®, a reagent designed to be use
with Cytori’s Celution® System for preparing safedeoptimized adipose-derived stem and regeneraéile (ADRCs) for intravascular
delivery into the same patient. Intravase® is alsteGMP-grade secondary reagent and is currently beinginseoth our U.S. ATHENA trial
in patients with heart failure due to ischemic helisease patients.

While this approval is for a general use claim antlindicated for any specific therapy, the appt@rables physicians to utilize Cytori's
Cell Therapy for a wide range of applications whichuld include acute heart attack, refractory hdisease including chronic myocardial
ischemia, peripheral vascular disease, stroker, &imd kidney applications among others to the éxdeoh applications may require cells to be
delivered into the bloodstream. In 2013, we befarprocess of initiating a European registry paogto track heart disease patients treated
with Cytori Cell Therapy. In the future we interagursue specific vascular disease therapeutications such as heart failure to ischemic
heart disease, no option chronic myocardial ischeand acute heart attack, among other indications.

Soft Tissue Injuries

In addition to our cardiovascular disease therapgipeline, Cytori is also developing its cell thpy platform for the treatment of thermal
burns combined with radiation injury. In the thgdarter of 2012, we were awarded a contract toldpwenew countermeasure for thermal
burns valued at up to $106 million with the U.SpBement of Health and Human Service’s Biomediadv@nced Research and Development
Authority (BARDA). The initial base period includ&g.7 million over two years and covers preclinieearch and continued development of
Cytori's Celution® System to improve cell procesggifithe additional contract options, if fully exeedt could cover our clinical development
through FDA approval under a device-based PMA i@guy pathway.

The cost-plus-fixed-fee contract is valued at u2066 million, with a guaranteed two-year basequkaf approximately $4.7 million
which includes preclinical research and the acaster of Cytori’s ongoing development of the Cadut® System. Cytori submitted reports to
BARDA in late 2013 detailing what we believe tothe completion of the three objectives in the atitiontract. Cytori will undergo an In-
Process Review Meeting in the first half of 2014énfirm completion of the proof of concept phase.
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Upon satisfactory proof of concept, BARDA may elecexercise contract options which would extereldbntract term to up to five years
if all options are exercised. The options covgrrgsearch and development, regulatory, cliniaad, @her tasks required for completion of a
pilot clinical trial of the Celution® System; (iiesearch and development, regulatory, and climictbities necessary to achieve regulatory
clearances to optimize a treatment for combinadryninvolving thermal burn and radiation exposund &iii) a pivotal clinical trial for FDA
approval of the use of the Celution® System forrthed burn injury. The total award is intended tpgort all clinical, preclinical, regulatory,
and technology development activities needed topteim the FDA approval process for use in thermiah linjury under a device-based PMA
regulatory pathway.

While BARDA is our primary soft tissue focus, inrflga2014 we announced that we had received Invastigal Device Exemption (IDE)
approval from the FDA to begin a new U.S. clinit@l for hamstring injury. RECOVER is a prospeetisafety and feasibility trial that will
initially enroll ten patients. Once the safety dedsibility of administering Cytori Cell Therapysbeen confirmed in the first ten patients,
RECOVER is approved to be expanded to a 60-patiemntj-center, double-blind, placebo-controlledltriWe are also in the process of
initiating European registry programs for a rangeatt tissue injuries, including hamstring injuamd Sclerodactyly due to Scleroderma.

Sales & Marketing

Japan

A significant contributor to Cytori’s product reves historically and throughout 2013 has been sal@apan. In September 2012, we
obtained a full commercial operational licenseGgtori Therapeutics, K.K. (our wholly owned subsidgi in Japan) and a Class | Medical
Device Clearance for our Celution® and Puregrafti®dul technologies in Japan. These achievemenggeeted to facilitate our sales growth
in Japan on a forward looking basis. We have dstad partnerships with a number of medical diatabs which should expand our reach anc
penetration into this critical medical market.

In addition to the new clearances and distribugiartnerships in Japan, we expect to continue te damand from researchers at acad:
hospitals seeking to perform investigator-initiatedi funded studies using Cytori Cell Therapy. Erssdies continue to drive strategic value
for Cytori through the investigator relationshipattare built, clinical data that is compiled ahd global visibility generated. Our academic
research customers are investigating a broad afragplications including stress urinary incontioenwound healing, fistula repair, burn,
facial wasting, liver insufficiency, radiation imyy bone regeneration, kidney disease, spinalidjscy, periodontal disease, vocal cord
paralysis and peripheral vascular disease. Coliggtithey contribute to maintaining Cytori's pasit as one of the world’s leaders in cell
therapy.

Other Sales

Cytori offers its Celution® System in Europe for ltiple indications. In Europe, the Celution® 800s8m has CE Mark approval for
certain soft tissue procedures, such as breaststoation, tissue ischemia, deficiency or injufyskin, fat, muscle and fascia, and soft tissue
wounds or fistulae associated with trauma, diabétebemia or radiation injury. With the additiohtbe Intravase® reagent, customers may
now use the Cytori’s Celution® System for prepasiafe and optimized adipose derived regeneratile (ADRC") for intravascular
delivery into the same patient. Our European custsrimclude hospitals and clinics as well as reteas performing investigator-initiated and
funded studies.

We currently market our StemSource® Cell & TissamlEng line to hospitals, clinics, tissue banks] atem cell banking companies
worldwide. The line encompasses three product garditions that are available on a regionally spebisis: ADRC banking, ADRC and
adipose tissue banking, or tissue banking alonemaidket StemSource® Banks worldwide through a coativn of distributors and direct
sales. We remain responsible for manufacturingsmuicing all necessary equipment, including butingted to cryopreservation chambers,
cooling and thawing devices, cell banking protoeoid the proprietary software and database apiolicat

In July 2013, Cytori divested its Puregraft® lifgpooducts in a $15 million agreement, includin§zamillion up-front cash payment and
up to an additional $10 million in commercial milese payments. In addition, Bimini Technologies weanted a license for exclusive
worldwide rights to develop and sell the CelutioBg@stem for Alopecia (hair loss) in exchange foegptual royalty on sales.

Refer to Note 2 for a discussion of geographicakemtration of sales.
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Manufacturing and Raw Materials

With the exception of some of our Puregraft® Sysproducts and ancillary supplies, our productscareently manufactured at the
Company'’s headquarters in San Diego, CA. Our manurfimg capabilities are expected to enable usdsetranticipated demand in 2014. We
are, and the manufacturer of any future therapgutiducts would be, subject to periodic inspechgnegulatory authorities and distribution
partners. The manufacturer of devices and prodactsuman use is subject to regulation and inspadtiom time to time by the FDA for
compliance with the FDA’s Quality System RegulationQSR, requirements, as well as equivalent reqents and inspections by state and
non-U.S. regulatory authorities.

Most of the raw materials required to manufacthee@elution @System family of products are commonly availabterfrmultiple source:
and we have identified and executed supply agretsweéth our preferred vendors. Some specialty camepts are custom made for us, and w
are dependent on the ability of these suppliedetiver functioning parts or materials in a timehgnner to meet the ongoing demand for our
products. There can be no assurance that we wabhleto obtain adequate quantities of the necgsaar materials supplies within a
reasonable time or at commercially reasonable gricgerruptions in supplies due to price, timiagavailability or other issues with our
suppliers could have a negative impact on ourtgti manufacture products.

Competition

The field of regenerative medicine is expandingdigpin large part through the development of -drlked therapies and/or devices
designed to isolate cells from human tissues. Adi#id grows, we face, and will continue to faicereased competition from pharmaceutical,
biopharmaceutical, medical device and biotechnolagypanies, as well as academic and researctuiittis and governmental agencies in
United States and abroad. Most regenerative meadefiiorts involve sourcing adult stem and regemeratells from tissues such as bone
marrow, placental tissue, umbilical cord and pegiphblood, and skeletal muscle. However, a growimgnber of companies are using adipose
tissue as a cell source. We exclusively use adipssge as a source of adult stem and regeneiclise

With the growing number of companies working in tedl therapy field, we are forced to compete ass®s/eral areas, including equity
and capital, clinical trial sites, enrollment oftipats in clinical trials, corporate partnershigiilled and experience personnel and commercial
market share. Some of our competitors and potectialpetitors have substantially greater finan¢g&dhnological, research and development,
marketing, and personnel resources than we do.afieat with any accuracy forecast when or if thesapganies are likely to bring cell
therapies to market for indications such as refrgdbeart failure, acute myocardial infarction, dhdrmal burns which we are also pursuing.

Companies researching and developing cell-basedpiss for our lead indication, cardiovascular dése include, among others Aastrom
Biosciences, Arteriocyte, Athersys, Baxter, Capri€ardio3, Cytomedix, Juventas, Medistem, MesabMsoStem, Tissue Genesis and
Tigenix NV. These companies are in various stade$iracal development in the U.S. and Europe, Btigating their respective cell therapies
for acute myocardial infarction (heart attack),artic myocardial ischemia or other forms of coronamgry disease, as well as certain vascula
conditions. In addition, we are aware of severasons who are performing autologous fat transisisg manual methods, some of whom
enrich the fat with autologous adipose-derivedscell

We expect to compete based on, among other thimg®fficacy of our products, our intellectual pedy, and our continued ability to
attract and retain skilled and experienced scientfinical development and executive personnat tan bring adipose derived stem and
regenerative based cell therapies to market.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses were $17,06518628,000 and $10,904,000 for the years endeérieer 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. These expenses have suppbedihsic research, product development and cliatavities necessary to bring our
products to market.
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Our research and development efforts in 2013 fatpsedominantly on the following areas:
»  Supported enrollment in the ATHENA and ATHENA lidis;
«  Supported regulatory application for CE Mark foe thtravas¢® reagent for vascular deliver
«  Supported ongoing work towards BARDA base contnaitéstones
« Continued patient follo-up and data analysis from the APOLLO heart attackRRECISE n-option chronic myocardial ischemia tria
»  Supported FDA submission and approval, and sit@aiitn, for the RECOVER tria

« Prepared and submitted multiple regulatory filingthe United States, Europe, Japan, and otheomegelated to various cell and tissue
processing systems under developm

« As part of our contractual obligations with Bimingmpleted development and released small-volumdugt line extension for the
Puregrai® family of products for autologous fat transf

« Developed new configurations and expanded funclitynaf our Celution® platform to address the Japan Class | and otheketsa
« Conducted ADRC viability and transport studiesuport of clinical trial requirement

«  Conducted, presented, and published researcheffdeated to ADRC characterization and potencwitthér establish scientific leadership
in the field; anc

«  Continued to optimize and develop the Celufi@®ystem family of products and next-generation deyjisingle-use consumables and
related instrumentatiol

Customers

In Japan, we are establishing a network of distoitsuto leverage our new clearances in that couryr current customers in Japan
consist primarily of researchers at academic halsgp#nd clinics. We also have a network of distdbs who offer our Celution® Systems,
instrumentation and consumables to surgeons armitalssthroughout Europe. These distributors pusetthe products from Cytori at a
contractually agreed-upon transfer price. We aladket our Celution® System directly to customersatect countries within Europe. In
addition, we offer the StemSource® 900/MB as redetaboratory equipment or as part of the StemS®i€ell Bank (a comprehensive suite
of products to allow hospitals or tissue banksrimpreserve adiposgerived stem and regenerative cells) directly stamers. In parts of As
and India, we sell the Celution8ystem directly to customers, many of whom are ewwde hospitals, who are sponsoring and funding then
independent, investigator-led clinical studies ggime product. Through our new partnership witheoorVascular, we intend to substantially
increase our commercialization and sales effort€flution® and StemSource® products in China, HEogg, Malaysia, Singapore and
Australia. The StemSource ® adipose-only tissudsdane sold directly to customers in the Unitedeita

Intellectual Property

Our success depends in large part on our abilipratect our proprietary technology, including ®elution® System product platform,
and to operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of third parties. We rely on a combinatmfrpatent, trade secret, copyright and
trademark laws, as well as confidentiality agreetsditensing agreements and other agreementstdblish and protect our proprietary rights
Our success also depends, in part, on our abdligwbid infringing patents issued to others. Ifwere judicially determined to be infringing on
any third party patent, we could be required to gamages, alter our products or processes, olitaimsks or cease certain activities.
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To protect our proprietary medical technologies|uding the Celution® System platform and otheestfic discoveries, Cytori has 65
issued patents worldwide. We have 18 issued UiBnfaand 47 issued international patents. Of $hisdued U.S. patents, 5 were issued in
2012 and 1 was issued in 2013. Of the 47 issutednational patents, 10 were issued in 2012 andB)13. In addition, we have over 85
patent applications pending worldwide related toteahnology. We are seeking additional patentmethods and systems for processing
adipose-derived stem and regenerative cells, ondbef adipose-derived stem and regenerative foells variety of therapeutic indications,
including their mechanisms of actions, on composgiof matter that include adipose-derived stemragdnerative cells, and on other
scientific discoveries. We are also the exclusiverldwide licensee of the Regents of the Universitgalifornia’s rights to a portfolio related
to isolated adipose derived stem cells, which idetuone US patent and twelve foreign patents.

We cannot assure that any of our pending patericatipns will be issued, that we will develop atitatial proprietary products that are
patentable, that any patents issued to us willigeus with competitive advantages or will not balienged by any third parties or that the
patents of others will not prevent the commercadian of products incorporating our technology.tRermore, we cannot assure that others
not independently develop similar products, dupdicny of our products or design around our patéhs. patent applications are not
immediately made public, so we might be surprisgthle grant to someone else of a patent on a témiave are actively using.

There is a risk that any patent applications thafile and any patents that we hold or later obtainld be challenged by third parties and
declared invalid or infringing of third party clagmA patent interference proceeding may be institutith the U.S. Patent and Trademark
Office (the “USPTO")when more than one person files a patent applicaiwering the same technology, or if someone wisbehallenge tt
validity of an issued patent. At the completiorttod interference proceeding, the USPTO will deteemwhich competing applicant is entitled
to the patent, or whether an issued patent is vBident interference proceedings are complexyhigintested legal proceedings, and the
USPTO'’s decision is subject to appeal. This mehasit an interference proceeding arises with resfmeany of our patent applications, we
may experience significant expenses and delaytamimuhg a patent, and if the outcome of the protegs unfavorable to us, the patent could
be issued to a competitor rather than to us. litiaddo interference proceedings, the USPTO camamine issued patents at the request of a
third party seeking to have the patent invalidafdtipatents are subject to requests for reexanundiy third parties. This means that patents
owned or licensed by us may be subject to reexaimimand may be lost, or some or all claims mayi@gamendment or cancellation, if the
outcome of the reexamination is unfavorable tdRaent reexamination proceedings are long and eagbceedings and could result in a
reduction or loss of patent rights.

Patent law outside the United States is uncertaihimmany countries is currently undergoing revawd revisions. The laws of some
countries may not protect our proprietary rightsht® same extent as the laws of the United Statesd parties may attempt to oppose the
issuance of patents to us in foreign countriemiiiating opposition proceedings. Opposition pratiegs against any of our patent filings in a
foreign country could have an adverse effect oncouresponding patents that are issued or pendititgi U.S. It may be necessary or usefu
us to participate in proceedings to determine iy of our patents or our competitors’ patettitst have been issued in countries other thar
the United States. This could result in substawtiats, divert our efforts and attention from otaspects of our business, and could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatamd financial condition. We currently have pegdiatent applications and issued patents in
Europe, Brazil, Mexico, India, Russia, Australiapdn, Canada, China, Korea, and Singapore, ambegsot

In addition to patent protection, we rely on unpédd trade secrets and proprietary technologigadtise. We cannot assure you that
others will not independently develop or othervasguire substantially equivalent techniques, sowedein access to our trade secrets and
proprietary technological expertise or disclosehsimade secrets, or that we can ultimately pratectrights to such unpatented trade secret:
proprietary technological expertise. We rely, imtpan confidentiality agreements with our markgtpartners, employees, advisors, vendors
and consultants to protect our trade secrets avptiptary technological expertise. We cannot asgatethat these agreements will not be
breached, that we will have adequate remediesnfpbeeach or that our unpatented trade secretprpiietary technological expertise will |
otherwise become known or be independently disaavby competitors.

Government Regulation

As medical devices that yield cells with therapepttential, our products must receive regulatéepmances or approvals from the
European Union, the FDA and, from other applicajdeernments prior to their sale. Our current aridriuCelution® Systems are or will be
subject to stringent government regulation in timitéd States by the FDA under the Federal Foodgand Cosmetic Act. The FDA regulates
the design/development process, clinical testirgpufacture, safety, labeling, sale, distributiomy paromotion of medical devices and drugs.
Included among these regulations are pre-markatahee and pre-market approval requirements, desiginol requirements, and the Quality
System Regulations/Good Manufacturing PracticeBeOdtatutory and regulatory requirements govermray other things, registration and
inspection, medical device listing, prohibitionsaagst misbranding and adulteration, labeling anstipearket reporting.
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The Celution® System family of products must alemply with the government regulations of each ifdlial country in which the
products are to be distributed and sold. Thesda#guos vary in complexity and can be as stringantl on occasion even more stringent, than
FDA regulations in the United States. Internatiag@mlernment regulations vary from country to coyiatnd region to region. For example,
regulations in some parts of the world only reqpireduct registration while other regions/countrieguire a complex product approval
process. Due to the fact that there are new andgémgecell therapy and cell banking regulationd tieve recently been drafted and/or
implemented in various countries around the wdHd,application and subsequent implementationede¢mew and emerging regulations have
little to no precedence. Therefore, the level ahptexity and stringency is not always preciselyenstbod today for each country, creating
greater uncertainty for the international regukatarocess. Furthermore, government regulationschange with little to no notice and may
result in up-regulation of our product(s), theretngating a greater regulatory burden for our padcessing and cell banking technology
products.

Worldwide, the regulatory process can be lengtkgeasive, and uncertain with no guarantee of agr@efore any new medical device
may be introduced to the U.S. market, the manufacggenerally must obtain FDA clearance or apprévaugh either the 510(k) pre-market
notification process or the lengthier pre-markgirapal application (PMA) process, which requirdgichl trials to generate clinical data
supportive of safety and efficacy. Approval of a RRbuld take four or more years from the time thecpss is initiated. Our core Celution®
System processing device products under developanergenerally subject to the lengthier PMA prodessnany specific applications. Failt
to comply with applicable requirements can resulipplication integrity proceedings, fines, recaliseizures of products, injunctions, civil
penalties, total or partial suspensions of productivithdrawals of existing product approvals @achnces, refusals to approve or clear new
applications or notifications, and criminal prosgéa.

Specifically, regulation of the Celution® SystenHaorope and the U.S. for use in cardiovascularadiseequires that we conduct clinical
trials to collect safety and efficacy data to suppearketing approvals. We have completed a ptladysin Europe for acute myocardial
infarction. We completed a pilot study for chromgocardial ischemia in Europe and based on theatataeeking a limited approval in
Europe. In the U.S., we are currently enrolling AGHENA trial for refractory heart failure undereldevice regulations via the PMA pathw
The ATHENA trial will enroll up to 45 patients aight U.S. trial sites.

Summary of Celution ® System Family Regulatory Status

Region Clinical Applications Regulatory Status
Japan Cell Banking Approved
Celution® Centrifuge, Celbrush, Puregraft Bag asldc Class | Notification
components.
Celution® 800 and Celution One: Cell Processingrée CE Mark

implantation or re-infusion into same patient (Gah@rocessing)

Celution® 800 and Celution One: Breast reconstonctiealing of |CE Mark
Crohn’s wounds and other cosmetic procedures

Europe Celution® 800: Cryptoglandular fistula, tissue isptia and other |CE Mark
soft tissue procedures
Intravase® for use with Celution® 800 CE Mark (obtained February 2013)
Cell Concentration CE Mark
Celution® One cosmetic and reconstructive surgkaiyns CE Mark
uU.S. Refractory Heart Failure ATHENA and ATHENA Il IDE trial underway
Hamstring Injury RECOVER IDE trial

Australia Celution 800 Cell Processing for re-implantatiomesinfusion into|l ARTG Certificate
same patient (general/plastic reconstruction), ghafe Instrument

Sets
Croatia Celution 800 Cell Processing for re-implantationmesinfusion into] Approval Certificated from the Croatia Agency for
same patient (general/plastic reconstruction), grafe Medicinal Products and Medical Devices
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New ZealandCelution 800, Puregraft, Instrument Sets WAND Registered

Russia Celution 800 Cell Processing for re-implantatiomesinfusion into|Roszdravnadzor Certificate (Federal Service forttdn
same patient (general/plastic reconstruction), grafe of Healthcare and Social Development)

Serbia Celution 800 Cell Processing for re-implantatiomesinfusion into] ALIMS (Medicines and Medical Devices Agency of
same patient (general/plastic reconstruction), grafe Serbia)

Singapore |Celution 800 Cell Processing for re-implantatiomesinfusion into|lHSA approved, SMDR Registered
same patient (general/plastic reconstruction), grafe

Medical devices are also subject to post-markeintamm requirements for deaths or serious injuwiken the device may have caused or
contributed to the death or serious injury, andcftain device malfunctions that would be likedycause or contribute to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur. If safety effectiveness problems occur after the prode@thes the market, the FDA may take steps
prevent or limit further marketing of the produ&dditionally, the FDA actively enforces regulat®oprohibiting marketing and promotion of
devices for indications or uses that have not lodeared or approved by the FDA. In addition, madifions or enhancements of products that
could affect the safety or effectiveness or eftentajor change in the intended use of a devicenthateither cleared through the 510(k) pro
or approved through the PMA process may requithéur=DA review through new 510(k) or PMA submissio

We must comply with extensive regulations from fgngjurisdictions regarding safety, manufacturimggesses and quality. These
regulations, including the requirements for markgtind authorization may differ from the FDA redatst scheme in the United States.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we had 115 employeesydimaj) part-time and full-time employees. These aygés are comprised of 14
employees in manufacturing, 42 employees in rebeamnd development, 23 employees in sales and niaglatd 36 employees in
management, finance and administration. From tortene, we also employ independent contractosufiport our operations. Our employ
are not represented by any collective bargainingergents and we have never experienced an orgamaidstoppage.

Corporate Information and Web Site Access to SEC HKings

We were initially formed as a California generattparship in July 1996, and incorporated in theeStd Delaware in May 1997. We were
formerly known as MacroPore Biosurgery, Inc., aptbbe that as MacroPore, Inc. Our corporate offareslocated at 3020 Callan Road, San
Diego, CA 92121. Our telephone number is (858)-@880. We maintain an Internet website at www.dytom. Through this site, we make
available free of charge our annual reports on FdAK, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current rigpon Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sectid(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934omsss reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnigttto, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commisgs#tC). In addition, we publish on our
website all reports filed under Section 16(a) &f 8ecurities Exchange Act by our directors, oficamnd 10% stockholders. These materials ar
accessible via the Investor Relations section ofaebsite within the “SEC Filings” link. Some ofglinformation is stored directly on our
website, while other information can be accessesibgcting the provided link to the section on$feC website, which contains filings for our
company and its insiders.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

In analyzing our company, you should consider edhgthe following risk factors together with alf the other information included in tr
Annual Report on Form -K, including our unaudited Consolidated Financ&htements and the related notes and “Managerm&iscussio
and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Result®perations”. If any of the risks described below occur, our hass, operating results, a
financial condition could be adversely affected #ma value of our common stock could decl

Risks Related to Our Business

We will need to raise more cash in the future

We have almost always had negative cash flows fyparations. Our business will continue to resul Bubstantial requirement for
research and development expenses for several geairsg which we may not be able to bring in stiéfint cash and/or revenues to offset thes
expenses. During 2012 and 2013, we expanded oumeocralization activities while simultaneously puirgy available financing sources to
support operations and growth. We have had, andilveontinue to have, an ongoing need to raisetaithl cash from outside sources to
continue funding our operations to profitability o not currently believe that our cash balanckthe revenues from our operations will be
sufficient to fund the development and marketirfgre$ required to reach profitability without raigi additional capital from accessible source
of financing in the future.

In addition, our Loan and Security Agreement witkf@d Finance LLC and Silicon Valley Bank requitgsto maintain certain minimum cash
requirements, including at least three months sha@m hand, to avoid an event of default thereyradwet if our cash reserves fall below those
minimum requirements, then we could be in defanttar the loan agreement and subject to potentiadrad remedies by the lenders, which
would have a substantial and material adversetedfeour business, financial condition, result®pérations, the value of our common stock
and warrants and our ability to raise capital. Weeli e v e our pl a n s to r ais e a dditiorcals h fr om o ut s id e so ur ces a nd if n®ces
ary,ourcostcontainmente ffortsandgfscienttoallowustocontinue opation s forthenexttwelvemonths. $lmc

lud es minimum liquidity r e nuir e ment s o f the@a n and Se c urity Agree mentthatrequirssto makeprincipalandinterest
paymentsof$868,000permonthbrning in August2014and maintain at le s ee month s of cas h on h a nd to avo id an
eve nt of d e fault under th el oa n a gree m.edur plan sinc lud e pur s uing additional€ h thr ough strate giccorp o rate mant

s hip s and possibly engaging in futur e s al £e quity, aswe llasourgross profits .ilwe have anestablis hed historfyas
ing c apitalthroughthes e platforms,amndarecurrentlyinvolvedinn e gotion s with multipl e parties ,thereisgaara
nteethatadequatefundswilbeaehlewhenneededfroma ddition al derk quity financing, developm e ntacod
mmercializatonpartnerships,ineasedresultsofoperations,orfirothersources,orontermsaccebpea ou
s.lfoureffortstoobtainsufficiéadditionalfundsarenotsuccessful.weuldberequiredtodelay,scalelbacre
limnatesomeorallofourresearcthpooductdevelopment, ma nufacturipgea ations, administrative operagomc
ludingouremployeeb ase, and c linica feg ulat o ry ac ti v ities w hi ¢c h co uleerg a tiv e ly a ff ec t our ability t 0o ac hi exe rt a
incorporategoals.

Continued turmoil in the economy could harm ouribess

Negative trends in the general economy, includiagds resulting from an actual or perceived reoessightening credit markets,
increased cost of commaodities, including oil, attrahreatened military action by the United Ssaa@d threats of terrorist attacks in the Ur
States and abroad, could cause a reduction oftimeas in and available funding for companies irtaierindustries, including ours and our
customers. Our ability to raise capital has beehraay in the future be adversely affected by dowrgin current credit conditions, financial
markets and the global economy.

We have never been profitable on an operationas lagl expect significant operating losses fomtbet few years

We have incurred net operating losses in eachsirae we started business. As our focus on thetiGeliSystem platform and
development of therapeutic applications for itdutat output has increased, losses have resultethply from expenses associated with
research and development activities and generahdministrative expenses. While we work continuptslimplement cost reduction
measures where possible, we nonetheless expeattiowe operating in a loss position on a constéid®asis and that recurring operating
expenses will be at high levels for the next sdwezars, in order to perform clinical trials, adolital preelinical research, product developm
and marketing. As a result of our historic losses have been, and are likely to continue to bé&mebn raising outside capital to fund our
operations.
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Our business strateqgy is higisk

We are focusing our resources and efforts primanilydevelopment of the Celuti@r8ystem family of products and the therapeutic
applications of its cellular output, which requiesgensive cash needs for research, developmeahtanmercialization activities. This is a
high-risk strategy because there is no assurat®tin future products will ever become commergiaihible (commercial risk), that we will
prevent other companies from depriving us of masketre and profit margins by selling products basedur inventions and developments
(legal risk), that we will successfully manage anpany in a new area of business (regenerative inedliand on a different scale than we have
operated in the past (operational risk), that wiehei able to achieve the desired therapeutic tesising stem and regenerative cells (scientific
risk), or that our cash resources will be adeqtmtievelop our products until we become profitalileyer (financial risk). We are using our
cash in one of the riskiest industries in the econgstrategic risk). This may make our stock aruitable investment for many investors.

The development and manufacture of current anaduggeneration Celutio® System devices is important to us

We must continue to develop and manufacture batlctinrent and future generation Celutfod®ystem devices. If we are not
successful in further development of the curreit farture generation CelutichSystem devices, we may not be able to compete ssftdly in
the marketplace (technology risk), and if we exgrece disruptions and/or delays in our productiothege devices as required by the
marketplace, our operations and commercializatftorts (clinical, regulatory and/or commercial sgleve would be harmed (manufacturing
risk).

Although we have significant experience in manufént the current CelutiofSystem platform and its consumables at a
commercial level, there can be no guarantee thatil/ee able to successfully develop and manufacfuture generation CelutigiSystems
in a manner that is cost-effective or commercialgble, or that development and manufacturing caitiab might not take much longer than
currently anticipated to be ready for the market.

Although we have been manufacturing the Celuti800 System and the StemSouP@d0-based Cell Bank since 2008, we cannot
assure that we will be able to manufacture sufficrumbers of such products to meet future demamithat we will be able to overcome
unforeseen manufacturing difficulties for this sigilcated equipment.

We have a limited operating history; operating lssand stock price can be volatile like many §fgence companies

Our prospects must be evaluated in light of thesrend difficulties frequently encountered by emmeggompanies and particularly
by such companies in rapidly evolving and techniclaly advanced biotech and medical device fiektem time to time, we have tried to
update our investors’ expectations as to our opegragsults by periodically announcing financialdance. However, we have in the past beer
forced to revise or withdraw such guidance duatd lof visibility and predictability of product demd. Our stock price has a history of
significant volatility, which may harm our abilitp raise additional capital and may cause an invest in Cytori to be unsuitable for some
investors.

We may not be able to correctly estimate or cortumlfuture operating expenses, which could leachih shortfalls

Our budgeted expense levels are based in partroexpectations concerning future revenues fromssadewell our assessment of
future investments needed to expand our commermi@nization and support research and developnotimites. We may be unable to reduce
our expenditures in a timely manner to compengatariy unexpected events or a shortfall in reveAgeordingly, a shortfall in demand for
our products or other unexpected events could havenmediate and material impact on our busineddiaancial condition.

We are vulnerable to competition and technologib@nge, and also to physiciamsertia

We compete with many domestic and foreign companidgveloping our technology and products, inatgdbdiotechnology,
medical device, and pharmaceutical companies. Mamgnt and potential competitors have substaptiattater financial, technological,
research and development, marketing, and persoes@lirces. There is no assurance that our comysetiith not succeed in developing
alternative products that are more effective, edsi@se, or more economical than those which we leveloped or are in the process of
developing, or that would render our products osteohnd non-competitive. In general, we may nailile to prevent others from developing
and marketing competitive products similar to aursvhich perform similar functions.

Competitors may have greater experience in devadpihierapies or devices, conducting clinical trialstaining regulatory
clearances or approvals, manufacturing and comalinaiion. It is possible that competitors may abfzatent protection, approval, or
clearance from the FDA or achieve commercializatiariier than we can, any of which could have astariial negative effect on our busine
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We compete against cell-based therapies deriven éternate sources, such as bone marrow, umbdardl blood and potentially
embryos. Doctors historically are slow to adopt ieghnologies like ours, regardless of the perckierits, when older technologies continue
to be supported by established providers. Overcgmirch inertia often requires very significant nadikg expenditures or definitive product
performance and/or pricing superiority.

We expect physicians’ inertia and skepticism to &ls a significant barrier as we attempt to gainketgoenetration with our future
products. We believe we will continue to need tmafice lengthy time-consuming clinical studies wvjte evidence of the medical benefit of
our products and resulting therapies in order &roeme this inertia and skepticism particularlyanonstructive surgery, cell preservation, the
cardiovascular area and many other indications.

Many potential applications of our technology are@ommercialization, which subjects us to developnagat marketing risks

We are in a relatively early stage of the pathammercialization with many of our products. We bed that our long-term viability
and growth will depend in large part on our abitiydevelop commercial quality cell processing desiand useful procedure-specific
consumables, and to establish the safety and effishour therapies through clinical trials anddséts. With our Celutiof® System platform, w
are pursuing new approaches for therapies for @aadcular disease, burns, soft tissue defectsnsétwtive surgery, preservation of stem anc
regenerative cells for potential future use, afebotonditions. There is no assurance that ougldpment programs will be successfully
completed or that required regulatory clearancesgpprovals will be obtained on a timely basis ik

There is no proven path for commercializing theueh ® System platform in a way to earn a durable prafinmensurate with the
medical benefit. Although we began to commerciatiae reconstructive surgery products in Europe@arthin Asian markets, and our cell
banking products in Japan, Europe, and certainmAsiarkets in 2008, additional market opportunit@smany of our products and/or services
may not materialize for a number of years.

Successful development and market acceptance gfroducts is subject to developmental risks, inicigdailure of inventive
imagination, ineffectiveness, lack of safety, uiatgility, failure to receive necessary regulatolgacances or approvals, high commercial cost,
preclusion or obsolescence resulting from thirdipsirproprietary rights or superior or equivalpnbducts, competition from copycat products
and general economic conditions affecting purchippatterns. There is no assurance that we or atmgra will successfully develop and
commercialize our products, or that our competitaitsnot develop competing technologies that &®slexpensive or superior. Failure to
successfully develop and market our products whakk a substantial negative effect on our res@iléperations and financial condition.

If any party to a key collaboration partnershigsao perform material obligations under our agreets, or any other collaboration agreement,
or if such agreements are terminated for any reasambusiness could significantly suffer

We have entered into collaboration agreements untizh we may receive future payments in the fofrmidestone payments,
maintenance fees and royalties. We are dependamiracollaborators to commercialize our productsdrtain countries in order for us to
realize any financial benefits from these collaltiores. Our collaborators may not devote the atbenéind resources to such efforts to be
successful. In addition, in the event that a ptailg to perform under a key collaboration agreemenif a key collaboration agreement is
terminated, the reduction in anticipated revenwesdcdelay or suspend our product commercializatiorertain countries. Specifically, the
termination of a key collaboration agreement by ofheur collaborators could materially impact obiligdy to enter into additional collaboratir
agreements with new collaborators on favorable $erm

If we or our collaborators fail to comply with rdgtory requirements applicable to promotion, s&leé manufacturing of approved products,
regulatory agencies may take action against ulseant which could significantly harm our business

Any approved products, along with the manufactupnacesses, post-approval clinical data, labekalyertising and promotional
activities for these products, are subject to carai requirements and review by the FDA, statefarglgn regulatory bodies. Regulatory
authorities subject a marketed product, its mariufac and the manufacturing facilities to continteliew and periodic inspections. We, our
collaborators and our respective contractors, segdnd vendors, will be subject to ongoing requiarequirements, including complying
with regulations and laws regarding advertisingnpotion and sales of products, required submissibsafety and other post-market
information and reports, registration requiremeo@MP regulations (including requirements relatiogjuality control and quality assurance,
as well as the corresponding maintenance of re@rdsiocumentation), and the requirements regattimgistribution of samples to
physicians and recordkeeping requirements. Regylatgencies may change existing requirements qutatew requirements or policies. We,
our collaborators and our respective contractangpkers and vendors, may be slow to adapt or neape able to adapt to these changes or
new requirements.
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Failure to comply with regulatory requirements magult in any of the following:

e restrictions on our products or manufacturing psses

e warning letters

« withdrawal of the products from the mark

e voluntary or mandatory reca

+ fines;

e suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approv

e suspension or termination of any of our ongoingicél trials;
» refusal to permit the import or export of our proti

« refusal to approve pending applications or supptem approved applications that we sub
e product seizure

e injunctions; or

e imposition of civil or criminal penaltie:

We must rely on the performance of Lorem Vascubarttie commercialization of our products in ChiHang Kong, Singapore, Malaysia ¢
Australia.

Lorem Vascular is the exclusive licensee for owdpicts in China, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia Australia, and while we
will be strongly supportive to their efforts, thaye responsible for obtaining regulatory approvalarket development and sales in these
countries. Lorem Vascular is also a new companyaanslich will be required to develop the experfisesonnel and relationships in each of
these countries required to successfully marketsaticbur products. We cannot guarantee that Lovastular will make the investments
required to be successful in these countries. WWlaataguarantee that the necessary regulatory aplsroan be obtained, and we cannot
guarantee that our products will be successfui@se markets even if advantageous market regulappmovals are obtained.

Market acceptance of new technology such as ourgealifficult to obtain

New and emerging cell therapy and cell bankingrnettgies, such as those provided by the CelftiBpstem family of products,
may have difficulty or encounter significant delay®btaining market acceptance in some or all téesmaround the world due to the novelty
of our cell therapy and cell banking technologiBserefore, the market adoption of our cell therapg cell banking technologies may be slow
and lengthy with no assurances that significanketadoption will be successful. The lack of maikabdption or reduced or minimal market
adoption of our cell therapy and cell banking tesbgies may have a significant impact on our apilit successfully sell our product(s) into a
country or region.

Future clinical trial results may differ significeynfrom our expectations

While we have proceeded incrementally with ourichhtrials in an effort to gauge the risks of preding with larger and more
expensive trials, such as in our PRECISE chrowmieamic trial in Europe, and our ATHENA | and ATHENWKeasibility trial in heart failure
due to ischemic heart disease, we cannot guartiraewve will not experience negative results igéarand much more expensive clinical trials
than we have conducted to date. Poor results irloucal trials could result in substantial delagcommercialization, substantial negative
effects on the perception of our products, andtsmtial additional costs. These risks are incre&seaur reliance on third parties in the
performance of many of the clinical trial functigirscluding the clinical investigators, hospitasd other third party service providers.

Our product candidates may not receive requlatppya@vals or their development may be delayed feargety of reasons, including
unsuccessful clinical trials, requlatory requiretsesr safety concerns

Clinical testing of our products is a long, expgrsand uncertain process, and the failure or deflayclinical trial can occur at any
stage. Even if initial results of preclinical anohelinical studies or clinical trial results arepiising, we may obtain different results in
subsequent trials or studies that fail to showdtbgired levels of safety and efficacy, or we matyafain applicable regulatory approval for a
variety of other reasons. Clinical trials for arfyoar products could be unsuccessful, which wowkhg or prohibit regulatory approval and
commercialization of the product. In the Unitedt8saand other jurisdictions, regulatory approval ba delayed, limited or not granted for
many reasons, including, among others:
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« clinical results may not meet prescribed enddiot the studies or otherwise provide sufficieatadto support the efficacy of
our products

» clinical and nonclinical test results may reveide effects, adverse events or unexpected safigs associated with the use of
our products

* regulatory review may not find a product safe deetfive enough to merit either continued testindjireal approval;

< regulatory review may not find that the data froragtinical testing and clinical trials justifies @pval;

< regulatory authorities may require that we chamgestudies or conduct additional studies whicly significantly delay or
make continued pursuit of approval commerciallyttraative;

e aregulatory agency may reject our trial datdisagree with our interpretations of either clihicél data or applicable
regulations

» the cost of clinical trials required for prodagiproval may be greater than what we originallycgrdte, and we may decide to
not pursue regulatory approval for such a proc

* aregulatory agency may identify problems or otfeficiencies in our existing manufacturing praessor facilities, or the
existing processes or facilities of our collaborat@ur contract manufacturers or our raw matstabliers;

e aregulatory agency may change its formal orrimfa approval requirements and policies, act copti@previous guidance,
adopt new regulations or raise new issues or casdate in the approval process;

e aproduct candidate may be approved only forcatitins that are narrow or under conditions thatelthe product at a
competitive disadvantage, which may limit the saled marketing activities for such products or pilige adversely impact tt
commercial potential of a produ

If a product is not approved in a timely fashioncmmmercially viable terms, or if development oy gmoduct is terminated due to
difficulties or delays encountered in the regulatapproval process, it could have a material advenpact on our business, and we will
become more dependent on the development of otbprigtary products and/or our ability to succebgfacquire other products and
technologies. There can be no assurances thatradyqi will receive regulatory approval in a timehanner, or at all.

Certain products will be marketed, and perhaps tizgatwred, in foreign countries. The process of ioltg regulatory approvals in
foreign countries is subject to delay and failoethe reasons set forth above, as well as fooreathat vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.
The approval process varies among countries arsdljations and can involve additional testing. Tinge required to obtain approval may
differ from that required to obtain FDA approvabrgign regulatory agencies may not provide appsowala timely basis, if at all. Approval
the FDA does not ensure approval by regulatoryaittes in other countries or jurisdictions, angapval by one foreign regulatory authority
does not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiegher foreign countries or jurisdictions or InetFDA.

We may not be able to protect our proprietary sght

Our success depends in part on whether we canairaimir existing patents, obtain additional patemtgintain trade secret
protection, and operate without infringing on tmegietary rights of third parties.

There can be no assurance that any of our penditegntoapplications will be approved or that we wélelop additional proprietary
products that are patentable. There is also naassel that any patents issued to us will not bedbmaubject of a rexamination, will provid
us with competitive advantages, will not be chajketh by any third parties, or that the patents &t will not prevent the commercializatior
products incorporating our technology. Furthermttere can be no guarantee that others will napeddently develop similar products,
duplicate any of our products, or design aroundpatients.

Our commercial success will also depend, in parpur ability to avoid infringing on patents issugdothers. If we were judicially
determined to be infringing on any third-party péteve could be required to pay damages, altepmaucts or processes, obtain licenses, or
cease certain activities. If we are required inftliere to obtain any licenses from third partiesgome of our products, there can be no
guarantee that we would be able to do so on comatigriavorable terms, if at all. U.S. patent applions are not immediately made public
we might be surprised by the grant to someonedflagratent on a technology we are actively using.

Litigation, which would result in substantial costsus and diversion of effort on our part, maynkeessary to enforce or confirm
ownership of any patents issued or licensed tou® determine the scope and validity of thirdtpgroprietary rights. If our competitors
claim technology also claimed by us and preparefidagatent applications in the United States,may have to participate in interference
proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Tratte@ffice or a foreign patent office to determingopity of invention, which could result in
substantial costs to and diversion of effort, eif¢he eventual outcome is favorable to us. Anytslitigation or interference proceeding,
regardless of outcome, could be expensive and ¢imnsuming.
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Successful challenges to our patents through ofiposj reexamination proceedings or interferencegedings could result in a loss
of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. léware unsuccessful in actions we bring againgpaitents of other parties and it is determined
we infringe the patents of third-parties, we maysbbject to litigation, or otherwise prevented froommercializing potential products in the
relevant jurisdiction, or may be required to obt#genses to those patents or develop or obtagmradtive technologies, any of which could
harm our business. Furthermore, if such challetgesir patent rights are not resolved in our fawe,could be delayed or prevented from
entering into new collaborations or from commeizial certain products, which could adversely affaar business and results of operations.

On September 16, 2011, President Obama signethintmajor patent law reform known as the Leahy-8nAitnerica Invents Act
(AIA). Among other things the AIA implements a fiigventor to file standard for patent approvakehes the legal standards for patentability
under section 102 of the statute, and createstagpast review system. As a result of the addecettamty of interpretation of the AIA and the
uncertainty of patent law in general, we cannotijstewith certainty how much protection, if any IMde given to our patents if we attempt to
enforce them and they are challenged in court. @ésto the patent law under the AIA also may previblird parties to assert claims against
us or result in our intellectual property beingroared in scope or declared to be invalid or unerdable.

Competitors or third parties may infringe our pateiVe may be required to file patent infringemglatms, which can be expensive
and time-consuming. In addition, in an infringempridceeding, a court may decide that a patent i istnot valid or is unenforceable, or that
the third party’s technology does not in fact infieé upon our patents. An adverse determinatiomyfitigation or defense proceedings could
put one or more of our patents at risk of beinglitated or interpreted narrowly and could put @lated pending patent applications at risk o
not issuing. Litigation may fail and, even if susstil, may result in substantial costs and be taadison to our management. We may not be
able to prevent misappropriation of our proprietagits, particularly in countries outside the Uafiere patent rights may be more difficult to
enforce. Furthermore, because of the substantialiatrof discovery required in connection with iteetual property litigation, there is a risk
that some of our confidential or sensitive inforimatcould be compromised by disclosure in the eeéfitigation. In addition, during the
course of litigation there could be public announeats of the results of hearings, motions or oitherim proceedings or developments. If
securities analysts or investors perceive thesdtse® be negative, it could have a substantiabesk effect on the price of our common stock.

In addition to patents, which alone may not be &blerotect the fundamentals of our business, we @dly on unpatented trade
secrets and proprietary technological expertisené&sof our intended future cell-related therapeptaducts may fit into this category. We rely,
in part, on confidentiality agreements with ourtpars, employees, advisors, vendors, and conssilftarprotect our trade secrets and
proprietary technological expertise. There candegumarantee that these agreements will not be lheelaor that we will have adequate
remedies for any breach, or that our unpatentef tsacrets and proprietary technological expevtiaot otherwise become known or be
independently discovered by competitors.

Failure to obtain or maintain patent protectionpmtect trade secrets, for any reason (or thirdypaaims against our patents, trade
secrets, or proprietary rights, or our involvemiendisputes over our patents, trade secrets, @rigtary rights, including involvement in
litigation), could have a substantial negative @ffen our results of operations and financial ctiadi

We may not be able to protect our intellectual propin countries outside the United States

Intellectual property law outside the United Stasegncertain and in many countries is currentlgengoing review and revisions.
The laws of some countries do not protect our gated other intellectual property rights to the samtent as United States laws. This is
particularly relevant to us as most of our curieahmercial product sales and clinical trials artsiole of the United States. Third parties may
attempt to oppose the issuance of patents to fiaseign countries by initiating opposition procemgh. Opposition proceedings against any of
our patent filings in a foreign country could hareadverse effect on our corresponding patentsateatsued or pending in the United States.
It may be necessary or useful for us to particirafgroceedings to determine the validity of outepids or our competitors’ patents that have
been issued in countries other than the U.S. Thigdaresult in substantial costs, divert our eBa@hd attention from other aspects of our
business, and could have a material adverse effectir results of operations and financial conditi/e currently have pending patent
applications in Europe, Australia, Japan, Canatiin&; Korea, and Singapore, among others.
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We and our medical devices are subject to FDA o

As medical devices, the Celuti@i8ystem family of products, and components of tlerSburce® cell banks, must receive
regulatory clearances or approvals from the FDA amchany instances, from non-U.S. and state gawents prior to their sale. The Celuti®n
System family of products is subject to stringemdernment regulation in the United States by thékibder the Federal Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act. The FDA regulates the design/develamtrprocess, clinical testing, manufacture, satabeling, sale, distribution, and
promotion of medical devices and drugs. Includedrgrthese regulations are pre-market clearanc@m@ntharket approval requirements,
design control requirements, and the Quality SydRemgulations/Good Manufacturing Practices. Othatusbdry and regulatory requirements
govern, among other things, establishment registrand inspection, medical device listing, protidris against misbranding and adulteration
labeling and post-market reporting.

The regulatory process can be lengthy, expensihcpacertain. Before any new medical device maytseduced to the U.S.
market, the manufacturer generally must obtain Fll¥arance or approval through either the 510(kjnpagket notification process or the
lengthier pre-market approval application, or PN#gcess. It generally takes from three to 12 mofrtite submission to obtain 510(k) pre-
market clearance, although it may take longer. Apakof a PMA could take four or more years frora time the process is initiated. The 510
(k) and PMA processes can be expensive, uncegathlengthy, and there is no guarantee of ultirokt@rance or approval. Our Celuti®n
products under development today and in the foedgeduture will be subject to the lengthier PMApess. Securing FDA clearances and
approvals may require the submission of extendimécal data and supporting information to the F&#d there can be no guarantee of
ultimate clearance or approval. Failure to compityh\applicable requirements can result in applaratntegrity proceedings, fines, recalls or
seizures of products, injunctions, civil penalti@gal or partial suspensions of production, witwdals of existing product approvals or
clearances, refusals to approve or clear new agjaits or notifications, and criminal prosecution.

Medical devices are also subject to pustrket reporting requirements for deaths or serinjusies when the device may have cat
or contributed to the death or serious injury, forccertain device malfunctions that would be Ik cause or contribute to a death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur. If safaty effectiveness problems occur after the prodemthes the market, the FDA may take steps
prevent or limit further marketing of the produatlditionally, the FDA actively enforces regulatiomohibiting marketing and promotion of
devices for indications or uses that have not lodgsared or approved by the FDA.

There can be no guarantee that we will be ablédtaim the necessary 510(k) clearances or PMA apsdo market and
manufacture our other products in the United Stitetheir intended use on a timely basis, if &t@élays in receipt of or failure to receive
such clearances or approvals, the loss of prewiaeskived clearances or approvals, or failureotoly with existing or future regulatory
requirements could have a substantial negativetedfe our results of operations and financial cbadi

To sell in international markets, we will be sulbjgcrequlation in foreign countries

In cooperation with our distribution partners, wigend to market our current and future producté bleimestically and in many
foreign markets. A number of risks are inhererihternational transactions. In order for us to neaidur products in Europe, Canada, Japal
certain other non-U.S. jurisdictions, we need ttawband maintain required regulatory approvalslearances and must comply with extensive
regulations regarding safety, manufacturing proeessid quality. These regulations, including tlyiirements for approvals or clearances to
market, may differ from the FDA regulatory scheimernational sales also may be limited or disrdig political instability, price controls,
trade restrictions and changes in tariffs. Addiikyn fluctuations in currency exchange rates maweasely affect demand for our products by
increasing the price of our products in the curyewitthe countries in which the products are sold.

There can be no assurance that we will obtain atgryl approvals or clearances in all of the coestrhere we intend to market our
products, or that we will not incur significant t®# obtaining or maintaining foreign regulatoppeovals or clearances, or that we will be
to successfully commercialize current or futuredarcts in various foreign markets. Delays in receffapprovals or clearances to market our
products in foreign countries, failure to receivels approvals or clearances or the future lossefipusly received approvals or clearances
could have a substantial negative effect on ourltesf operations and financial condition.

Changing, new and/or emerging government regulstmay adversely affect us

Government regulations can change without notideetthe fact that Cytori operates in various ing&ional markets, our access to
such markets could change with little to no warrdog to a change in government regulations thatexug up-regulate our product(s) and
create greater regulatory burden for our cell thg@nd cell banking technology products.
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Due to the fact that there are new and emergiddteiapy and cell banking regulations that hawendly been drafted and/or
implemented in various countries around the wdHd,application and subsequent implementationefa¢mew and emerging regulations have
little to no precedence. Therefore, the level ahptexity and stringency is not known and may vaonf country to country, creating greater
uncertainty for the international regulatory praces

Anticipated or unanticipated changes in the wagnanner in which the FDA regulates products or eés&goups of products can
delay, further burden, or alleviate regulatory patis that were once available to other productsrf lare no guarantees that such changes ir
FDA's approach to the regulatory process will neteteriously affect some or all of our productgorduct applications.

We may have difficulty obtaining health insuraneabursement for our products

New and emerging cell therapy and cell bankingrietdgies, such as those provided by the CelftiSpstem family of products,
may have difficulty or encounter significant delagbtaining health care reimbursement in somalarountries around the world due to the
novelty of our cell therapy and cell banking tedaigy and subsequent lack of existing reimburseraehémes/pathways. Therefore, the
creation of new reimbursement pathways may be csxrgohd lengthy with no assurances that such reiseluents will be successful. The lack
of health insurance reimbursement or reduced ommaireimbursement pricing may have a significampact on our ability to successfully <
our cell therapy and cell banking technology pra¢s)anto a county or region, which would negatwighpact our operating results.

Our concentration of sales in Japan may have negaffects on our business in the event of anysairnsthat region

We have operations in a number of regions arouaavibrid, including the United States, Japan, anwet Our global operations
may be subject to risks that may limit our abitibyoperate our business. We sell our products gighehich exposes us to a number of risks
that can arise from international trade transastitotal business practices and cultural consiaergtincluding:

e political unrest, terrorism and economic or finahdnstability;

* unexpected changes and uncertainty in regulatopyirements and systems relat

e nationalization programs that may be implementeébbgign government:

e import-export regulations

- difficulties in enforcing agreements and collectiegeivables

« difficulties in ensuring compliance with the lawsdaregulations of multiple jurisdiction
» changes in labor practices, including wage inflatiabor unrest and unionization polici
« longer payment cycles by international custom

e currency exchange fluctuatior

« disruptions of service from utilities or telecomnations providers, including electricity shortag

« difficulties in staffing foreign branches and suliaiies and in managing an expatriate workforcd, differing employment practic
and labor issue:

« potentially adverse tax consequent

We also face risks associated with currency exahamg convertibility, inflation and repatriationedirnings as a result of our
foreign operations. We are also vulnerable to apatien or depreciation of foreign currencies agathe U.S. dollar. Although we have
significant operations in Asia, a substantial portof transactions are denominated in U.S. dollssappreciation against the U.S. dollar
increases, it will result in an increase in thet@dour business expenses abroad. Conversely, wamfluctuations in the value of foreign
currencies relative to the U.S. dollar may makeproducts less price competitive than local sohgid-rom time to time, we may engage in
currency hedging activities, but such activitiesymat be able to limit the risks of currency fluations.

Our revenue, results of operations, and cash floasg suffer upon the loss of a significant custooves significant reduction in the amount of
product ordered by any such customer.

Our largest customer accounted for 26% of our regeturing the year ended December 31, 2013. Loggs$ignificant customer or a
significant reduction in the amount of product aedeby this customer could adversely affect ouenese, results of operations, and cash flow:
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We must maintain guality assurance certificatiod aranufacturing approvals

The manufacture of our products is, and the manufaof any future cell-related therapeutic prodwebuld be, subject to periodic
inspection by regulatory authorities and distribotpartners. The manufacture of devices and predacthuman use is subject to regulation
and inspection from time to time by the FDA for qadiance with the FDA’s Quality System Regulation@SR, requirements, as well as
equivalent requirements and inspections by stadenanyJ.S. regulatory authorities. There can be no guagatihat the FDA or other authori
will not, during the course of an inspection ofstixig or new facilities, identify what they conside be deficiencies in our compliance with
QSRs or other requirements and request, or seeddiataction.

Failure to comply with such regulations or a patdrdelay in attaining compliance may adverselgetfiour manufacturing activities
and could result in, among other things, injundiasivil penalties, FDA refusal to grant pmearket approvals or clearances of future or per
product submissions, fines, recalls or seizurggaducts, total or partial suspensions of productamd criminal prosecution. There can be no
assurance after such occurrences that we will lzetalobtain additional necessary regulatory apaliwer clearances on a timely basis, if at all
Delays in receipt of or failure to receive suchrappls or clearances, or the loss of previouslgired approvals or clearances could have a
substantial negative effect on our results of gj@ma and financial condition.

The termination or suspension of the BARDA cont@mild delay and/or adversely affect our busin@skair ability to further develop our
Celutior® System

Cytori was awarded the contract with BARDA in Sepber 2012 with the aim to develop a new counteromesf®r a combined injur
involving thermal burn and radiation exposure whigiuld be useful following a mass-casualty evertie cost-plus-fixed-fee contract is
valued at up to $106 million, with a guaranteedebaeriod of approximately $4.7 million which inckslpreclinical research and the
acceleration of Cytori’'s ongoing development of @y$ ongoing development of the Celution® cell pessing System (the Celution®
System). Upon satisfactory proof of concept, BARDAYy elect to exercise up to three contract optwamish will extend the contract term to
up to five years if all options are exercised. BARMay suspend or terminate this contract shouldaivéo achieve key objectives or
milestones, or fail to comply with the operating@edures and processes approved by BARDA anddis @agency, the Defense Contract
Audit Agency. There can be no assurance that webevilible to achieve these milestones or contiowemply with these procedures and
protocols, or whether we will be able to succes$gfikvelop our Celution&ystem under the contract. If the BARDA contraetevterminate:
or suspended, our business could be adverselytedfec

The BARDA contract has certain contracting requigats that allow the U.S. Government to unilateratiptrol its contracts. If the U.S.
Government suspends, cancels, or otherwise teresimair contract with them, we could experienceifigamt revenue shortfalls, and our
financial condition and business may be adverdédrted

Contracts with U.S. Government agencies typicadigtain termination provisions unfavorable to thieeotparty, and are subject to audit and
modification by the U.S. government at its soledition, which will subject us to additional riskhese risks include the ability of the U.S.
Government to unilaterally:

« audit or object to our contract-related costs a®dfand require us to reimburse all such cost$easgl

« suspend or prevent us for a set period of time freceiving new contracts or extending our existingtracts based on violations or
suspected violations of laws or regulatic

« cancel, terminate or suspend our contracts baseelations or suspected violations of laws or datjans;

« terminate our contracts if in the Government’s liestrest, including if funds become unavailabléh® applicable governmental
agency;

« reduce the scope and value of our contracts; and

« change certain terms and conditions in our corgract

BARDA is able to terminate its contracts with uigher for its best interests or if we default bylifeg to perform in accordance with or
to achieve the milestones set forth in the consebedules and terms. Termination-for-conveniemogigions generally enable us to recover
only our costs incurred or committed and settlenesipenses on the work completed prior to termimat@hanges to, or an unexpected
termination of this contract could result in sigeeit revenue shortfalls. If revenue shortfallsusaand are not offset by corresponding
reductions in expenses, our business could be selyaaffected. We cannot anticipate if, when owtmt extent BARDA might revise, alter or
terminate its contract with us in the future.
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Under our contract with BARDA, our operations, dhdse of our contractors, are subject to auditieyd.S. Government, a negative outcome
to which could adversely affect our financial cdimdis and business operations

U.S. government agencies, such as the Departméigaith and Human Services, or DHHS, and the Def@untract Audit Agency,
or the DCAA, routinely audit and investigate govaent contractors and recipients of federal grartiese agencies evaluate a contractor’s
performance under its contracts, cost structurecantpliance with applicable laws, regulations atashdards.

The DHHS and the DCAA also review the adequacynfl a contractor's compliance with, its internattcol systems and policies,
including the contractor’s purchasing, propertyineating, compensation and management informatystesns. Any costs found to be
improperly allocated to a contract will not be rbimsed, while such costs already reimbursed murrg8y be repaid. If an audit identifies
improper or illegal activities, we may be subjectivil and criminal penalties and administratiemstions, including, but not limited to:

« termination of contracts;

» forfeiture of profits;

« suspension of payments;

« fines; and

« suspension or prohibition from conducting businegk the United States government.

We depend on a few key officers

Our performance is substantially dependent on émopmance of our executive officers and other &&igntific and sales staff,
including Christopher J. Calhoun, our Chief ExeoritDfficer, and Marc Hedrick, MD, our President. Yé& upon them for strategic business
decisions and guidance. We believe that our fldupeess in developing marketable products and\dngi@ competitive position will depend
in large part upon whether we can attract andneatdditional qualified management and scientifispenel. Competition for such personnel is
intense, and there can be no assurance that wbendlble to continue to attract and retain suchguerel. The loss of the services of one or
more of our executive officers or key scientifiaf§tor the inability to attract and retain additéd personnel and develop expertise as needed
could have a substantial negative effect on ourltesf operations and financial condition.

We may not have enough product liability insurance

The testing, manufacturing, marketing, and saleunfregenerative cell products involve an inhereskt that product liability claims
will be asserted against us, our distribution pangnor licensees. There can be no guaranteeuhatioical trial and commercial product
liability insurance is adequate or will continuetk® available in sufficient amounts or at an acglptcost, if at all. A product liability claim,
product recall, or other claim, as well as anyrolafor uninsured liabilities or in excess of ingltiabilities, could have a substantial negative
effect on our results of operations and financaaddition. Also, well-publicized claims could causgr stock to fall sharply, even before the
merits of the claims are decided by a court.

Risks Related to Ownership of our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock may be vaatild fluctuate significantly, which could resultsubstantial losses for stockholders and
subject us to litigation.

The market price of our common stock may be subgesignificant fluctuations. Among the factorstthzay cause the market price
of our common stock to fluctuate are the risks dbed in this “Risk Factors” section and other fast including:

» fluctuations in our operating results or the oparptesults of our competitor

* changes in estimates of our financial results comemendations by securities analy
e variance in our financial performance from the etpgons of securities analys

« changes in the estimates of the future size andthrate of our market:

* changes in accounting principles or changes inpné¢ations of existing principles, which couldeadt our financial result:

20




Table of Contents

» conditions and trends in the markets we se

» changes in general economic, industry and markaditons;

» success of competitive products and servi

» changes in market valuations or earnings of ourpeiitors;

e announcements of significant new products, corgrastquisitions or strategic alliances by us orammpetitors

» the timing and outcome of regulatory reviews anprapals of our product:

» the commencement or outcome of litigation involving company, our general industry or bc

« changes in our capital structure, such as futsgaisces of securities or the incurrence of additidabt;

e actual or expected sales of our common stock byohders of our common stock; a

» the trading volume of our common sto

In addition, the stock market in general, the NASD&lobal Market and the market for cell therapyelegment companies in

particular may experience a loss of investor canfak. A loss of investor confidence may resultdtneane price and volume fluctuations in
common stock that are unrelated or disproportiot@athe operating performance of our businessfinancial condition or results of
operations. These broad market and industry factass materially harm the market price of our comratotk and expose us to securities
class-action litigation. Class-action litigatiowea if unsuccessful, could be costly to defend @imdrt management’s attention and resources,

which could further materially harm our financianglition and results of operations.

Future sales of our common stock may depress @ue grice.

As of December 31, 2013, we had 71,305,375 shdr@sracommon stock outstanding. Sales of a numbshares of common stock
in the public market, or the expectation of sudesacould cause the market price of our commockstm decline. In addition, our 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan provides for annual increases imtimaber of shares available for issuance undepldre which may, among other things, re
in dilution of the price of our common stock. Weyraso sell additional common stock in subsequebtip offerings, which may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock.

We have granted demand registration rights foréisale of certain shares of our common stock th e&®©lympus Corporation,
Astellas Pharma Inc. and Green Hospital Supply, pacsuant to common stock purchase agreementopshy entered into with each of these
stockholders. An aggregate of 5,528,571 sharesiof@mmon stock are subject to these demand ratjistrrights. If we receive a written
request from any of these stockholders to filegisteation statement under the Securities Act dogeits shares of unregistered common stock
we are required to use reasonable efforts to peeguadl file with the SEC within 30 business daysuath request a registration statement
covering the resale of the shares for an offeringet made on a continuous basis pursuant to R8leidder the Securities Act.

Our charter documents contain atakeover provisions

Certain provisions of our amended and restatedficate of incorporation and amended and restaidas could discourage, delay
or prevent a merger, acquisition or other changmafrol that stockholders may consider favorablese provisions could also prevent or
frustrate attempts by our stockholders to replacemove members of our Board of Directors. Stotdkdis who wish to participate in these
transactions may not have the opportunity to da'kese provisions:

e authorize our Board of Directors to issue withstockholder approval up to 5,000,000 shargseferred stock, the rights of which
will be determined at the discretion of the Boafdoectors;

* require that stockholder actions must be effectedduly called stockholder meeting and cannogkert by written conser

« establish advance notice requirements forkimider nominations to our Board of Directors ar $tockholder proposals that can be
acted on at stockholder meetings;

» limit who may call stockholder meeting
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We are governed by the provisions of Section 20B@fDelaware General Corporation Law, which majess certain criteria are
met, prohibit large stockholders, in particularsd@wning 15% or more of the voting rights on cammon stock, from merging or combining
with us for a prescribed period of time.

We pay no dividends.

We have never paid cash dividends in the pastcarréntly do not intend to pay any cash dividemdthe foreseeable future.
Furthermore, our June 28, 2013 Loan and Securitgémgent with Oxford Finance LLC and Silicon ValBgnk currently prohibits our
issuance of cash dividends. This could make a@simrent in our company inappropriate for some itoresand may serve to narrow our
potential sources of additional capital.

If securities and/or industry analysts fail to édoaé publishing research about our business, if dienge their recommendations
adversely or if our results of operations do noehikeir expectations, our stock price and tragislgme could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will bduehced by the research and reports that industsgaurities analysts publish
about us or our business. If one or more of theséyats cease coverage of our company or fail bdigiureports on us regularly, we could lose
visibility in the financial markets, which in tugould cause our stock price or trading volume tdide. In addition, it is likely that in some
future period our operating results will be beldw expectations of securities analysts or investbone or more of the analysts who cover us
downgrade our stock, or if our results of operatido not meet their expectations, our stock prizddcdecline.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

We lease 77,585 square feet at 3020 and 3030 (Gdlad, San Diego, California that we use for oupomate headquarters and
manufacturing facilities. The related lease agregnas amended, bears monthly rent at a rate 80%ler square foot, with annual increase of
$0.05 per square foot. The lease term is 88 montimmencing on July 1, 2010 and expiring on Oct@ier2017. We are eligible to receive a
50% rent abatement for an additional 17,467 sqigatethrough March of 2014 along with a tenant ioyement allowance. Additionally,
we've entered into several lease agreements ferrational office locations and corporate housorgour employees on international
assignments. For these properties, we pay an aagrefgapproximately $180,000 in rent per month.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we have been involved in routitigation incidental to the conduct of our busseeAs of December 31, 2013, we were
not a party to any material legal proceeding.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market Prices

From August 2000 (our initial public offering in @eany) through September 2007 our common stockquated on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange under the symbol “XMPA” (formerly XMP). September 2007 our stock closed trading on thekifuet Stock Exchange. Effective
December 19, 2005, our common stock began tradintg@NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “CYT4nd has since transferred to
the NASDAQ Global Market effective February 14, 80Warrants, issued as part of a financing agreemeviarch 2009, began trading on
the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “CYTXWfective June 22, 2009. The following tables shae high and low sales prices for
our common stock and warrants for the periods atdit, as reported by the NASDAQ Stock Market. TheBzes do not include retail
markups, markdowns or commissions.

Common Stock

High Low

2012

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 45C $ 2.2C

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 2.8¢ 3 2.01

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 49: $ 2.3t

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 458 % 2.4¢€
2013

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 3.1 $ 2.31

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 2.8¢ % 2.2C

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 287 $ 2.0¢

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 392 % 2.0C

All of our outstanding shares have been deposiitdtive Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation TOC) since December 9, 2005.

Warrants
High Low

2012

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 248 $ 1.0z

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 14C $ 0.8¢

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 27: % 0.9C

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 24C % 1.11
2013

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $ 1.6 $ 0.9C

Quarter ended June 30, 2C $ 1.0 $ 0.67

Quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 1.01 $ 0.6t

Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 1.4C $ 0.4¢

As of February 28, 2014, we had approximately 2®m holders of our common stock and 1 record hiadfleur warrants. Because me
of our shares and warrants are held by broker#ret institutions on behalf of stockholders andresat holders, we are unable to estimate th
total number of individual stockholders and warraolders represented by these record holders.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid any dividends orronmmon stock and do not anticipate paying anhénforeseeable future.
Furthermore, our June 28, 2013 Loan and Securitgégent with Oxford Finance LLC and Silicon ValBgnk currently prohibits our
issuance of cash dividends.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining
available for future
Number of securities to be issue Weighted-average exercise pric issuance under equity compensatic
upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options, warrants plans (excluding securities reflected
Plan Category options, warrants and rights and rights in column(a))

(a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders
(1) 840,08° $ 4.6 —

Equity compensation plans no

approved by security holders

) 7,740,09: $ 4.3¢ 700,64
Total 8,580,18. ¢ 4.41 700,64

(1) The 1997 Stock Option and Stock Purchase Plan exgin October 22, 200

(2) See Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statemiacluded elsewhere herein for a descriptionwf2004 Equity Incentive Plan.
The maximum number of shares shall be cumulativetgased on the first January 1 after the Effecdate, August 24, 2004, and
each January 1 thereafter for 9 more years, by mlper of shares equal to the lesser of (a) 2% ofhtimaber of shares issued and
outstanding on the immediately preceding DecemleaBd (b) a number of shares set by the Bc

Comparative Stock Performance Graph
The following graph shows how an initial investmeh®100 in our common stock would have compareghtequal investment in the

NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnoldggiex during the period from December 31, 2008ulgh December 31, 201
The performance shown is not necessarily indicasivisture price performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected data presented below under the cap&tatements of Operations Data,” “Statementsashid-lows Data” and “Balance
Sheet Data” for, and as of the end of, each oj#@es in the fiverear period ended December 31, 2013, are deriead, fand should be read
conjunction with, our audited consolidated finahstatements. The consolidated balance sheets@sagimber 31, 2013 and 2012, and the
related consolidated statements of operations amgprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity, and clstsffor each of the years in the thrgeai
period ended December 31, 2013, which have bedteduny KPMG LLP, an independent registered puticounting firm, and their report
thereon, are included elsewhere in this annualrteppbe consolidated balance sheets as of Dece&ih@011, 2010 and 2009, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and compsaleloss, stockholders’ equity, and cash flowsttieryears ended December 31, 2010 anc
2009, which were also audited by KPMG LLP, areudeld with our annual reports previously filed.
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The information contained in this table should ddeaead in conjunction with “Management’s Discassand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and the fin@rgtatements and related notes thereto inclubiedvlaere in this report (in thousands

except share and per share data):

Statements of Operations Data
Product revenue:

Sales to related par

Sales to third parties

Cost of product revenues
Gross profit

Development revenue
Development, related par
Developmen

Government contracts and other

Operating expense

Research and developmt

Sales and marketir

General and administrati

Change in fair value of warrar

Change in fair value of option liabilities
Total operating expenses

Total operating los

Other income (expense
Loss on asset dispos

Loss on debt extinguishme
Interest incom

Interest expens

Other income (expense), r
Gain on Puregraft divestitu

Gain on previously held equity interest in

Equity loss in investments
Net loss

Basic and diluted net loss per share

Basic and diluted weighted average common shares

Statements of Cash Flows Date
Net cash used in operating activit

Net cash provided by(used in) investing activi

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

equivalents
Net (decrease) increase in Ci

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and s-term investment

Working capital

Total asset

Deferred revenues, related pa

Deferred revenue

Warrant liabilities, lon-term

Option liabilities

Long-term deferred rer

Long-term obligations, less current porti
Total stockholder equity (deficit)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 1,848 $ — % — 3 59C $ 591
5,277 8,70¢ 7,98¢ 7,66¢ 5,24¢

7,122 8,70¢ 7,98: 8,25¢ 5,837

3,421 4,00 3,831 3,90¢ 3,39¢

3,701 4,70¢ 4,14¢ 4,34¢ 2,44%

63¢ 2,88. 1,992 2,12z 8,84(

1,17¢ 2,52¢ — — —

3,257 381 21 251 53

5,077 5,79: 2,01¢ 2,37¢ 8,89:
17,06¢ 13,62¢ 10,90: 9,681 12,23:
9,02¢ 9,48¢ 13,56( 11,04( 6,58:
16,03: 15,67: 14,72" 12,57( 10,41t
(418) (209) (4,360) (1,285) 4,571

(2,250) 34C 74C 30 (920)
39,45¢ 38,91¢ 35,57 32,04 32,88:
(30,679 (28,41%) (29,41%) (25,32)) (21,54
(257) — — — —

(708) — — — —

4 4 9 9 20

(3,396) (3,386) (2,782 (2,052) (1,427

(43¢) (314) (55) 23 (21

4,45: — — — —

4,89: — — — —

(48) (165) (209) (151) (44)

$ (2617) $ (32279 $  (3245) $ (27,499 $ (23,210
$ 039 $ (055 $ 0.61) $ 0.60 $ (0.65)
67,781,36 _ 58,679,68 53,504,03 45,947,96 35,939,26
$ (3456) $  (3219) $  (3532) $ (23579 $  (23,80)
3,68¢ (1,202) (560) (1,290) (221)
20,77- 22,19: 20,13’ 64,67¢ 24,27
(106) — — — —
(10,217 (11,20%) (15,74¢) 39,81 247
25,71 36,92: 52,66¢ 12,85¢ 12,61

$ 1550¢ $ 2571, $ _ 36,92. $ 52,66 $ 12,85:
$ 15,50¢ $ 25717 $ 3692 $  52,66¢ $ 12,85¢
9,671 16,36¢ 35,51¢ 45,73( 9,91¢
42,06( 43,25( 51,53¢ 66,34’ 24,74¢

— 63¢ 3,52( 5,51z 7,63¢

212 2,63t 5,24¢ 4,92¢ 2,38¢

— — 627 4,987 6,27-

— 2,25( 1,91¢ 1,17¢ 1,14(

71C 75€ 504 39¢ —

23,10 12,90: 21,96: 13,25¢ 2,79(

$ 313 $ 6,455 $ 9,946 $ 22.87¢ $ (3,65¢)
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We are a cell therapy company dedicated to theldeweent of novel treatments primarily for cardiovalsr disease as well as for a
range of soft tissue injuries. In the U.S. our gedb bring Cytori Cell Therapy to market for thegnt of heart failure due to ischemic heart
disease through Cytosiponsored clinical development efforts and to dgwel treatment for thermal burns combined withatain injury unde
a contract from BARDA, a division of the U.S. Dejmaent of Health and Human Services.

Cytori Cell Therapy is a proprietary formulationstém and regenerative cells derived from a pasiewtn adipose (fat) tissue (ADRCSs).
Adipose tissue is a rich and accessible sourcteaf and other regenerative cells. To access teisefilom a patient at the time of a surgical
procedure, we have designed and developed a sicplest tissue processing system, the Celution®e8ysivhich automates the complex
process of digesting fat tissue, releasing the ABR@d concentrating them into an optimized angnetary formulation in a sterile
environment. The system is comprised of a centralog and single-use, per-procedure consumabledzges. The business model is based or
the sale of the device and generating recurringmee from the cartridges that are utilized in gadtedure.

In addition to our targeted therapeutic developmesthave continued to commercialize the Celuti@y®tem under select medical
device clearances to research customers develapingherapeutic applications for Cytori Cell Therap Europe, Japan, and other regions.
The early sales of systems, consumables and aggiltaducts contributes margins that partially effsur operating expenses and play an
important strategic role in fostering familiarityithin the medical community with our technologyheéEe sales have also facilitated the
discovery of new applications for Cytori Cell Theyeby customers conducting investigator-initiated &unded research.

Development Pipeline

The primary therapeutic areas currently within development pipeline are cardiovascular diseass|fsgally heart failure due to
ischemic heart disease, the treatment of thernrailshand orthopedics and sports medicine indication

In the U.S., we are conducting our ATHENA triap@spective, double blind, placebo-controlled, mecdinter trial in up to 45 patients
with ischemic heart disease. The trial will measeeeral endpoints, including peak oxygen consuogvO2 max). Additional endpoints
include perfusion defect, left ventricle end-syistaind diastolic volume and ejection fraction atand 12 months, NYHA functional class and
health-related quality of life. In the third quartthe FDA approved expanding the ATHENA trial fraiR trial centers to a total of eight
centers. In addition, we also received approvahftbe FDA to expand the ATHENA program to includeigher cell dose. This trial,
ATHENA II, will enroll 45 patients at up to 10 cems, including most of the centers in ATHENA | amidl begin enrolling in the first quarter
of 2014.

ADVANCE is our European clinical trial for acute ogardial infarction (heart attack). As part of amqwehensive evaluation of our global
cardiovascular strategy, resource utilization aeaketbpment priorities, we have discontinued enrefitrin the ADVANCE trial as of
September 30, 2013. All evidence to date suppetsurrent, known safety profile for Cytori’'s C&lerapy and the patients enrolled in the
trial will continue to be followed according to theotocol. The outcomes will be fully analyzed amgunction with the existing safety and
feasibility data from the APOLLO acute myocardidhrction trial. We will focus our internal andhéincial resources on the highest clinical
development priority, which is the expanded U.SH&ENA trial.

We have completed two European pilot trials ingzgtng Cytori's Cell Therapy for cardiovascularefise. We have reported long term,
18-month data from the PRECISE trial for chronicargrdial ischemia, which showed that Cytori's Géglerapy demonstrated safety and
sustained improvement in cardiac functional cagastmeasured by V@nax. Results from the APOLLO trial for acute hestack
demonstrated safety and sustained improvemenfarcirsize.

In addition to our cardiovascular disease therapgipeline, Cytori is also developing its cell thpy platform for the treatment of thermal
burns combined with radiation injury, sports meaécand orthopedics. In the third quarter of 2012 were awarded a contract to develop a
new countermeasure for thermal burns valued ab $106 million with the U.S. Department of HealtideHuman Service’'s Biomedical
Advanced Research and Development Authority (BARDe initial base period includes $4.7 million oo years and covers preclinical
research and continued development of Cytori's {@el® System to improve cell processing. The additiowaliact options, if fully execute
could cover our clinical development through FDAegval under a device-based PMA regulatory pathwég.are making progress in
fulfilling the required milestones of the base cant with the goal of completing the base periodany 2014. We have also received FDA
approval in late 2013 to conduct a safety and bdégiclinical trial in patients with acute hamistg tears in order to evaluate the effect of
Cytori Cell Therapy on healing in muscle injury.
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Results of Operations
Product revenues
Product revenues consisted of revenues primaniy four Celution® and StemSource® Cell Banks.
The following table summarizes the componentshentears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011;

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Related part $ 1,845,00 $ — 3 —
Third party 5,277,001 8,709,001 7,983,001
Total product revenues $ 7,122,000 $ 8,709,000 $ 7,983,00

A significant contributor to Cytori’s product rewem historically and throughout 2013 has been galéapan. In September 2012 we
obtained Class | Device Clearance for Celution® amdimber of our other products in Japan. Thigaleze is expected to facilitate sales
growth in Japan and it is anticipated that demaiticame mostly from researchers at academic hakpiteeking to perform investigator-
initiated and funded studies using Cytori's CelkTapy.

We experienced a decrease in product revenue dyemigended December 31, 2013 as compared tothe gariods in 2012 and 2011,
due principally to the product mix comprising reuerfor each period and anticipated timing assodiafiéh larger system related sales. An
additional $3.6 million in orders shipped to cusermin 2013 was excluded from product revenuebeselevant revenue recognition criteria
were not met, and is expected to be recognize@14 2

The future We expect to continue to generate product reeefom a mix of Celution® and StemSourc8@stem and consumables sales.
will sell the products to a diverse group of distiiors and partners in Europe, Asia and the U.Bo, mvay apply the products towards
reconstructive surgery, soft tissue repair, reseaesthetics, and cell and tissue banking as apgria each country. Additionally, as a resu
Class | Device Clearance for Celution® and a nunab@ur other products in Japan, we anticipateetbtsese products to researchers at
academic hospitals seeking to perform investigatitiated and funded studies using Cytori's CeleTdpy. As a result of sale of our
Puregraft® product line discussed in note 5 ef@onsolidated Financial Statements, we do notabgignificant revenues from that product
line in the foreseeable future.

Cost of product revenues

Cost of product revenues relate primarily to Celn® System products and StemSourd@@l Banks and includes material, manufactu
labor, and overhead costs. The following tablersanizes the components of our cost of revenuethéoyears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Cost of product revenut $ 3,338,000 $ 3,923,000 $ 3,772,00i
Share-based compensation 83,00( 77,00( 65,00(
Total cost of product revenues $ 3,421,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 3,837,00
Total cost of product revenues as % of productmage 48.(% 45.9% 48.1%
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Cost of product revenues as a percentage of produehues was 48.0%, 45.9% and 48.1% for the yahsd December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. Fluctuation in this petaga is to be expected due to the product mixiibigbr and direct sales mix, and allocatior
overhead.
The future. We expect to continue to see variation in ousgnarofit margin as the product mix comprising rewes fluctuates.

Development revenues

The following table summarizes the components ofdmyelopment revenues for the years ended DeceBdh@013, 2012 and 2011

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Milestone revenue (Olympu $ 638,000 $ 2,882,000 $ 1,992,00
Development revenue (Astelle — 2,529,001 —
Development revenue (Senk 1,179,00 — —
Government contract (BARDA) and OtF 3,257,001 379,00( 17,00(
Regenerative cell storage services — 2,00( 4,00(
Total development revenues $ 5,074,000 $ 5,792,000 $ 2,013,00

We recognize deferred revenues, related partyeaslgdpment revenue when certain performance oiggare met (i.e., using a
proportional performance approach). During the yeated December 31, 2013, we recognized $638,088/ehue associated with our
arrangements with Olympus as a result of the Urfiitades Court of Appeals upholding the FDA's presgidetermination that our cell
processing devices were not substantially equivatethe cited predicate devices. The recognitibrevenue associated with this event refl
the completion of our efforts expended to use corially reasonable efforts to obtain device requiatapprovals in the United States as it
pertains to the 510(k) pathway. During the yeareenbecember 31, 2012 we recognized $2,882,000vehtee associated with our
arrangements with Olympus as a result of two remgimilestones for the APOLLO and PRECISE clinialls that were reached upon the
completion of all patient follow up procedures aadognition of a regulatory milestone triggered mps obtaining Class | Device Clearance
for Celution® and a number of our other productdapan. During the year ended December 31, 201iecegnized $1,992,000 of revenue
associated with our arrangements with Olympusrasualt of achieving a product development milestatated to additional preproduction
development of the Celution® One System and a atgyl milestone related to our obtaining CE Mairols for the Celution®ne System i
Europe.

In February 2013, we entered into a mutual ternonand release agreement with Senko, whereby igteiliition Agreement and all
Senko rights, licenses and privileges granted utiaeDistribution Agreement terminated and revettethe Company. As a result of this
Termination Agreement, we are obligated to pay 8e31200,000 in six quarterly installment paymeaxft$200,000 each through May 2014.
At the time of the Termination Agreement, we hdshance of $2,379,000 in deferred revenues on alanbe sheet relating to the payments
received from Senko in the past pursuant to thé&ribigion Agreement. At the time of the Terminatidgreement, we accrued $1,200,000 of
the termination fee, and recognized the remainih@®,000 in development revenues which refle@sdbmpany’s efforts towards
commercialization under the agreement.

In the third quarter of 2012, we were awarded dreghto develop a new countermeasure for thermaldvalued at up to $106 million
with U.S. Department of Health and Human Servi&tmedical Advanced Research and Development AitthBARDA). The initial base
period includes $4.7 million over two years andars\preclinical research and continued developmwi@tori's Celution®system to improv
cell processing. The additional contract optiohfylly executed, could cover clinical developmémtough FDA approval under a device-baset
PMA regulatory pathway. This is a cost reimbursenoentract and related government contract revavagerecorded at the gross amount of
reimbursement starting in the fourth quarter of201lo receive funds under this arrangement, weeayeired to (i) demonstrate that we
incurred “qualifying expenses,” as defined in tlatcact agreement between BARDA and us, (ii) m&indasystem of controls, whereby we
can accurately track and report all expenditurksed solely to develop a new countermeasure fmnthl burns, and (iii) file appropriate fori
and follow appropriate protocols established by BR During the year ended December 31, 2013, warned $3,053,000 in qualified
expenditures. We recognized a total of $3,282,80@venues for the year ended December 31, 20li8hwvritluded allowable fees as well as
cost reimbursements. During the year ended Decegihe2012, we incurred $331,000 in qualified exgiemes. We recognized a total of
$355,000 in revenues for the year ended Decemhe&t@32, which included allowable fees as well ast ceimbursements. There were no
comparable revenues and expenditures for the yedeDecember 31, 2011.
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The future We expect to continue recognizing governmentre@hrevenue relating to our contract with BARD#\ae continue our
development work relating to this contract.

Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses include costsaes with the design, development, testing arithecement of our products,
regulatory fees, the purchase of laboratory suppfiee-clinical studies and clinical studies. Tdllowing table summarizes the components of
our research and development expenses for the gedesl December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Research and developm $ 16,444,00 $ 12,784,000 $ 10,021,00
Development milestone (Joint Ventu 16,00( 219,00( 396,00(
Stock-based compensation 605,00( 625,00( 487,00(
Total research and development expenses $ 17,065,00 $ 13,628,000 $ 10,904,00

Research and development expenses relate to teégeent of a technology platform that involvesgsadipose tissue as a source of
autologous regenerative cells for therapeutic apfibns. These expenses, in conjunction with caetindevelopment efforts related to our
Celution® System, result primarily from the broagbansion of our research and development efforts.

Research and development expenses for the yead @atember 31, 2013 as compared to the same per&iil 2 increased primarily due
to the increase in salary and related benefitsresgpéexcluding share-based compensation) of $500z80increase in professional services
expenses of $1,025,000 and increase in researghiesipxpense of $987,000 due to increase in dnical and research activities including
efforts related to BARDA.

Research and development expenses for the yead @atember 31, 2012 as compared to the same per&iil 1 increased primarily due
to the increase in salary and related benefitsrseéexcluding share-based compensation) of $9@9ab0increase in professional services
expenses of $393,000, increase in research sugpgense of $360,000, and increase in clinicalysexghense of $370,000 due to increase in
our clinical and regulatory activities.

Expenditures related to the Joint Venture with Qdws, which are included in the variation analybis\e, included costs that were
necessary to support the commercialization of &igeneration devices, including the next genera@ielution® System. These development
activities, which began in November 2005, concludedng the first quarter of 2013, and we did maiur any Joint Venture development cost:
subsequent to our acquisition, in May 2013, of Qdusi 50% interest in the Joint Venture.

The future We expect research and development expenditoiiesrease in 2014 as we continue enrollment inlsi trial ATHENA and
ATHENA II, RECOVER, continue development work unader BARDA contract, and as we seek additional l&guy clearances and
potentially seek to initiate additional trials ati@nt registries during 2014.

Sales and marketing expenses

Sales and marketing expenses include costs of aatemarketing personnel, tradeshows, physicianitiga and promotional activities ai
materials. The following table summarizes the congmds of our sales and marketing expenses forahesyended December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Sales and marketir $ 8,329,000 $ 8,764,000 $ 12,674,00
Stock-based compensation 697,00( 724,00( 886,00(
Total sales and marketing $ 9,026,000 $ 9,488,000 $ 13,560,000
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The decrease in sales and marketing expense dhengear ended December 31, 2013 as compared sathe period in 2012 was mainly
attributed to the decrease in salary and relatedfise expense (excluding share-based compensatidi62,000 due to a decrease in
headcount, and a decrease in travel & entertainofe$t68,000, which was also offset by an increag@ofessional services of $337,000.

The decrease in sales and marketing expense dhedngear ended December 31, 2012 as compared sathe period in 2011 was mainly
attributed to the decrease in salary and relatedfis expense (excluding share-based compensatic®,122,000 due to a decrease in
headcount, and a decrease in professional semxpenses of $610,000, as a result of targeted tiedadn staff and external costs made prior
to year end in 2011 as well as subsequent redgcti@de in early 2012.

The future We expect sales and marketing expendituresmairerelatively stable in 2014,

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses include costsdministrative personnel, legal and other ptesl expenses, and general corpc
expenses. The following table summarizes the géaathadministrative expenses for the years endasb@ber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
General and administrati) $ 13,808,000 $ 13,194,000 $ 12,849,00
Stock-based compensation 2,223,00i 2,478,00! 1,878,001
Total general and administrative expenses $ 16,031,00 $ 15,672,000 $ 14,727,000

For the year ended December 31, 2013 as compathd same period in 2012, the general and admatigtrexpenses, (excluding share-
based compensation), increased due to non-cashrasaeceivable charges of $1,141,000, an incriegs@fessional services of $301,000 anc
were offset by reduced labor costs.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 as compathd same period in 2011, the general and admatiiggrexpenses (excluding share-
based compensation) remained relatively consistent.

The future We expect general and administrative expensesntain relatively stable in 2014.

Stockbased compensation expenses

Stock-based compensation expenses include chariggsd to options and restricted stock awards éssuemployees, directors and non-
employees along with charges related to the emplsy@ck purchases under the Employee Stock PuréiasdESPP). We measure stock-
based compensation expense based on the grarfailatelue of any awards granted to our employ8egsh expense is recognized over the
period of time that employees provide service tand earn all rights to the awards.

The following table summarizes the components ofstock-based compensation for the years endednblese31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Cost of product revenur $ 83,000 $ 77,000 $ 65,00(
Research and development rele 605,00( 625,00( 487,00(
Sales and marketing relat 697,00( 724,00( 886,00(
General and administrative related 2,223,000 2,478,00! 1,878,00
Total stock-based compensation $ 3,608,000 $ 3,904,000 $ 3,316,00!
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Most of the share-based compensation expensesegetrs ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2Git@ddb the vesting of stock
option and restricted stock awards to employees.

The decrease in share-based compensation for #neegpded December 31, 2013 as compared to thesanoe in 2012 is primarily due
to restricted stock awards granted to our execuéigen during 2012, See Note 16 to the Consolidaieancial Statements included elsewhere
herein for disclosure and discussion of share besegpensation.

The increase in shalm|sed compensation for the year ended Decemb@032,as compared to the same period in 2011 isapitindue tc
the grant of restricted stock awards and performdrased stock awards. See Note 16 to the Conwaliéinancial Statements included
elsewhere herein for disclosure and discussiomafesbased compensation.

The future We expect to continue to grant options and stve&rds (which will result in an expense) to oupéayees, directors, and, as
appropriate, to non-employee service providersiddition, previously-granted options will continteevest in accordance with their original
terms. As of December 31, 2013, the total compé@rsabst related to non-vested stock options ancksawards not yet recognized for all our
plans is approximately $4,810,000. Of this amo#at725,000 is expected to be recognized as a m@fsudisting under service conditions o
weighted average period of 1.81 years.

Change in fair value of warrant liability

The following is a table summarizing the changé&invalue of warrant liability for the years endedcember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Change in fair value of warrant liabili $ (418,000 $ (209,000 $ (4,360,000
Changes in fair value of our warrant liability gmémarily due to fluctuations in the valuation iripusuch as stock price, volatility,
remaining life and others. See Note 2 to the Cadatedd Financial Statements included elsewheraméredisclosure and discussion of our
warrant liability.

The future: No future changes in the fair value of the wartedtility will be recognized as the warrants exguirin August 2013.

Change in fair value of option liability

The following is a table summarizing the changéinvalue of option liability for the years endBé&cember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011

Change in fair value of option liabili $ (2,250,00) $ 340,000 $ 740,00(

Changes in fair value of our put option liabilityeadue to changes in assumptions used in estimgtingalue of the Put, such as
bankruptcy threshold for Cytori, fair value of t&éympus-Cytori, Inc. Joint Venture, volatility aithers. See Note 4 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included elsewhere hereidifmlosure and discussion of our put option lidpili

The future: The Put was cancelled as a result of the Jointiertermination as such we will not be recognizng changes in fair value
of put option liability in the future.
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Financing items

The following table summarizes interest incomegiiest expense, and other income and expensesfgedins ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011
Loss on asset dispos $ (257,000 $ — % —
Loss on debt extinguishme $ (708,000 $ — % —
Interest incomt 4,00( 4,00( 9,00(
Interest expens (3,396,00) (3,386,001 (2,784,00i)
Other income (expense), r (438,000 (314,000 (55,000
Gain on Puregraft divestitu 4,453,00 — —
Gain on previously held equity interest in joinhtare 4,892,00! — —
Total $ 4,550,000 $ (3,696,000 $ (2,830,000

» In connection with the June 28, 2013 Loan and SgcAgreement (Loan Agreement), a loss on debinextishment was record
that relates to the payoff of the prior loan ohliga. See Note 11 to Consolidated Financial Stetasfor further informatior

« Interest expense increased for the year ended Dmredi, 2013 as compared to prior year ended Deseih 2012 due to cash
interest and nc-cash amortization of debt issuance costs and detuht for our $27.0 million term loan

» Interest expense increased for the year ended Drre®i, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is due to castest and non-cash
amortization of debt issuance costs and debt digdou our $25.0 million term loan. In Septemb@i2, we entered into a sect
amendment to the Amended and Restated Loan anditge®greement, pursuant to which the lenders fuhde additional
principal, increasing the total principal balanaes25.0 million.

« The changes in other income (expense) in 2013, 2682011 resulted primarily from changes in faneigrrency exchange
rates.

» Referto Note 5 for discussion on gain on Puregraft dit@®.
+ Refer to Note 4 for discussion on gain on previph&ld equity interest in joint ventut
The futurelnterest income earned in 2014 will be dependertdwrevels of funds available for investment adl @& general economic
conditions. Subject to our future financing adtes, we expect interest expense in 2014 to inersbghtly as we continue to pay interest or

$27.0 million term loan that was amended in JurE320

Equity loss from investment in Joint Venture

The following table summarizes equity loss fromeastment in joint venture for the years ended Deaegrh, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Years ended
2013 2012 2011

Equity loss from investment in joint ventt $ (48,000 $ (165,000 $ (209,000
The losses relate entirely to our 50% equity irgeie the Joint Venture, which we account for usimg equity method of accounting.

The future:Pursuant to the May 2013 acquisition of the renmgjrinterest in the Olympus-Cytori Joint Venture wiét not recognize any
additional losses from the activities of the Jdienture.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Shortterm and longerm liquidity

The following is a summary of our key liquidity neeses at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

As of December 31,

2013 2012

Cash and cash equivalel $ 15,506,000 $ 25,717,00



Current assel $ 24,577,000 $ 33,979,00
Current liabilities 14,906,00 17,613,00

Working capital $ 9,671,000 $ 16,366,00
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We incurred net losses of $26,177,000, $32,27900I0$32,451,000 for the years ended December03B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
We have an accumulated deficit of $300,905,000f &eoember 31, 2013. Additionally, we have usedcash of $34,563,000, $32,193,000
and $35,323,000 to fund our operating activitisyfears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 20Xeateely. To date, these operating
losses have been funded primarily from outsidecmiof invested capital and gross profits. Duri@fj®and 2012, we expanded our
commercialization activities while simultaneouslyrguing available financing sources to support ajg@ns and growth.

We have had, and we will likely continue to hawe pagoing need to raise additional cash from oatswlirces to fund our future
operations.

Webelieveourplanstoraiseadditialcashfromoutside sourcesahdgcessary, ourcostcontainm e nt eftfo
aresufficienttoallowustocomtieoperatonsforthenexttwelvemhs. Thisin cludes minimum liquidit y reigem
entsoftheLoanandSecurtyAgreemthatrequireustomake principsandinterestpaymentsof$868,00 0 pneor
nth b eginningin August20l4andmaintaineastthreemonthsofcashontibmavoidaneventofdefaultundeet
oanagreement.Ourplansincludeping additionalcashthroughstrateg orp orate partn e rs hip s a nd possibly
engaging in f utur e sa |l es of e quity , as Waed o ur g ross profit s. While we have aha&blishedhistoryofraising caaitthro
ughtheseplatforms,andweareeutiyinvolvedinnegotiationswithultipleparties,thereisnoguaraathat
dequatefundswillbeavailablewheeededfromadditionaldebtoretgdinancing, developmentandcomncda
lizattonpartnerships,increasedultsofoperations,orfromothssurces,orontermsacceptablesoufoure
ffortstoobtainsufficientadditiodfund sarenotsuccessful, wewouldrreequiredtodelay, scaleback,dminate
someorallofourresearchorprodudete lopme nt, manufacturing op e raris, administrativeoperations, indihg c
uremployeebase,andclinicalorrlday ac tivities, whichcouldnegativea ff ect o ur a bility t o ac hi eve ce rt acmrp or
ategoals.

The Company continues to seek additional capitaluiph product revenues, strategic transactionijdimg extension opportunities under
the awarded BARDA contract, and from other finagcternatives.

From January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2013, we fiaaeced our operations primarily by:

« InJune 2010, we entered into an Amended and Restaian and Security Agreement with the GECC, SAfil Oxford
Finance Corporation (Lenders), pursuant to whiehltbnders funded a term loan in the amount of SE)ADO on June 14,
2010, which refinanced the remaining balance ot¢her loan entered into with GECC and SVB on Octdlge 2008

« In October 2010, we entered into an underwritingeament with Jefferies, relating to the issuanaksate of 4,600,000
shares of our common stock. This price to the puhlihis offering was $4.50 per share and Jefeaigreed to purchase the
shares from us at a price of $4.23 per share. fHmsaction was completed on October 13, 2010 aegiproximately
$20,700,000 in gross proceeds before deductingrumiieg discounts and commissions and other affgexpenses payable
by us.

« In December 2010, we raised $10,000,000 in grosseeds from a sale of 1,428,571 shares of unregistmmmon stock to
Astellas Pharma Inc. for $7.00 per share in a pgigtock placemen

« InJduly 2011, we entered into a common stock plgetagreement with Seaside 88, LP relating to tfeginf and sale of a
total of up to 6,326,262 shares of our common stotke agreement required us to issue and Seasidg/ th,826,262 shares
of our common stock at an initial closing and 250,8hares of our common stock once every two wesksmencing 30
days after the initial closing, for up to an adafital 20 closings, subject to the satisfaction atamnary closing conditions. At
the initial closing, the offering price was $4.5#ich equaled to 88% of our common stock’s volumedghted average
trading prices, or VWAP, during the ten-day tradpegiod immediately prior to the initial closingtdaraising approximately
$6,000,000 in gross proceeds. At subsequent clesihg offering price was 90.25% of our commonlsgeolumeweighted
average trading prices during the ten-day tradimgpp immediately prior to each subsequent clodiag. We raised
approximately $18,233,000 in gross proceeds frarstie of 5,826,262 shares in our scheduled cleshrgugh April 9,
2012. Effective, April 30, 2012, we terminated #yreement with Seaside 88, LP and we will nottkellremaining and final
500,000 shares that would otherwise have beenusaldr this agreemer
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In September 2011, we entered into an Second Amentim the Amended and Restated Loan and Secugitgefnent with
the GECC, SVB, and Oxford Finance Corporation (lexaj] pursuant to which the Lenders increased e f@rm loan
made to the Company to a principal amount of $2&l0on.

In December 2012, we entered into an underwritong@ment with Lazard Capital Markets, LLC (undeterj, relating to th
issuance and sale of 7,020,000 shares of our constooh. This price to the public in this offeringe$2.85 per share and
the underwriter purchased the shares from us ate pf $2.69 per share. The transaction was caegblen December 19,
2012 raising approximately $20,007,000 in grose@eds before deducting underwriting discounts amangissions and
other offering expenses payable by

In January 2013, Lazard Capital Markets, LLC (umdéer) exercised the option and as a result we anladditional
1,053,000 shares raising approximately $3,000,6@p0ss proceeds before deducting underwritingodists and
commissions and other offering expenses payablest

On June 28, 2013 we entered into a Loan and Sgdgitement (Loan Agreement) with Oxford FinanceCLand Silicon
Valley Bank (together, the “Lenders”), pursuaniaich the Lenders funded an aggregate principalennof $27.0 million
(Term Loans), subject to the terms and conditi@dath in the loan agreement. The Term Loanwesinterest at a fixed
rate of 9.75% per annum. In connection with thenTépbans, on June 28, 2013, we issued to the Lewdamsints to purchas
up to an aggregate of 596,553 shares of our constomk at an exercise price of $2.26 per share.sd harrants are
immediately exercisable and will expire on JuneZ&0. In connection with the Loan Agreement, wepgid all outstanding
amounts under the prior loan agreement, at whink the Companyg’ obligations under the prior loan agreement imatetyi
terminated. The net proceeds of the Term Loanst pityment of lender fees and expenses and prepalithe outstanding
amounts relating to the prior loan agreement, vapproximately $7.8 million

On July 30, 2013, we entered into a Sale and Exa&uscense/Supply Agreement with Bimini TechnokegiLLC (“Bimini”),
pursuant to which we sold to Bimini substantiallycd the assets (other than certain retained sigimd licenses) of our
Puregraft®product line, a series of standalone fat transptéon products that were developed to improve tiediptability of
outcomes for autologous fat grafting and aesthmdiity contouring. The aggregate value of the conatiabe paid by Bimini ¢
the execution of the agreement was $5.0 mill

On October 29, 2013, we entered into a partnesshifpLorem Vascular, to commercialize Cytori Celiérapy for the
cardiovascular, renal and diabetes markets, in& hlong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Australi@z€hse/Supply
Agreement), and a Common Stock Purchase Agreei@anianuary 30, 2014 we entered into the AmendedRasthted
License/Supply Agreement with Lorem Vascular (tRestated Agreement8xpanding the licensed field to all uses exce|
alopecia (hair loss). Under the Restated Agreentemem Vascular committed to pay up to $500 millioricense fees in tr
form of revenue milestones. In addition, Loremegquired to pay us 30% of their gross profits inf@hiHong Kong and
Malaysia for the term of the agreement. Cytori JQélérapy is derived from the Company’s Celution®t8yn, which enables
access to a patient’s own adipose-derived regevercglls (ADRCSs) at the point-afare. . In addition, Lorem Vascular agi
to purchase the Cytori Celution® System and conslesaunder the Restated Agreement. Pursuant teldted Common
Stock Purchase Agreement, Cytori has received $ifidmin exchange for 8 million shares of Cytooramon stock at $3.00
per share. The Equity purchased was closed inmgtaliments, the first in November 2013, and tteosd in January 201
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The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@md other commitments at December 31, 2013, landftect such obligations could
have on our liquidity and cash flow in future peiso

Payments due by perioc

Less than 1 More than

Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5years 5 years

Long-term obligations $ 28,670,00 $ 3,318,000 $ 17,848,000 $ 7,504,000 $ —
Interest commitment on lo-term obligations 5,791,001 2,583,001 3,015,001 193,00( —
Operating lease obligatiol 7,417,001 2,071,001 3,737,001 1,609,001 —
Minimum purchase requiremer 850,00t 850,00 — — —
Pre-clinical research study obligatio 23,00( 23,00( — — —
Clinical research study obligations 4,705,001 3,530,001 1,175,001 — —
Total $ 47,456,00 $ 12,37500 $ 25,77500 $ 9,306,000 $ =

Net cash used in or provided by operating, invgssind financing activities for the years ended Dewer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 is
summarized as follows:

Years Ended

2013 2012 2011
Net cash used in operating activit $ (34,563,00) $ (32,193,00) $ (35,323,00)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing actigi 3,686,001 (1,204,001 (560,000
Net cash provided by financing activiti 20,772,00 22,192,00 20,137,00

Operating activities

Operational activities, inclusive of research ardedopment, sales and marketing, and general amihidrative efforts, offset in part by
product sales, generated a $26,177,000 net losedgrear ended December 31, 2013. The operadisty impact of this loss was $34,563,000,
after adjusting for the recognition of non-cashelepment revenues of $1,817,000, the considerafimon-cash share-based compensation,
other adjustments for material non-cash activisesh as depreciation, amortization, change inviaine of option liabilities and warrants, gain
on sale of assets and acquisition of joint ventangl, changes in working capital due to timing afduct shipments (accounts receivable) and
payment of liabilities. Overall, our operationakhause increased as compared to same period in @& rimarily to increased spending in
research activities.

Operational activities, inclusive of research ardedopment, sales and marketing, and general amihidrative efforts, offset in part by
product sales, generated a $32,279,000 net losedgrear ended December 31, 2012. The operadisty impact of this loss was $32,193,000,
after adjusting for the recognition of non-cashelepment revenues of $5,411,000, the considerafiomon-cash share-based compensation,
other adjustments for material non-cash activisegh as depreciation, amortization, change inveaire of option liabilities and warrants, and
changes in working capital due to timing of prodsitipments (accounts receivable) and payment lofities.

Operational activities, inclusive of research ardedlopment, sales and marketing, and general amnéhadrative efforts, offset in part by
product sales, generated a $32,451,000 net loskdgrear ended December 31, 2011. The operatsigiogact of this loss was $35,323,000,
after adjusting for the recognition of non-cashelepment revenue of $1,992,000, the consideratioo-cash share-based compensation,
other adjustments for material non-cash activisegh as depreciation, amortization, change inveaire of option liabilities and warrants, and
changes in working capital due to timing of prodsitipments (accounts receivable) and payment lofitias.

Investing activities

Net cash provided in investing activities for theay ended December 31, 2013 resulted from caslowstfor payment of a license
termination fee of $800,000 and for purchases operty and equipment and cash inflows of $5,000fof the sale of Puregraft product lii

Net cash used by investing activities for the yevated December 31, 2012 and 2011 resulted prinfeoify purchases of property and
equipment, primarily for use in clinical trials arekearch.
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Financing Activities

The net cash provided by financing activities fog yyear ended December 31, 2013 related primarifydale to Lorem Vascular of
4,000,000 shares for $12,000,000 in gross procesdsell as an additional $3,000,000 in gross mdséreceived in 2013) which related to
second closing of an additional 4,000,000 shardsaiuary 2014. The balance of $9,000,000 in grassepds for the second closing was
received in 2014. In addition, there was a salg,@53,000 shares for approximately $3,000,000 @sgproceeds in connection with the
underwriter exercising the option to purchase aaltél shares relating to our December 2012 pulffering offset by principal payments of
$22,304,000 primarily relating to our $25.0 milliman. Additionally, in June 2013, we entered iatboan and Security Agreement with
Lenders pursuant to which the Lenders funded agdegurincipal amount of $27,000,000 offset by $4,080 debt issuance costs and loan
fees. Also, during the year ended December 31, ,28&3aid $221,000 payment towards our Joint Venpurrchase obligation.

The net cash provided by financing activities fog yyear ended December 31, 2012 related primaridydale of 1,750,000 shares for
approximately $4,881,000 in net proceeds in conoeatith our common stock purchase agreement waisle entered into on July 11, 20
the sale of 7,020,000 shares of common stock anabforoximately $18,590,000 in net proceeds inDheember 2012 public offering and
proceeds from exercise of warrants and employexk stptions and employee stock purchase plan ofl31000.

The net cash provided by financing activities fog year ended December 31, 2011 related primaridysale of 4,076,262 shares for
approximately $13,286,000 in gross proceeds in ection with common stock purchase agreement wittsifle entered into on July 11, 2011
and proceeds from exercise of warrants and emplsipe& options of $2,849,000. Additionally, in Ssmpber 2011, we entered into a Second
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Loan andif§eagreement with Lenders pursuant to which tlemders increased the prior term
loan made to the Company to a principal amoun2&f@0,000 with proceeds of $9,444,000 in additipnacipal, before debt issuance costs
and loan fees.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimdes
The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States requires us to mak
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of our assets, liabilities, revenues aperses, and that affect our recognition and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
While our estimates are based on assumptions wadmmreasonable at the time they were made, dualaesults may differ from our
estimates, perhaps significantly. If results diffeaterially from our estimates, we will make adijnents to our financial statements
prospectively as we become aware of the necessiyf adjustment.

We believe it is important for you to understand most critical accounting policies. These are mulicies that require us to make our
most significant judgments and, as a result, cbalee the greatest impact on our future financisdlis.

Warrant and Put Option Liability

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsded elsewhere herein for disclosure and discusdionr warrant liability and our put
option liability.

Revenue Recognition
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementaded elsewhere herein for disclosure and discussiogvenue recognition.
Stock-based compensation

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsded elsewhere herein for disclosure and discusdistock-based compensation.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsded elsewhere herein for disclosure and discusgioew accounting standards.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk related to fluctumstio interest rates and in foreign currency exgbaates.
Interest Rate Exposure

We are not subject to market risk due to fluctusim interest rates on our long-term obligatiosishey bear a fixed rate of interest. Our
exposure relates primarily to short-term investraginicluding funds classified as cash equivaleAts.of December 31, 2013, all excess funds
were invested in money market funds and other fitifpliid investments, therefore our interest ratpasure is not considered to be material.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Exposure

Our exposure to market risk due to fluctuationfoieign currency exchange rates relates primagilyur activities in Europe and
Japan. Transaction gains or losses resulting f@ash balances and revenues have not been sighificdnre past and we are not currently
engaged in any hedging activity in the Euro, tha ¥eother currencies. Based on our cash balarasevenues derived from markets other
than the United States for the year ended Dece8iheé2013, a hypothetical 10% adverse change iEtine or Yen against the U.S. dollar
would not result in a material foreign currency lexiege loss. Consequently, we do not expect thatct®ns in the value of such sales
denominated in foreign currencies resulting frorarea sudden or significant fluctuation in foreiguclgange rates would have a direct materia
impact on our financial position, results of openas or cash flows.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the indirect effe€fluctuations in interest rates and foreign cnoyeexchange rates could have a materia
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations. For example, foreigmency exchange rate fluctuations may
affect international demand for our products. ddition, interest rate fluctuations may affect oustomers’ buying patterns. Furthermore,
interest rate and currency exchange rate fluctogtinay broadly influence the United States anddareconomies resulting in a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and subsédigthe Company) as of December
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsnoé operations and comprehensive loss, stockhsildquity, and cash flows for each

the years in the thregear period ended December 31, 2013. In conneutitnour audits of the consolidated financial sta¢ats, we have al

audited the accompanying schedule of valuationauadifying accounts. These consolidated finandatesnents are the responsibility of
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these consolidated financiastants based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managememtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeeferred to above present fairly, in all materé&spects, the financial position of Cy
Therapeutics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Dece®beR013 and 2012, and the results of their opmratand their cash flows for each of

years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2013, in conformitly U.S. generally accepted accounting principfdso, in our opinior

the related financial statement schedule, whenidered in relation to the basic consolidated finahstatements taken as a whole, pre:
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bodbnited States), Cytc
Therapeutics, Inc.’s internal control over finahdi@porting as of December 31, 2013, based onriitestablished irinternal Control -
Integrated Frameworl (1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnthe Treadway Commission (COSO), and our r¢
dated March 14, 2014 expressed an adverse opinitimeceffectiveness of the Company’s internal adraver financial reporting.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, Californi
March 14, 201
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc:

We have audited Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and slidses (the Company) internal control over finaheeporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria establishedlirternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Gimgdions of th

Treadway Commission (COSO) The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial report
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying ManagemenReport o
Internal Control over Financial Reporting (Item @3¢ Our responsibility is to express an opiniontbe Company's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight @ nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aalli@ing the design and operating effectivenesatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestaée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableamssuregarding the reliability of financ
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tlransactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combimatif deficiencies, in internal control over finglaeporting, such that there is a reasor
possibility that a material misstatement of the pany’s annual or interim financial statements will net firevented or detected on a tin
basis. A material weakness related to the recagniind measurement of revenue has been identifiedirecluded in Managemest’
assessment. We also have audited, in accordanbetvweitstandards of the Public Company Accountingr€ight Board (United States),
consolidated financial statements of the CompanPesember 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Thisrimlateeakness was considerec
determining the nature, timing, and extent of atebts applied in our audit of the consolidatedificial statements as of and for the year €
December 31, 2013, and this report does not affectreport dated March 14, 2014, which expressediraqualified opinion on tho
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the af@ationed material weakness on the achievementeobltfiectives of the control criteria,
Company has not maintained effective internal adndwver financial reporting as of December 31, 208&8sed on established internal
Control—Integrated Frameworfd992) issued by COSO.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 14, 2014
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Accounts receivable, net of reserves of $1,4458@@Dof $278,000 in 2013 and 2012, respecti
Inventories, ne
Other current assets

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Restricted cash and cash equivale
Investment in joint ventur

Other asset

Intangibles, ne

Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expei
Current portion of lon-term obligations, net of discou
Termination fee obligatio
Puregraft divestiture obligatic
Joint Venture purchase obligati
Warrant liability, current

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenues, related pa

Deferred revenue

Option liability

Long-term deferred rer

Long-term obligations, net of discount, less curgrtion

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 5,000,000 start®rized; -0- shares issued and outstandin@13 2

and 201z

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 145,000,000 staardgwrized; 71,305,375 and 65,914,050 shares is

and outstanding in 2013 and 2012, respecti
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

As of December 31

2013 2012

$ 15506,00 $ 25717,00
4,152,001 3,926,001
3,694,001 3,175,001
1,225,001 1,161,001
24,577,00 33,979,00
1,054,001 2,174,001
350,00 350,00(

— 85,00(
2,812,001 2,740,001
9,345,001 —
3,922,001 3,922,001

$ 42,060,00 $ 43,250,00
$ 6,077,000 $ 7,411,001
3,191,001 9,784,001
400,00 —
547,00 —
4,691,001 —
— 418,00
14,906,00 17,613,00
— 638,00

212,00 2,635,001

— 2,250,001

710,00 756,00(
23,100,00 12,903,00
38,928,00 36,795,00
71,00 66,00
303,710,00  281,117,00
256,00 —
(300,905,00) (274,728,00)
3,132,001 6,455,001

$ 42,060,00 $ 43,250,00

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42




Table of Contents

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

Product revenue:
Related part
Third party

Cost of product revenues
Gross profit

Development revenue
Development, related par
Developmen
Government contracts and other

Operating expense
Research and developmt
Sales and marketir
General and administrati
Change in fair value of warrar
Change in fair value of option liability

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Other income (expense
Loss on asset dispos
Loss on debt extinguishme
Interest incomt
Interest expens
Other income (expense), r
Gain on Puregraft divestitu
Gain on previously held equity interest in jointwre
Equity loss from investment in joint venture

Total other income (expense)

Net loss

Other comprehensive income — foreign currency tatios adjustments

Comprehensive loss
Basic and diluted net loss per common share

Basic and diluted weighted average common shares

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
1,845,00! — _
5,277,00 8,709,00! 7,983,001
7,122,001 8,709,00! 7,983,001
3,421,001 4,000,001 3,837,001
3,701,001 4,709,001 4,146,00!
638,00( 2,882,00! 1,992,001
1,179,00! 2,529,00! —
3,257,001 381,00( 21,00(
5,074,001 5,792,00I 2,013,001
17,065,00 13,628,00 10,904,00
9,026,001 9,488,00!I 13,560,00
16,031,00 15,672,00 14,727,00
(418,001 (209,001 (4,360,00)
(2,250,001 340,00( 740,00!
39,454,00 38,919,00 35,571,00
(30,679,00) (28,418,00) (29,412,00)
(257,00() — _
(708,00() — _
4,00(¢ 4,00(¢ 9,00(
(3,396,00i) (3,386,00i) (2,784,00)
(438,001) (314,001) (55,000
4,453,001 — —
4,892,00! — —
(48,000 (165,001 (209,001
4,502,001 (3,861,00i) (3,039,00)
(26,177,00) (32,279,00) (32,451,00)
256,00( —

(25,921,00) _ (32,279,00
0.39) $

) g32,451,(£)
(0.55) $

(0.61)

67,781,36

58,679,68

53,504,03

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Balance at December 31, 20

Stocl-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock under sto
option plan

Issuance of common stock under sto
warrant agreemel

Sale of common stock, n

Allocation of fair value for debt-relate
warrants

Net loss for the year ended Decem

31, 2011

Balance at December 31, 20

Stocl-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock under sto
option plan and employee stock
purchase pla

Issuance of common stock under sto
warrant agreemel

Sale of common stock, n

Net loss for the year ended Decem
31, 2012

Balance at December 31, 20

Stocl-based compensation expel

Issuance of common stock under sto
option plan and employee stock
purchase pla

Sale of common stock, n

Allocation of fair value for debtelated
warrants

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss

Net loss for the year ended Decem

31, 2013

Balance at December 31, 2013

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Total
51,955,26 $ 52,00 $232,819,00 $(209,998,00) $ — $ 22,873,00
— — 3,316,001 — — 3,316,001
222,28 — 767,00( — — 767,00(
340,87: 1,00(¢ 2,081,00! — — 2,082,00!
4,076,26: 4,00( 13,088,00 — — 13,092,00
— — 267,00( — — 267,00(
= = —  (32,451,00) —  (32,451,00)
56,594,68 $ 57,000 $252,338,00 $(242,449,00) $ — $ 9,946,00
— — 3,904,00! — — 3,904,00!
450,51 — 1,157,00 — — 1,157,00
98,85¢ — 256,00( — — 256,00(
8,770,001 9,00( 23,462,00 — — 23,471,00
— — — (32,279,00) — (32,279,00)
65,914,05 $ 66,00 $281,117,00 $(274,728,00) $ — $ 6,455,00
— — 3,608,001 — — 3,608,001
338,32! — 225,00( — — 225,00(
5,053,00! 5,00( 17,811,00 — — 17,816,00
— — 949,00( — — 949,00(
— — — — 256,00( 256,00(
— — —  (26,177,00) —  (26,177,00)
71,305,37 $ 71,00 $303,710,00 $(300,905,00) $ 256,000 $ 3,132,00i

ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE Q@OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of deferred financing costs and debtdunt
Joint Venture acquisition obligation accreti
Provision for doubtful accoun
Change in fair value of warrar
Change in fair value of option liabilit
Stoclk-based compensatic
Equity loss from investment in joint ventt
Loss on asset dispos
Gain on previously held equity interest in Joinniee
Gain on sale of asse
Loss on debt extinguishme
Increases (decreases) in cash caused by changesrating assets and liabilitie
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Other current asse
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued exper
Deferred revenues, related pa
Deferred revenue
Long-term deferred rent

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipir
Proceeds from Puregraft divestitt

License agreement termination

Cash acquired in purchase of Joint Venture

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on lo-term obligations
Proceeds from lor-term obligations
Debt issuance costs and loan f
Payments toward purchase of Joint Ven
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodsaarrants and stock purchase [

Proceeds from sale of common st
Costs from sale of common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&ts
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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For the Years Ended December 31

2013

2012

2011

$ (26,177,00) $ (32,279,00) $ (32,451,00)

1,630,00! 933,00 855,00
893,00( 930,00( 711,00!
204,00( — —

1,141,001 144.,00( 483,00(

(418,001 (209,001 (4,360,00)
(2,250,001 340,00( 740,00(
3,608,001 3,904,001 3,316,00!
48,00( 165,00( 209,00(
257,00( — —
(4,892,00i) — —
(4,453,00i) — —
708,00( — —
(1,209,001 (1,810,001 (670,001
(459,001) 143,00( 60,00(
(24,000 (324,001 (3,000
(854,001) (74,000 (1,206,001
(409,001 1,183,00! (1,436,00)
(638,00() (2,882,00i) (1,992,001
(1,223,00i) (2,609,00i) 315,00t
(46,000 252,00( 106,00(
(34,563,00) (32,193,00) (35,323,00)
(519,001) (1,204,001 (560,001
5,000,001 — _
(800,001) — —
5,00( — —
3,686,001 (1,204,00) (560,001
(22,304,00) (2,692,001 (4,529,001
27,000,00 — 9,444,00!
(1,744,00i) — (719,000
(221,001 — _
225,00( 1,413,001 2,849,001
18,000,00 24,953,00 13,286,00
(184,001 (1,482,001 (194,001
20,772,00 22,192,00 20,137,00
(106,001) — —
(10,211,00) (11,205,00) (15,746,00)
25,717,00 36,922,00 52,668,00

$ 15,506,00 $ 25,717,00 $ 36,922,00
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Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information
Cash paid during period fc
Interest
Final payment fee on lo-term debt

Supplemental schedule of nc-cash investing and financing activities
Fair value of warrants allocated to additional -in capital
Capital equipment lea:
Fair value of intangible assets acqui
Fair value of tangible assets acqui
Joint Venture purchase obligati
Fair value of previously held equity interest afaisition date

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
2,252,000 $ 2,497,000 $ 2,031,00
1,078,00! — 419,00(
949,000 $ — 3 267,001
— — 79,00(
9,394,001 — —
260,00( — —
4,709,00 — —
4,928,00 — —

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46




Table of Contents

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

1. Organization and Operations
The Company

Cytori (NASDAQ: CYTX) is developing cell therapiésr cardiovascular disease and for the repair fiftssue injuries and burns.
Cytori's Cell Therapy utilizes a patient’s own agtje derived stem and regenerative cells, uniqyaiynized and formulated for specific
therapeutic applications.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemientade our accounts and those of our subsidiaddksignificant intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminatechagdsnent evaluates its investments on an individasis for purposes of determining
whether or not consolidation is appropriate. tamces where we do not demonstrate control thrdegision-making ability and/or a
greater than 50% ownership interest, we accourthforelated investments under the cost or equéthad, depending upon management’
evaluation of our ability to exercise and retagngicant influence over the investee. Our investtria the Olympus-Cytori, Inc. joint
venture has been accounted for under the equithodeif accounting (see note 4 for further details).

We have four subsidiaries located in Japan, Swémdr India and Spain that have been establishaethply to support our sales and
marketing activities in these regions.

Certain Risks and Uncertainties

Our prospects are subject to the risks and unoéigaifrequently encountered by companies in thky stages of development and
commercialization, especially those companies fiidig evolving and technologically advanced indiggtisuch as the biotech/medical
device field. Our future viability largely depenols our ability to complete development of new pradiwand receive regulatory approvals
for those products. No assurance can be giverothatew products will be successfully developedutatory approvals will be granted,
acceptance of these products will be achieved.dEivelopment of medical devices for specific thewtigeapplications is subject to a
number of risks, including research, regulatory araaketing risks. There can be no assurance thatemelopment stage products will
overcome these hurdles and become commerciallyevaaiu/or gain commercial acceptance.

Capital Availability

We incurred net losses of $26,177,000, $32,279%0@0$32,451,000 for the years ended December 3B, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
We have an accumulated deficit of $300,905,000f &ecember 31, 2013. Additionally, we have usetdcash of $34,563,000,
$32,193,000 and $35,323,000 to fund our operatitigities for years ended December 31, 2013, 20122911, respectivelyTo date,
these operating losses have been funded primaoity butside sources of invested capital and grosfitg During 2013 and 2012, we
expanded our commercialization activities while @itaneously pursuing available financing sourcesuigport operations and growth.

We have had, and we will likely continue to have paigoing need to raise additional cash from oatslirces to fund our future
operations.

Webelieveourplanstoraiseaduitialcashfromoutside sourcesahdgcessary, ourcostcontainm e nteftfo
aresufficienttoallowustocomteoperationsforthenexttwelvemhs. Thisincludes minimum liquidit y gair
ementsoftheLoanandSecurityAgmeentthatrequireustomakeprinalmndinterestpaymentsof$868,0000
ermonthbeginninginAugust20l4andmainatleastthreemonthsofcashhoandtoavoidaneventofdefault
undertheloanagreement. Our plamcslud e pursuingadditionalcas hth gphustrategiccorporateparthershap s
nd possibly engaging in f utur e sa | es of e yyias w e Il a s o ur g ross profit s. While wave anestablishedhistoryofrén s
gcapitalthroughtheseplatformsidavearecurrentlyinvolvedinnepati onswith multipleparties,thergno
guaranteethatadequatefund swdldvailablewhenneededfromaddiiaoldebtorequityfinancing,dewp
mentandcommercializationpartrsenips,increasedresultsofopematis,orfromothersources, oronme
acceptabletous.lfoureffortstbt@insufficientadditionalfundsamna s uccessful,wewouldbere quir eodltel
ay,scaleback,orelimnatesomediphourresearchorproductdeve lopmt, manufacturingoperations, admin
strativeoperations,includingounployeebase,andclinicalorreg ulat tivities, whichcouldnegative | yfaec
tourabiltytoachievecertaincorpatregoals.
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The Company continues to seek additional capitaluiph product revenues, strategic transactionijdimg extension opportunities under
the awarded BARDA contract, and from other finagcfternatives.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statementonformity with U.S. generally accepted acdmgnprinciples requires
management to make estimates and assumptionsiadféice reported amounts of assets and liabiléies disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial stadens, and the reported amounts of revenue and sepahuring the reporting period. Our
most significant estimates and critical accounpioticies involve recognizing revenue, valuing tlogusition of the Olympus-Cytori Joint
Venture, valuing warrants, determining the assuomgtused in measuring share-based compensationsexpad valuing allowances for
doubtful accounts and inventories.

Actual results could differ from these estimatesindigement’s estimates and assumptions are reviegathrly, and the effects of
revisions are reflected in the Consolidated Firarfstatements in the periods they are determinbe twecessary.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with ndties of three months or less at the time of pasghto be cash equivalents. Investment
with original maturities of three months or lesattivere included with and classified as cash ast eguivalents totaled $4,644,000 and
$6,145,000 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, rigplgc We maintain our cash at insured finanaiatitutions. The combined account
balances at each institution periodically exceedid-iDsurance coverage, and as a result, thereameentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of FDIC limits.

Short-term Investments

We invest excess cash in money market funds, higiid debt instruments of financial institutioasd corporations with strong credit
ratings, and in United States government obligatide have established guidelines relative to difieation and maturities to maintain
safety and liquidity. These guidelines are perialiiycreviewed and modified to take advantage afdeein yields and interest rates. After
considering current market conditions, and in otdaninimize our risk, management has electedweshall excess funds in money
market funds and other highly liquid investmentst tre appropriately classified as cash equivakentsf December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash consists of cash and cash equisdield in a letter of credit account pursuant kesse agreement entered into on April 2,
2010 (amended November 4, 2011) for leasing ofgntgpat 3020 and 3030 Callan Road, San Diego, @ald. The lease agreement
required us to execute a letter of credit for $880,naming the landlord as a beneficiary. Thedetteredit was issued in July 2010 and
required us to maintain $350,000 as restricted &astihe duration of the lease, which expires Oetdti, 2017.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoicedusmtand do not bear interest. Amounts collectedamounts receivable are included in
net cash provided by operating activities in thesmidated statements of cash flows. The Comparigtaias an allowance for doubtful
accounts for estimated losses inherent in its atsaceivable portfolio. In establishing the regdiallowance, management considers
historical losses adjusted to take into accountecimarket conditions and our customers’ financtaddition, the amount of receivables in
dispute, and the current receivables aging anaégotipayment patterns. Account balances are chaffjegainst the allowance after all
means of collection have been exhausted and tleafaltfor recovery is considered remote.
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Inventories

Inventories include the cost of material, laboid amerhead, and are stated at the lower of costrdeed on the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method, or market. We periodically evaluate owhand stock and make appropriate provisions forstogk deemed excess or obsolete.
Manufacturing costs resulting from lower than “naifrproduction levels are expensed as incurred.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, netoofnaulated depreciation. Depreciation expense, winicdudes the amortization of
capitalized leasehold improvements, is providedfoa straight-line basis over the estimated udies of the assets, or the life of the
lease, whichever is shorter, and range from tlodize years. When assets are sold or otherwigmded of, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the adsa@nd the resulting gain or loss is includedgarations. Maintenance and repairs
are charged to operations as incurred.

Impairment

We assess certain of our long-lived assets, suphoperty and equipment and intangible assets oiagr goodwill, for potential
impairment when there is a change in circumstatiegsndicates carrying values of assets may noebeverable. Such long-lived assets
are deemed to be impaired when the undiscountddficags expected to be generated by the asseséet group) are less than the asset'’s
carrying amount. Any required impairment loss wobédmeasured as the amount by which the assetisrgaralue exceeds its fair value,
and would be recorded as a reduction in the cagryatue of the related asset and a charge to apgmtpense. We recognized no
impairment losses during any of the periods preskimt these financial statements.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Gooduwill is reviewed for impairment annually or redrequently when events or changes in circumstaimckcate that fair value of the
reporting unit has been reduced to less than ityiog value. We perform our impairment test aniyuduring the fourth quarter. In
September 2011, the FASB issued revised guidansiengify how entities test goodwill for impairmetdnder the revised guidance,
entities have the option to first assess qualiafirctors to determine whether it is more likelgrttnot that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount as a basis fardehing whether it is necessary to perform the-stap goodwill impairment test descrit
in Accounting Standards Codification Topic 350.alfier assessing qualitative factors, an entitgmeines it is not more likely than not t
the fair value of a reporting unit is less tharciisrying amount, then performing the two-step immpant test is unnecessary. If deemed
necessary, a two-step test is used to identifpttential impairment and to measure the amounboflgill impairment, if any. The first
step is to compare the fair value of the reporting with its carrying amount, including goodwilf.the fair value of the reporting unit
exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill is consideretimpaired; otherwise, there is an indicatiost ipoodwill may be impaired and the
amount of the loss, if any, is measured by perfogsitep two. Under step two, the impairment Idsany, is measured by comparing the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwilitly the carrying amount of goodwill. We completad assessment as of November 30,
2013, and concluded that no impairment existed.

Separable intangible assets that have finite usighd continue to be amortized over their respectiseful lives. Intangibles, consisting of
patents and core technology purchased in the atignisf StemSource, Inc. in 2002, were amortizadhctraight-line basis over their
expected useful lives of ten years, and are fultpdized as of December 31, 2012.

As part of the May 2013 acquisition of the JoinhWee, we acquired intangible assets which corssistenarily of contractual license
rights that had previously enabled the Joint Vemtarconduct development and manufacturing actsipiertaining to certain aspects of
Cytori's Celution ® technology. The useful life thfe identifiable intangible assets was estimateskd on the assumed future economic
benefit expected to be received from the assetstddhnology valued at $9,394,000 will be amortiaeer its useful life of seven years,
based on the quarterly revenue forecasted for theaes. As of December 31, 2013, we have amor84€d000. The estimated aggregate
amortization expense will be $67,000 for 2014, $86@ for 2015, $673,000 for 2016, $1,557,000 fat72(63,348,000 for 2018 and
$3,348,000 thereafter.
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The changes in the carrying amounts of other inétefand finitelife intangible assets and goodwill for the yearded December 31, 20

and 2012 are as follows:

Other intangibles, ne

December 31, 201

Beginning balanc $ —
Acquisition of JV Intangible 9,394,00!
Amortization (49,000

Ending balance 9,345,00!

Goodwill, net:

Beginning balanc 3,922,001
Increase (decrease) —

Ending balance 3,922,00!

Total goodwill and other intangibles, net $ 13,267,00

Other intangibles, ne

December 31, 201

Beginning balanc $ 192,00(
Amortization (192,000

Ending balance —

Goodwill, net:

Beginning balanc 3,922,001
Increase (decrease) —

Ending balance 3,922,00i

Total goodwill and other intangibles, net $ 3,922,001

Warrant Liability

Warrants with exercise price reset features (doovmd protection) were accounted for liabilitiestwéhanges in the fair value included in
net loss for the respective periods. The fair @alfithe liability associated with the warrantshatiis reset feature was $0 as of Decembel
31, 2013, $418,000, $209,000 and $4,360,000 irsgadm the change in fair value of warrants wasraed for the years ended Decen
31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Changes in the fair value of the warrants weregezed in earnings until such time as the warramie exercised or they expired. These
warrants expired as of August 2013. The warrantgewet traded in an active securities market, ansuah, we estimated the fair value of
these warrants using an option pricing model wighfollowing assumptions:

As of
December 31, 201
Expected tern 0.61 year:
Common stock market pric $ 2.8C
Risk-free interest rat 0.11%
Expected volatility 73.8¢%
Resulting fair value (per warrar $ 0.2C

Expected volatility was based primarily on histatigolatility. Historical volatility was computedsing daily pricing observations for
recent periods that corresponded to the expecteddethe warrants. We believe this method produareéstimate that was representative
of our expectations of future volatility over thepected term of these warrants. The expected life mased on the remaining contractual
term of the warrants. The risk-free interest rates the interest rate for treasury constant matimttruments published by the Federal
Reserve Board that was closest to the expecteddktine warrants. The fair value of these warraitgs incorporated our assumptions
about future equity issuances and their impadteéadiown-round protection feature.
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Fluctuations in the fair value of the warrants wienpacted by unobservable inputs, most signifigathte assumption with regards to fut
equity issuances and its impact to the down-rounteption feature. Significant increases (decrgasethis input in isolation would have
resulted in a significantly higher (lower) fair ual measurement.

Revenue Recognition
Product Sales

We recognize revenue from product sales when th@yimg fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuaséwidence of an arrangement ex
(ii) delivery has occurred, (iii) the price to thestomer is fixed or determinable and (iv) collectof the resulting accounts receivable is
reasonably assured.

For all sales, we use a binding purchase ordersayreed agreement as evidence of an arrangentahie dther revenue recognition crite
are met, revenue for these product sales is rezedgnipon delivery to the customer, as all risksraméards of ownership have been
substantively transferred to the customer at tbattp For sales to customers who arrange for aadage the shipping process, we
recognize revenue upon shipment from our facilit&tspping and handling costs that are billed tocustomers are classified as
revenue. The customer’s obligation to pay andothgnent terms are set at the time of delivery aachat dependent on the subsequent
use or resale of our products. For sales whemewadinue recognition criteria are not met, reveswteferred and related inventory remains
on our books.

For sales that include multiple deliverables, sasisales of our StemSource® Cell Bank (cell bamk)account for products or services
(deliverables) separately rather than as a comhinéd Stem cell banks typically consist of a cdewparray of equipment, proprietary
knowledge, license rights, and services, including or more StemSource® devices, a cryogenic fregmasuring and monitoring
equipment, and a database patient tracking systeaadition, we typically provide consulting, inb&ion, and training services. Web
hosting, technical support and maintenance sergicegenerally provided for a period of up to orarysubsequent to the date of sale.
FASB authoritative guidance requires an evaluatibiimese deliverables to determine the approptiaigs of accounting” for purposes of
revenue recognition. Each cell bank is customingatovide the best solution for the customer. @&nwejing on customers’ needs, all or
combination of the following units of accountingliveipply to cell bank transactions:

« initial consulting services;

« license rights and standard operating procedures;
« equipment and supplies;

« installation services;

« training services;

« database hosting services;

« technical support services; and

« Mmaintenance services.

FASB authoritative guidance establishes a sellimgephierarchy for determining the selling priceaodeliverable, which is based on: (a)
vendor-specific objective evidence (“WSOE"); (b)rthparty evidence (“TPE"); or (c¢) management esti@s. This guidance requires
arrangement consideration to be allocated at tepition of the arrangement to all deliverables gigie relative selling price method. For
our cell bank sales, we establish relative seltiriges for all deliverables based on vendor-spedjfiotes for comparable services when
available. In the absence of VSOE, we use congpstiproducts or services considered largely iftangeable with our own or
managemens$ best estimate. Revenue allocated to each uaitasfunting is calculated and recognized baseti®retative selling price
each deliverable. Future services such as welnigcsmtd ongoing maintenance are deferred and réoedjmto income as the services are
provided, generally over one year following thetatiation of the equipment.

Concentration of Significant Customers & GeographBales

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our salesaceacentrated with respect to one distributor ctvltiomprised 26% of our product
revenue recognized. Two distributors and one tizestomer accounted for 55% of total outstanditmpants receivable as of December
31, 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, our salesaoscentrated with respect to one direct custowlgich comprised 12% of our
product revenue recognized. Two direct customedsome distributor accounted for 39% of total ansling accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2012.
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For the year ended December 31, 2011, our salesaoscentrated with respect to one direct custowlgich comprised 14% of our
product revenue recognized. Two direct customerswanted for 27% of total outstanding accountsivadéde as of December 31, 2011.

Product revenues, classified by geographic locadomas follows:

Years ended

2013 2012 2011

Product % of Product % of Product % of

Revenues Total Revenues Total Revenues Total
North America $ 1,079,001 15% $ 1,143,00! 13% $ 1,347,00 17%
Japar 2,109,001 30% 4,352,001 5C% 3,202,001 40%
Europe 1,240,00! 17% 2,004,00!I 23% 1,973,00! 25%
Other countries 2,694,001 38% 1,210,00I 14% 1,461,00! 18%
Total product revenues $ 7,122,00! 10(% $ 8,709,00! 10(% $ 7,983,00i 10(%

Research and Development

We earn revenue for performing tasks under researdtdevelopment agreements with both commerctatemses, such as Olympus and
Senko, and governmental agencies like the U.S. firapat of Health and Human Service’s Biomedical anlsed Research and
Development Authority (BARDA). Revenue earned undlevelopment agreements with commercial enterpiselassified as
development revenues. Revenues derived from reseiment of direct out-of-pocket expenses for reseensts associated with
government contracts are recorded as governmetracviand other within development revenues. Quwent contract revenue is
recorded at the gross amount of the reimburseniems. costs associated with these reimbursementefeeted as a component of
research and development expense in our statefeoperations.

In the third quarter of 2012, we were awarded draghto develop a new countermeasure for thermialdvalued at up to $106 million
with BARDA. The initial base period includes $4.7limn over two years and covers preclinical resbaaind continued development of
Cytori’'s Celution®system to improve cell processing. The additiomaltiact options, if fully executed, cover clinicEvelopment throuc
FDA approval under a device-based PMA regulatotinway. This is a cost reimbursement contract atedae government contract
revenue was recorded at the gross amount of resament starting in the fourth quarter of 2012.

We received funds from Olympus and Olympus-Cyto, during 2005 and 2006. We recorded upfroes fiotaling $28,311,000 as
deferred revenues, related party. In exchangthée proceeds, we agreed to (a) provide OlympusriCinc. an exclusive and perpetual
license to our Celution® System device technolagy eertain related intellectual property, and (f[mvide future development
contributions related to commercializing the Celo® System platform. The license and development seswvivere not separable and i
result the recognition of this deferred amountea®nue required achievement of service relatedstoites, under a proportional
performance methodology. Revenue was recognizétkeasbove mentioned R&D milestones were complédédhe amounts received
and deferred, we recognized the last remainingldpugent revenue of $638,000 during the three moatited March 31, 2013 as a result
of the United States Court of Appeals upholdingRB&\’s previous determination that our cell prodegsievices were not substantially
equivalent to the cited predicate devices. Thegrition of revenue associated with this evenetf the completion of our efforts
expended to use commercially reasonable efforédtain device regulatory approvals in the Uniteat&t as it pertains to the 510(k)
pathway. During the year ended December 31, 20&@2ecognized $2,882,000 of revenue associatedowitlarrangement with Olympus
as a result of two milestones for the APOLLO andERRSE clinical trials. As of December 31, 2013 réhare no deferred amounts under
this contract.

Refer to Note 8 for discussion about our arrangemith Senko.
Warranty

Beginning in March 2008, we began sales and shipsrafrour Celution® 800/CRS System to the Europmah Asia-Pacific
reconstructive surgery market. In September 2@@8completed installation of our first StemSourde@l Bank. We are selling medical
device equipment for use with humans, which isettied to exhaustive and highly controlled spedificacompliance and fitness testing
and validation procedures before it can be appréeesale to help ensure that the products wilfrbe of defects. We believe that the
rigorous nature of the testing and compliance &ffserves to minimize the likelihood of defectsriaterial or workmanship such that
recognition of a warranty obligation is not justii at this time. Accordingly, we have not recordesglarranty reserve for our Celution®
800/CRS System and StemSource® Cell Bank produetduring the years ended December 31, 2013, 204 2@11.
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Research and Development

Research and development expenditures, which amgeth to operations in the period incurred, inclodgts associated with the design,
development, testing and enhancement of our preduegulatory fees, the purchase of laboratory lgeg@mnd pre-clinical and clinical
studies as well as salaries and benefits for meaieh and development employees.

Also included in research and development experatitare costs incurred to support government cotmeambursement and costs
incurred in connection with our development arrangets with Olympus and Senko.

Expenditures related to the Joint Venture with Qdysincluded costs that were necessary to sugppaddmmercialization of future
generation devices, including the next generatieluti>on® System. These development activities, Wwitiegan in November 2005,
concluded during the first quarter of 2013, anddienot incur any Joint Venture development costsequent to our acquisition, in May
2013, of Olympus’ 50% interest in the Joint Venture

Our government contract with BARDA to develop a remntermeasure for thermal burns entitles us &difging expenditures of up to
$4.7 million during the initial base period. Weimred $3,053,000 in qualified expenses for the gaded December 31, 2013 and
$331,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012reTwere no comparable expenditures in 2011.

Deferred Financing Costs and Other Debt-Related Cds

Deferred financing costs are capitalized and amexditio interest expense over the term of the astsacdebt instrument. We evaluate the
terms of the debt instruments to determine if anpedded or freestanding derivatives or conversatuies exist. We allocate the
aggregate proceeds of the debt between the waaadtthe debt based on their relative fair valuHse fair value of the warrant issued to
the Lenders was calculated utilizing the Black-Ses@ption pricing model. We are accreting the ltastidiscount over the term of the
debt through maturity date using the effectivenesé method. If the maturity of the debt is acked because of default or early debt
repayment, then the amortization or accretion whealdccelerated.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and lialgifitare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwe=firthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tdi cegry forwards. Deferred tax assets and litéddl are measured using enacted tax |
expected to apply to taxable income (loss) in th&ry in which those temporary differences are grpeo be recovered or settled. Due to
our history of loss, a full valuation allowance wasognized against our deferred tax assets.

Stock Based Compensation

We recognize the fair value method of all sharestlgsayment awards in our statements of operatie@stbe requisite vesting period of
each award. We estimate the fair value of thesiermpusing the Black-Scholes option pricing maakthg assumptions for expected
volatility, expected term, and risk-free interegter Expected volatility is based primarily ontbigal volatility and is computed using
daily pricing observations for recent periods tt@atrespond to the expected term of the options.eMpected life is based on the expected
term of the options. The ridkee interest rate is the interest rate for treasmstruments with maturities that approximate expected tern

Segment Information

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid 2DDf our financial results relate to regeneeatell technology, therefore we
report our results as a single segment.
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Loss Per Share

Basic per share data is computed by dividing negrime or loss applicable to common stockholdersbynteighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Dilper share data is computed by dividing net incomess applicable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of comshares outstanding during the period increasétttude, if dilutive, the number
of additional common shares that would have bed¢standing as calculated using the treasury stodkade Potential common shares w
related entirely to outstanding but unexercisedoogtand warrants for all periods presented.

We have excluded all potentially dilutive secustigncluding unvested performance-based restritigek, from the calculation of diluted
loss per share attributable to common stockholfterthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, ahtl, 28 their inclusion would be
antidilutive. Potentially dilutive common shareskided from the calculations of diluted loss peare were 17,173,374, 17,426,976 and
19,476,425 for the years ended December 31, 2@2 and 2011, respectively.

3. Partnership Agreement with Lorem Vascular

On October 29, 2013, we entered into a partnesshifpLorem Vascular, to commercialize Cytori Celérapy for the cardiovascular,
renal and diabetes markets, in China, Hong Kondaia, Singapore and Australia (License/Supplyeggnent), and a Common Stock
Purchase Agreement. On January 30, 2014 we eriteécethe Amended and Restated License/Supply Agee¢émith Lorem Vascular (tt
“Restated Agreement”) which restated the Licenggp8uAgreement in its entirety and expanded theriged field to all uses excepting
alopecia (hair loss). Under the Restated Agreenbemem Vascular committed to pay up to $500 millioficense fees in the form of
revenue milestones. In addition, Lorem is requiceday us 30% of their gross profits in China, Hétuing and Malaysia for the term of
the agreement. In addition, Lorem Vascular haseajte purchase the Cytori Celution® System and woables under the Restated
Agreement. Pursuant to the related Common StooshR@se Agreement, Cytori sold Lorem Vascular 8iamilshares of Cytori common
stock at $3.00 per share for a total of $24 millidhe Equity purchased was closed in two instalbsighe first half in November 2013,
and the second half in January 2014.

In addition, Lorem Vascular initially committed purchase approximately $7 million in Celution® dms and consumables, with an
approximately $2 million order already placed, andapproximately $5 million order to be placedduling regulatory approval in
China. Lorem and Cytori have implemented a regwaplan for China and anticipate approval in 2Qb4connection with the Common
Stock Purchase Agreement, the right to appointoamber of our Board of directors was granted toHUT.. Lim, Chairman of Lorem
Vascular. We expect Mr. Lim to appoint a membesdose on our Board of Directors in the second 6ia#014.

4. Transactions with Olympus Corporation
Acquisition of Olympus’ Interest in the Joint Vaetu

In 2005, we entered into a joint venture and othlted agreements (the “Joint Venture Agreementgt) Olympus. The Joint Venture
was owned equally by Olympus and us. We had pusiycaccounted for our interests in the Joint Vemtising the equity method of
accounting, since we could not exert significafiuence over the Joint Venture’s operations.

On May 8, 2013, Cytori and Olympus agreed to teat@rthe Olympus-Cytori Joint Venture (Terminatiogréement), and Cytori acquired
the remaining 50% equity interest in the Joint Weatfrom Olympus. The termination of the relatioipsand purchase of Olympustjuity
shares of the Joint Venture allows Cytori to regalhcontrol of the manufacturing rights for thel@tion ® system. The purpose of the
acquisition is to gain more flexibility on the mdacturing process and associated costs, enablerhigargins, and speed the transition to
the critical next-generation systems. In connectiith the Termination Agreement, the assets acduliabilities assumed, and the
Company’s previously held equity interest were rded at fair value. For valuation purposes Cydetermined the acquisition date (the
date on which Cytori effectively gained full contad the equity interest previously held by Olymptsbe May 27, 2013. The
remeasurement of the previously held equity inteatthe acquisition date resulted in a net gaii4p892,000 that was recorded in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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As consideration for the Termination Agreement,d@iytan choose from alternative payment optiondedmed in the Termination
Agreement. The payment options call for a minimofr$4,500,000 up to a maximum of $16,000,000 tpdid by Cytori to Olympus in
installments over periods ranging from one yeaixoyears depending on the option selected by tmagany. Installment payments will
be calculated quarterly based on 5% of Cytori'ssgreales receipts for all products sold. If Cyteceives an aggregate $35,000,000 in
cash through strategic or financing arrangementisglthe first year of the Termination Agreemenytd@i would be required to pay
$4,500,000 (minus installment payments previousyle) upon request of Olympus as full and completssideration under the
Agreement.

The fair value of the Joint Venture, including tbentified intangible assets acquired, considenatiansferred, and Cytori’s previously
held equity interest, was estimated from a marketigipant perspective, using valuation technigo&sed on the income approach for
measuring fair value. Specifically, an excessiegsimethodology was employed using primarily Le3/&hir value inputs. The intangik
assets acquired consisted primarily of contradtoahse rights that had previously enabled thetdéémture to conduct development and
manufacturing activities pertaining to certain aspef Cytori’'s Celution ® technology. The uselité of the identifiable intangible assets
was estimated based on the assumed future ecobhemédit expected to be received from the assetsut$ used in the valuation included
various market participant assumptions in ordgartgect potential future cash flows, discounted atite commensurate with the risk

involved.
Useful Life Estimated
(in years) Fair Value
Intangible asset:
Developed technolog 7 $ 9,394,00

The Company calculated the fair value of the pusel@nsideration on the acquisition date to be2B0®0. This was determined using a
weighted probability assessment of the paymenboptavailable to Cytori. Present value risk-a@jdstiscount rates applied to the
purchase consideration ranged from 9.75% to 12.75P fair value calculation of the purchase comsitlon resulted in a discount of
$1,072,000, which was being amortized to interepease over a weighted average expected term gh&. On a quarterly basis, the
Company reassesses the probabilities of the vapaysient options and expected term. Changes iexjpected term and the remaining
discount amount as a result of the reassessmdriaviecognized prospectively as an adjustmeniterést expense. Upon final settlement
of the purchase obligation, any difference betwtheramount paid and the carrying amount of thelmsge obligation will be recorded as a
gain or loss on extinguishment of the liability. Asesult of this reassessment as of Decembel033B, the Company believes it will settle
the obligation for a total of $4.5 million (lessyaimstallment payments already made), which wilulein a gain of $0.6 million upon
settlement.

There was no revenue or earnings from the Jointufenncluded in our consolidated results subsetioetime date of acquisition. Had the
acquisition occurred on January 1, 2013, consdaitlatvenue would not have been affected, but owsalmated net loss would have been
reduced by $48,000, the amount of our year to egbity loss from investment in Joint Venture.

The following table summarizes the fair value af #ssets acquired and liabilities assumed at tleeodl@cquisition (in thousands):

Estimated

Fair Value
Current assetl $ 23¢€
Property and equipme 26C
Intangible assets 9,39/
Total assets acquire 9,89(
Accrued and other current liabilities (39
Total fair value of the Joint Venture $ 9,851
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Acquisitiontelated transaction costs are not included as comps of consideration transferred but have beeownted for as expenses
the period in which the costs are incurred.

Put/Calls and Guarantees

Prior to the termination of the Joint Venture thef&holders’ Agreement between Cytori and Olympuosided that in certain specified
circumstances of our insolvency or if we experiehaehange in control, Olympus would have the ggbt(i) repurchase our interests in
the Joint Venture at the fair value of such inteyes (ii) sell its own interests in the Joint Vierg to Cytori (the “Put”) at the higher of (a)
$22,000,000 or (b) the Put’s fair value.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the fair value efRiat was $2,250,000 and $1,910,000, respectivigte. Put, as a previously existing
contractual relationship between Olympus and Cytaasis cancelled as a result of the Joint Venturaitetion in May 2013 and therefore
its related fair value decreased to zero as atreSthe termination. Fluctuations in the Put \eahre recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as change in fair valptdn liabilities.

5. Sale and Exclusive License/Supply Agreement with Biini Technologies LLC

On July 30, 2013, we entered into a Sale and Eixaudscense/Supply Agreement with Bimini TechnolegLLC (“Bimini”), pursuant

to which we sold to Bimini substantially all of thssets (other than certain retained rights aeddies) of our Puregraft® product line, a
series of standalone fat transplantation prodinetswere developed to improve the predictabilitpofcomes for autologous fat grafting
and aesthetic body contouring. The aggregate \dltiee consideration paid by Bimini at the execati the agreement was $5.0
million.

In connection with the sale, Bimini granted to @@mpany an exclusive, perpetual, royalty beariognse to market and sell the Puregraf
products for use in combination with adipose deatikegenerative cells, and non-exclusive rightaug® in connection with the Company’s
licensed cell and tissue banks (in addition toater€ompany retained ownership rights in the tetdgy). The Company will supply
Puregraft products to Bimini on an interim basisiluhe Company transfers the manufacturing ofRloeegraft products to Bimini. After
the transfer, Bimini will supply the Puregraft prats to the Company.

Pursuant to the sale agreement, the Company tagralsted to Bimini the global, exclusive, perpétireevocable royalty bearing license
to purchase from Cytori, use and sell the Celuti@y®tem products for Alopecia (hair loss). Cytoill supply Celution devices and
consumable sets to Bimini, and Bimini will be respible for all costs associated with commercialediggment in the Alopecia market.

The agreement includes certain obligations to bfopaed by the Company on the behalf of Bimini, ethincludes transferring the
manufacturing of Puregraft products to an agreeshubird party on or before December 31, 2014 amiding. The Company recorded a
gain on the Puregraft divestiture of $4.5 milliorthe accompanying Consolidated Statements of @pesawhich is net of $547,000 in
estimated future transfer and training obligatidsisini is obligated to make certain additional @sione payments to the Company (in
an aggregate amount of up to $10.0 million), caygimt upon the achievement of certain milestonesingl to Bimini's gross profits

from sales of the Puregraft products.

6. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements are market-based measusmenentity-specific measurements. Therefaie Malue measurements are
determined based on the assumptions that marktipants would use in pricing the asset or liapiliWe follow a three-level hierarchy
to prioritize the inputs used in the valuation t&ques to derive fair values. The basis for failue measurements for each level withir
hierarchy is described below:

» Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for idegitassets or liabilities.

» Level 2: Quoted prices for similar assets or liéi# in active markets; quoted prices for idertaasimilar instruments in markets tl
are not active; and model-derived valuations inclwhll significant inputs are observable in activarkets.

« Level 3: Valuations derived from valuation techregun which one or more significant inputs are wesbable in active markets.

56




Table of Contents

The following table provides a summary of the retegd assets and liabilities that we measure avédiie on a recurring basis:

Balance as o Basis of Fair Value Measurement:
December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 4,644,000 $ 4,644,000 $ — $ —
Balance as of Basis of Fair Value Measurements
December 31, 201 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 6,145,000 $ 6,145,000 $ — 3 —
Liabilities:
Put option liability $ (2,250,00) $ — $ — $ (2,250,001
Warrant liability $ (418,000 $ — $ — $ (418,000

We use quoted market prices to determine the #direvof our cash equivalents, which consist of nganarket funds and therefore are
classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

We value our put liability using an option pricititgeory based simulation analysis (i.e., a MontddCgimulation).

The following table summarizes the change in owel8 put option liability value:

Year ended Year ended
Put option liability December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Beginning balanc $ (2,250,000 $ (1,910,001
Decrease (increase) in fair value recognized eraing expenses 2,250,00! (340,000
Ending balance $ — $ (2,250,001

Common stock purchase warrants issued in conneafibrour August 2008 private equity placement dbtnade in an active securities
market, and as such, we estimate the fair valdkasie warrants using the option pricing model. &ofrthe significant inputs are
observable in active markets, such as common stacket price, volatility, and risk free rate. Thag value of these warrants also
incorporate our assumptions about future equityaisses and their impact to the dovaund protection feature. Because some of the §

to our valuation model are either not observablateg prices or are not derived principally froncorroborated by observable market dat:
by correlation or other means, the warrant liapiktclassified as Level 3 in the fair value hietgy.

The following table summarizes the change in owel& warrant liability value:

Year ended Year ended
Warrant liability December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Beginning balanc $ (418,000 $ (627,000
Decrease (increase) in fair value recognized eraing expenses 418,00( 209,00(
Ending balance $ — $ (418,001

No other assets or liabilities are measured awlire on a recurring basis, or have been meagtrf@it value on a non-recurring basis
subsequent to initial recognition, on the accompangonsolidated balance sheet as of December(@B. 2
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7. Fair Value
Financial Instruments

We disclose fair value information about all fineénstruments, whether or not recognized in thkbce sheet, for which it is practicable
to estimate fair value. The disclosures of estiohdér value of financial instruments at Decembgr 3013 and 2012 were determined
using available market information and appropnatiiation methods. Considerable judgment is necgssanterpret market data and
develop estimated fair value. The use of differaatket assumptions or estimation methods may hawaterial effect on the estimated
value amounts.

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalantgunts receivable, inventories, other curresgtas accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities approximate faiugalue to the short-term nature of these instrusnent

We utilize quoted market prices to estimate thevialue of our fixed rate debt, when availablequbted market prices are not available,
we calculate the fair value of our fixed rate de#sed on a currently available market rate assuthm¢pans are outstanding through
maturity and considering the collateral. In deterimg the current market rate for fixed rate debhaket spread is added to the quoted
yields on federal government treasury securitigh similar terms to the debt.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the aggregate diievand the carrying value of the Company’s fireé long-term debt were as

follows:
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Carrying Carrying
Fair Value Value Fair Value Value
Fixed rate lon-term debr $ 26,207,000 $ 26,241,000 $ 22,425,00 $ 22,608,00

The fair value of debt is classified as Level 3Ha fair value hierarchy as some of the inputsulovaluation model are either not
observable quoted prices or are not derived pratlgifrom or corroborated by observable market dgtaorrelation or other means.

Carrying value is net of debt discount of $2,379,88d $917,000 as of December 31, 2013 and 2042ecévely.
Nonfinancial Assets and Liabilities

We apply fair value techniques on a non-recurriagi®associated with: (1) valuing potential imp&ninlosses related to goodwill which
are accounted for pursuant to the authoritativel@uie for intangibles—goodwill and other; and (&uing potential impairment losses
related to long-lived assets which are accountegdiosuant to the authoritative guidance for propgaant and equipment.

All of our goodwill is associated with regeneratisal technology, and we determine the fair valasdal on a combination of inputs
including the market capitalization of the compaaywell as Level 3 inputs such as discounted ftagls which are not observable from
the market, directly or indirectly. We conduct garodwill impairment analysis annually as of Novem®@ each year, or upon the
occurrence of certain triggering events. No suiggéring events occurred during the year ended mbee 31, 2013. Historically, the fair
value has significantly exceeded its carrying value

We test for the impairment of our long-lived assel®n triggering events occur and such impairméaty, is measured at fair value. The
inputs for fair value of our long lived assets wbbke based on Level 3 inputs as data used forfairchalue calculations would be based
on discounted cash flows using one or more siganficinobservable inputs. No triggering events aeclduring the year ended Decembe
31, 2013.

As part of the May 2013 acquisition of the JoinhWee, we acquired intangible assets which corsistenarily of contractual license
rights that had previously enabled the Joint Ventarconduct development and manufacturing actsipiertaining to certain aspects of
Cytori’s Celution ® technology. The useful life thie identifiable intangible assets was estimateskd on the assumed future economic
benefit expected to be received from the assetstddhnology valued at $9,394,000 will be amortiaeer its useful life of seven years,
based on the quarterly revenue forecasted for teamsies.
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8. Thin Film Japan Distribution Agreement

In 2004, the Company entered into a Distributiomefggnent with Senko. Under this agreement, we gdatat Senko an exclusive license
to sell and distribute certain Thin Film produatslapan and are responsible for the completioheoiritial regulatory application to the
Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare (MHLW) andromercialization of the Thin Film product line inpdm. The Distribution
Agreement with Senko was to commence upon “commlkzation.” Essentially, commercialization occwien one or more Thin Film
product registrations are completed with the MHLYAL the inception of this arrangement, we receiae®l 500,000 license fee which was
recorded as deferred revenues in 2004. Half ofitbase fee was refundable if the parties agreencercialization is not achievable and a
proportional amount was refundable if we termirthearrangement, other than for material breac&dmko, before three years post-
commercialization. We have also received $1,28Dj00nilestone payments from Senko.

In February 2013, we entered into a mutual ternonand release agreement with Senko, whereby igteiliition Agreement and all
Senko rights, licenses and privileges granted utlgeDistribution Agreement terminated and revettethe Company. As a result of this
Termination Agreement, we are obligated to pay 8e31200,000 in six quarterly installment paymeaft$200,000 each through May
2014. At the time of the Termination Agreement,iveel a balance of $2,379,000 in deferred revenn@sipbalance sheet relating to the
payments received from Senko in the past purswathiet Distribution Agreement. At the time of thermination Agreement we accrued
$1,200,000 of the termination fee, and recognibed¢maining $1,179,000 in development revenueshwigflects the Company’s efforts
towards commercialization under the agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, our agggegstallment payments paid were $800,000. A3eafember 31, 2013, we have a
remaining termination fee obligation of $400,000.

9. Composition of Certain Financial Statement Caption:
Inventories, net
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, inventories,wete comprised of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
Raw material $ 1,315,000 $ 1,384,00
Work in proces: 232,00( 404,00(
Finished goods 2,147,001 1,387,001

$ 3,694,000 $ 3,175,00

Other Current Assets
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, other currerttasgere comprised of the following:

December 31,

2013 2012
Prepaid insuranc $ 264,000 $ 291,00(
Prepaid othe 850,00 759,00(
Other receivables 111,00( 111,00(

$ 1,225,000 $ 1,161,00

Property and Equipment, net
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, property andoeaemt, net, were comprised of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
Manufacturing and development equipm $ 5,059,000 $ 5,250,00
Office and computer equipme 2,274,001 2,266,00!
Leasehold improvements 3,271,001 3,267,00!
10,604,00 10,783,00
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,550,001 (8,609,001

$ 1,054,000 $ 2,174,00

59






Table of Contents
Depreciation expense totaled $1,581,000, $741,66(&18,000 for the years ended December 31, ZW2, and 2011, respectively.
Other Assets
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, other assetsawanprised of the following:

December 31

2013 2012
Deposits $ 479,000 $ 401,00(
Prepaid supplies, long-term 2,333,001 2,339,001

$ 2,812,000 $ 2,740,00

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, accounts payaitleéccrued expenses were comprised of the folfpwin

December 31

2013 2012
Accrued legal fee $ 564,000 $ 826,00(
Accrued R&D studie: 376,00( 896,00(
Accounts payabl 965,00( 1,579,001
Accrued vacatiol 918,00( 873,00(
Accrued bonu: 759,00( 846,00(
Accrued expense 2,167,001 2,071,00!
Deferred ren 138,00( 35,00(
Accrued accounting fee 140,00( 190,00(
Accrued payroll 50,00( 95,00(

$ 6,077,000 $ 7,411,00

10. Commitments and Contingencie:

We have contractual obligations to make paymentgases of office, manufacturing, and corporateshmuspace as follows:

Operating
Years Ending December 31, Leases
2014 2,071,001
2015 1,845,00!
2016 1,892,00!
2017 1,609,001
Total $ 7,417,000

Rent expense, which includes common area mainten&mrcthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@htl was $3,458,000,
$2,980,000 and $2,524,000, respectively.

We have entered into agreements with various reBeaganizations for pre-clinical and clinical dbpment studies, which have
provisions for cancellation. Under the terms ofthagreements, the vendors provide a variety wicgsrincluding conducting research,
enrolling patients, recruiting patients, monitorstgdies and data analysis. Payments under theseragnts typically include fees for
services and reimbursement of expenses. The tinfipgyments due under these agreements was elitveted on current schedules of
pre-clinical and clinical studies in progress. diPecember 31, 2013, we have pre-clinical resestetly obligations of $23,000 (all of
which are expected to be complete within a yead)dimical research study obligations of $4,705,(®,530,000 of which are expectec
be complete within a year). Should the timinghaf pre-clinical and clinical trials change, theitignof the payment of these obligations
would also change.

60




Table of Contents

11.

During 2008, we entered into a supply agreemerit aviminimum purchase requirements clause. As cébBer 31, 2013, we have
minimum purchase obligations of $850,000 (all ofahhis expected to be paid within a year).

We are subject to various claims and contingeneilsded to legal proceedings. Due to their natsueh legal proceedings involve
inherent uncertainties including, but not limited ¢ourt rulings, negotiations between affectedigsuand governmental actions.
Management assesses the probability of loss fdr sotingencies and accrues a liability and/orldises the relevant circumstances, as
appropriate. Management believes that any ligttititus that may arise as a result of currentlydpenlegal proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditiliidity, or results of operations as a whole.

Refer to note 8 for a discussion of our commitmamid contingencies related to our arrangements Sétiko.
Refer to note 11 for a discussion of our commitreemd contingencies related to our long-term obibga.
Long-term Obligations

On June 28, 2013 we entered into a Loan and Sgdgitement (Loan Agreement) with Oxford FinanceCLand Silicon Valley Bank
(together, the “Lenders”), pursuant to which theders funded an aggregate principal amount of $2ifllibn (Term Loan), subject to the
terms and conditions set forth in the loan agreem&he Term Loan accrues interest at a fixed o8& 75% per annum. Pursuant to the
Loan Agreement, we are required to make interdgtmayments through July 1, 2014 and thereafteareerequired to make payments of
principal and accrued interest in equal monthlyal®ents sufficient to amortize the Term Loan tigb July 1, 2017, the maturity date.
However, if we achieve a specified revenue thresfal the period of 12 months from the date ofltda agreement through June 30,
2014, the interest only period will be extendeéébruary 1, 2015. All unpaid principal and interegh respect to the Term Loan is due
and payable in full on July 1, 2017. At maturitytbé Term Loan, or the earlier repayment in fulldeing a voluntary prepayment or up
acceleration, the Company is required to makeal fimyment fee in an aggregate amount equal t&8160. In connection with the
Term Loan, on June 28, 2013, we issued to the lreangarrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 59&Bares of our common stock at
an exercise price of $2.26 per share. These waresa immediately exercisable and will expire onel28, 2020.

In connection with the funding of the Loan Agreemeve prepaid all outstanding amounts under ther poan agreement, at which time
the Company’s obligations under the prior loan egrent immediately terminated. The Company paitiégprior agent and the prior
lenders approximately $18,866,000, consisting eftlien outstanding principal balance due of apprately $17,325,000, accrued but
unpaid interest of approximately $119,000, a fipeyment fee (net of fees waived or refunded by #raers under the new loan
agreement) of approximately $1,078,000, a prepaymeennet of fees waived or refunded by the Lesdeder the new loan agreement)
of approximately $312,000 and other customary lefeles and expenses.

The net proceeds of the Term Loan, after paymelarafer fees and expenses and prepaying all tis¢gamding amounts relating to the
prior loan agreement, were approximately $7.8 onilli

For the continuing Lenders, we accounted for tmedment as a debt modification. Accordingly, tedafees of $1,942,000 were
recorded as debt discount, and along with the un@mad debt discount will be amortized as an adpastt of interest expense using the
effective interest method. For one existing lerttiat did not participate in the Term Loan, theqfapf their loan was accounted for as
debt extinguishment. Accordingly, a loss on dettinguishment of $708,000 was recorded, which idekithat lender’s portion of
unamortized fees and discounts along with prepaysah final payment fees.

We allocated the aggregate proceeds of the Term hetween the warrants and the debt obligationscbas their relative fair values. 1
fair value of the warrants issued to the Lenders @adculated utilizing the Black-Scholes optiorcjprg model. We are amortizing the
resulting additional discount of $949,000 to ingtrexpense over the term of the loan using thetffeinterest method. The overall
effective interest rate for the Term Loan is 13.92%e Term Loan are collateralized by the tang#sisets of the company, including a
security interest in substantially all of its exigtand after-acquired assets.
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Additional details relating to the above term ldhat is outstanding as of December 31, 2013, agegnted in the following table:

Original Current Remaining
Loan Interest Monthly Principal
Origination Date Amount Rate Payment* Term (Face Value)
June 201! $ 27,000,00 9.7%% $ 219,37 48 Month: $ 27,000,00

* Current monthly payment is inclusive of interedyyon

As of December 31, 2013, the future contractualgdpial and final fee payments on all of our delat Ezase obligations are as follows:

Years Ending December 31

2014 $ 3,318,00!
2015 8,502,001
2016 9,346,001
2017 7,504,001
Total $ 28,670,00
Reconciliation of Face Value to Book Value as of @ember 31, 201!
Total debt and lease obligations, including finayment fee (Face Valu $ 28,670,00
Less: Debt discour (2,379,00)
Total: 26,291,00
(3,191,00i)

Less: Current portion

Long-term obligation $ 23,100,00

Our interest expense for the years ended Decenih@033, 2012 and 2011 (most of which related ¢ddlan entered into June 2013,
September 2011 and June 2010) was $3,396,000,83(8Band $2,784,000, respectively. Interest espéncalculated using the effect
interest method, therefore it is inclusive of n@sit amortization in the amount of $893,000, $93D&® $711,000, respectively, related

to the amortization of the debt discount and céipéd loan fees.

Income Taxes

Due to our net losses for the years ended DeceBih&@013, 2012 and 2011, and since we have recarfi@tivaluation allowance against
deferred tax assets, there was no provision orfliéaeincome taxes recorded. There were no comeptsof current or deferred federal or

state income tax provisions for the years endecebéer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

12.

A reconciliation of the total income tax provisitax rate to the statutory federal income tax ré&t@486o for the years ended December 31,

2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

Income tax expense (benefit) at federal statutaty
Income tax expense (benefit) at state statutogy rat
Gain on previously held equity interest in jointwre
Mark to market permanent adjustm:

Change in federal valuation allowar

Change in state ra

Deferred revenu

Acquired NOL’s/Intangibles from joint ventul
Foreign rate differentic

Other, net

2013 2012 2011
(34.00% (34.00% (34.00%
(3.59)% (2.79% (3.36%
(7.02) % 0.0(% 0.0(%
(2.15% (0.24)% (5.02)%
80.1% 35.86% 45.79%
(1.01)% (8.36)% (3.29%
0.0(% 00C% (2.09%
(33.40 % 0.0(% 0.0(%
2.45% (0.04)% 0.0(%
(1.49% 9.57% 2.0%
0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
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The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant portions of our deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset

Allowances and reserv: $ 639,000 $ 169,00(
Accrued expense 718,00( 1,053,001
Deferred revenue and g-on-sale 79,00( 1,138,001
Stock based compensati 6,962,00! 5,635,001
Net operating loss carryforwar 107,846,00 87,045,00
Income tax credit carryforwarc 6,710,001 5,729,001
Property and equipment, principally due to differesin depreciatio 804,00( 422,00(
Other,net 296,00( 295,00(
124,054,00 101,486,00
Valuation allowance (122,450,00) (101,476,00)
Total deferred tax assets, net of allowance 1,604,001 10,00(

Deferred tax liabilities
Intangibles (1,604,001 (10,000
Total deferred tax liability (1,604,00) (10,000
Net deferred tax assets (liability) $ — 3 —

We have established a valuation allowance agaimstet deferred tax assets due to the uncertaimtgunding the realization of such
assets. We periodically evaluate the recoveralilityhe deferred tax assets. At such time asdetsermined that it is more likely than not
that deferred assets are realizable, the valuatiowance will be reduced. We have recorded avilliation allowance of $122,450,000 as
of December 31, 2013 as we do not believe it isenfikely than not our net deferred tax assetslbvélkealized. We increased our valuation
allowance by approximately $20,974,000 during téaryended December 31, 2013. The valuation allogvardudes approximately
$579,000 related to stock option deductions, threebieof which, if realized, will eventually be atiged to equity and not to income.

At December 31, 2013, we had federal, California Massachusetts tax loss carry forwards of apprately $288,010,655,
$180,510,359, and $576,000, respectively, prigetluction for windfall tax benefits. The federablestate net operating loss carry
forwards begin to expire in 2019 and 2013 resdpelyt if unused. At December 31, 2013, we hadefatland state tax credit carry
forwards of approximately $4,059,910 and $4,015,883pectively, after reduction for uncertain tasitions. The federal credits will
begin to expire in 2018, if unused, and the stegdits carry forward indefinitely. In addition, wrad a foreign tax loss carry forward of
$987,000 in Japan, $1,234,000 in Switzerland, &8J0P0 in India. Our ltalian subsidiary was dissol during 2012 and we no longer
maintain Italian tax loss carry forwards associatéti such entity.

Pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC") d3@,%s amended, specifically IRC 8382 and IRC §888ability to use net operating
loss and R&D tax credit carry forwards (“tax attrib carry forwards”) to offset future taxable inc@r limited if we experience a
cumulative change in ownership of more than 50%iwit three-year testing period. We have not cotaglan ownership change analysis
pursuant to IRC Section 382 for taxable years eradied December 31, 2007. If ownership changesimitie meaning of IRC Section 3
are identified as having occurred subsequent t@ 20@ amount of remaining tax attribute carry fards available to offset future taxable
income and income tax expense in future years raagigmificantly restricted or eliminated. Furthewuy deferred tax assets associated
such tax attributes could be significantly reduapdn realization of an ownership change withinrtteaning of IRC §382.

We recognize tax benefits associated with the éseaf stock options directly to stockholders’ eéguinly when realized. Accordingly,
deferred tax assets are not recognized for netipgrioss carry forwards resulting from windfaktbenefits. At December 31, 2013,
deferred tax assets do not include $1,261,000 a¥sxtax benefits from stock-based compensation.

We changed our accounting method of accountingricertain tax positions on January 1, 2007. Wenwadnrecognized tax benefits as
of the date of adoption.
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Following is a tabular reconciliation of the unrgo@ed tax benefits activity during the years enBedember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

2013 2012 2011
Unrecognized Tax Benefi— Beginning $ 1,394,000 $ 1,304,000 $ 1,166,00
Gross increase- tax positions in prior perio 69,00( — —
Gross decreas+ tax positions in prior perio — — —
Gross increas— curren-period tax positions 260,00( 90,00( 138,00(
Settlement: — — —
Lapse of statute of limitations — — —
Unrecognized Tax Benefits — Ending $ 1,723,000 $ 1,394,000 $ 1,304,00

The unrecognized tax benefit amounts are refleictéoe determination of the Company’s deferredassets. If recognized, none of these
amounts would affect the Company’s effective tar,raince it would be offset by an equal reduciiothe deferred tax asset valuation
allowance. The Company does not foresee matdvaaiges to its liability for uncertain tax benefitithin the next twelve months.

The Company did not recognize interest relatechtecognized tax benefits in interest expense andlfies in operating expenses as of
December 31, 2013.

The Company’s material tax jurisdictions are Uni&tdtes and California. To our knowledge, the Camyds currently not under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service orathgr taxing authority.

The Company’s tax years for 1999 and forward casuiigect to examination by the United States arldd@aia tax authorities due to the
carry forward of net operating losses and resedeoielopment credits.

Employee Benefit Plar

We implemented a 401(k) retirement savings andtmbéring plan (the “Plan”) effective January 299. We may make discretionary
annual contributions to the Plan, which is alloddtethe profit sharing accounts based on the numibgears of employee service and
compensation. At the sole discretion of the Bodricectors, we may also match the participantsitdbutions to the Plan. We made no
discretionary or matching contributions to the Aa2013, 2012 and 2011.

Stockholders Equity
Preferred Stock

We have authorized 5,000,000 shares of $.001 pae yaeferred stock, with no shares outstandingf &ecember 31, 2013 and 2012.
Board of Directors is authorized to designate #mms and conditions of any preferred stock we isgtteout further action by the comm:
stockholders.

Common Stock

In October 2010, we entered into an underwritinggament with Jefferies & Company, relating to ts&uance and sale of 4,600,000 st
of our common stock. This price to the publichistoffering was $4.50 per share and the undeminas agreed to purchase the shares
from us at a price of $4.23 per share. The traiwawas completed on October 13, 2010 raising @pprately $20,700,000 in gross
proceeds before deducting underwriting discountscammissions and other offering expenses payablesb

On December 13, 2010 we raised $10,000,000 in gnaeeeds from a sale of 1,428,571 shares of wtergd common stock to Astellas
Pharma Inc. for $7.00 per share in a private spd@gement. Pursuant to the terms of the purchggement, we granted Astellas Pharma
Inc. a two year right of first refusal to enterarg development and commercialization collaboratiith us regarding the use of our
technology, on a worldwide basis, for the treatnwdriver conditions. In addition, we have agreedise reasonable efforts to file a
registration statement with the Securities and Brge Commission to register the shares of comnumk $or resale upon the request of
Astellas Pharma Inc. We also granted Astellasii@hdnc. a nonvoting observer seat on our Board of Directors tedright to designate
representative member to our Scientific AdvisornaBb The $10,000,000 in total proceeds we recedxededed the market value of our
stock at the completion of the purchase agreemiEme. $2,526,000 difference between the proceedsvext and the fair market values of
our common stock was recorded as a component efréefrevenues in the accompanying balance shdés.difference was recorded as
deferred revenue since, conceptually, the exces®pds represent a value paid by Astellas Pharmatmibutable to the scientific
advisory board seat, the non-voting observer seato Board of Directors, and the two year righfisft refusal to enter into a
development and commercialization collaboratiorhwi$ regarding the use of our technology, on adwade basis, for the treatment of
liver conditions, rather than an additional equiityestment in Cytori. We recognized this deferaatbunt as development revenue upon
the expiration of the two year right of refusalipdrin December 2012. We are still actively invadvin discussions with Astellas Pharma,
Inc. about a potential future development and cororakzation collaboration with us.
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On July 11, 2011, we entered into a common stockh@se agreement with Seaside 88, LP relatingetoffiering and sale of a total of up
to 6,326,262 shares of our common stock. The agaerequired us to issue and Seaside to buy 282&hares of our common stock at
an initial closing and 250,000 shares of our comistock once every two weeks, commencing 30 dags #ife initial closing, for up to an
additional 20 closings, subject to the satisfactbnustomary closing conditions. At the initiabsing, the offering price was $4.52, which
equaled 88% of our common stock’s volume-weighteztage trading prices, or VWAP, during the ten-ttaging period immediately
prior to the initial closing date, raising approxitaly $6,000,000 in gross proceeds. At subsequesihgs, the offering price was 90.25%
of our common stock’s volume-weighted average t@dlirices during the ten-day trading period immidyaprior to each subsequent
closing date. We raised approximately $18,233j8Qf¥oss proceeds from the sale of 5,826,262 shamsr scheduled closings through
April 9, 2012. Effective, April 30, 2012, we temaited the agreement with Seaside 88, LP and wealtigell the remaining and final
500,000 shares that would otherwise have beenuswldr this agreement.

In December 2012, we entered into an underwritong@ment with Lazard Capital Markets, LLC (undeterii, relating to the issuance ¢
sale of 7,020,000 shares of our common stock. pFice to the public in this offering was $2.85 phare and the underwriter purchased
the shares from us at a price of $2.69 per shihe. transaction was completed on December 19, 24idg approximately $20,007,000
in gross proceeds before deducting underwritingadiats and commissions and other offering expepagable by us. Under the terms of
the underwriting agreement, we granted the und&wain option, exercisable for 30 days, to purchegs® an additional 1,053,000 sha

In January 2013, the underwriter exercised thigoopnd as a result we sold an additional 1,05330@0es raising approximately
$3,000,000 in gross proceeds before deducting wmitierg discounts and commissions and other offgerpenses payable by us.

In October 2013, we entered into a Common Stocklge Agreement with Lorem Vascular for the pureteds3,000,000 shares at $3.00
per share. The transaction occurred in two sepalasings of 4,000,000 shares each. The firstatpsccurred in November 2013, and the
second closing occurred in January 2014. As of Bbes 31, 2013, we received $15,000,000 of the grosseeds, $12,000,000 for the
first closing and $3,000,000 towards the seconsintp The balance of $9,000,000 in gross procesgisined to complete the second
closing were received in January 2014. In connackiith the Common Stock Purchase Agreement, the tagappoint one member of our
Board of directors was granted to Mr. K.T. Lim, @h@an of Lorem Vascular. We expect Mr. Lim to apga member to serve on our
Board of Directors in the second half of 2014.

Stockholders Rights Plar

On May 28, 2003, the Board of Directors declarelivadend distribution of one preferred share pusehaght (a “Right”) for each
outstanding share of our common stock. The dividenmhyable to the stockholders of record on JUn2@03, and with respect to shares
of common stock issued thereafter until the Distiiin Date (as defined below) and, in certain ainstances, with respect to shares of
common stock issued after the Distribution Datecefx as set forth below, each Right, when it bemexercisable, entitles the registered
holder to purchase from us one one-thousandth QDth) of a share of our Series RP Preferred S&@K01 par value per share (the
“Preferred Stock”), at a price of $25.00 per one-thousandth (1/1000th) of a share of PreferredkSgubject to adjustment. Each share
of the Preferred Stock would entitle the holdeotio common stock with a value of twice that paidtfee Preferred Stock. The description
and terms of the Rights are set forth in a Righise&ment (the “Rights Agreement”) between us anah@dershare Trust Company, Inc.,
as Rights Agent, dated as of May 29, 2003, andreshded on May 12, 2005 and August 28, 2007.
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The Rights attach to all certificates represensihgres of our common stock outstanding, and adeeeed by a legend on each share
certificate, incorporating the Rights Agreementéference. The Rights trade with and only withdaksociated shares of our common
stock and have no impact on the way in which haeldan trade our shares. Unless the Rights Agreemwanto be triggered, it would have
no effect on the Company’s consolidated balancetstrencome statement and should have no taxteffethe Company or its
stockholders. The Rights Agreement is triggerednupe earlier to occur of (i) a person or grougffifiated or associated persons having
acquired, without the prior approval of the Bodreneficial ownership of 15% or more (20% or moneciertain shareholders) of the
outstanding shares of our common stock or (ii) &fsd or such later date as the Board may deterrful@ying the commencement of or
announcement of an intention to make, a tender offexchange offer the consummation of which waekllt in a person or group of
affiliated or associated persons becoming an AatgiiPerson (as defined in the Rights Agreementggixin certain circumstances (the
“Distribution Date”).

The Rights were not exercisable until the DistiitnutDate and expired at the close of business oy 28a2013.
Stock-based Compensation

During 1997, we adopted the 1997 Stock Option andkSPurchase Plan (the “1997 Plan”), which prosifte the direct award or sale of
shares and for the grant of incentive stock opt{6i®0s”) and non-statutory options to employeéseators or consultants. The 1997
Plan, as amended, provides for the issuance af ¥00,000 shares of our common stock. The eseeqniice of ISOs cannot be less than
the fair market value of the underlying shareshendate of grant. ISOs can be granted only to eyept The 1997 Plan expired on
October 22, 2007.

During 2004, we adopted the 2004 Equity IncentilaRthe “2004 Plan”), which provides our employedisectors and consultants the
opportunity to purchase our common stock throughtauaalified stock options, stock appreciation righéstricted stock units, or restrict
stock and cash awards. The 2004 Plan initiallyioies for issuance of 3,000,000 shares of our comsback, which number may be
cumulatively increased (subject to Board discrgtmmman annual basis beginning January 1, 2005wdminual increase shall not exceed
2% of our then outstanding stock. As of Decemler2B13, there are 700,647 securities remainingaaadable for future issuances un
2004 Plan, which is exclusive of securities togsied upon an exercise of outstanding options awgrand rights.

In August 2011, stockholders approved the 2011 Bygd Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP), with a maximus@@{00 shares of our
common stock to be issued under this plan. UrtdeESPP, eligible employees may purchase shamg ebmmon stock through payroll
deductions, which may not exceed 15% of an empleymampensation. The price at which shares atwudler the ESPP is established
by the duly appointed committee of the Board buy mat be less than 90% of the lesser of the faiketavalue per share of our common
stock on the offering date or on the purchase ddte.ESPP is compensatory. For the year ended Dsedi, 2011, there were no stock
issuances under this plan and no stbaked compensation was recorded for this planinBtine year ended December 31, 2013 and .
we recorded stock-based compensation of $75,00858800, respectively.

Stock Options

Generally, options issued under the 2004 Plan®d €97 Plan are subject to four-year vesting, awe fa contractual term of 10 years.
Most options contain one of the following two vestiprovisions:

« 12/48 of a granted award will vest after one ydarenvice, while an additional 1/48 of the awardl west at the end of each
month thereafter for 36 months,

« 1/48 of the award will vest at the end of each rhawer a fou-year period

A summary of activity for the year ended December2p13 is as follows:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Options Price

Balance as of January 1, 2C 6,744,98 $ 5.0Z
Granted 2,548,995 $ 3.2t
Exercisec (17,500 $ 2.14
Expired (499,58) $ 4.2¢
Cancelled/forfeited (454,56) $ 4.5¢
Balance as of December 31, 2013 8,322,28 $ 4.5t
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Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Options Exercise Price Term (years Value
Balance as of December 31, 2013 8,322,28! $ 4.5 6.1C $ 148,81
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2013 8,277,77. $ 4.5¢€ 6.0¢ $ 147,93:
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 5,718,091 $ 5.05 48t $ 111,65¢

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas $3,500, $311,000 and $541,000 for the yeatsceDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The fair value of each option awarded during tharymded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 wasatstiron the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes-Merton option valuation modeldshsn the following weighted-average assumptions:

Years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected tern 6.0 year 5.20 year 5.5 year
Risk-free interest rat 1.12% 0.82% 1.95%
Volatility 75.21% 75.62% 72.36%
Dividends — — —
Resulting weighted average grant date fair v. $ 172 $ 19 $ 3.24

We calculated the expected term of our stock optlmsed on our historical data. The expected talculated for and applied to all

employee awards as a single group as we do notefpm does historical data suggest) substantififfgrent exercise or post-vesting
termination behavior amongst our employee popuiatio

We estimate volatility based on the historical tibitg of our daily stock price over the period pesling grant date commensurate with the
expected term of the option.

The weighted average risk-free interest rate remtsshe interest rate for treasury constant ntgtunstruments published by the Federal
Reserve Board. If the term of available treasunystant maturity instruments is not equal to theeekgd term of an employee option, we
use the weighted average of the two Federal Resexugities closest to the expected term of thel@rep option.

The dividend yield has been assumed to be zereda)have never declared or paid any dividendqtando not currently anticipate
paying any cash dividends on our outstanding st@resmmon stock in the foreseeable future.

Restricted Stock Awards

Generally, restricted stock awards issued unde2@@d Plan are subject to a vesting period thataidés with the fulfillment of service
requirements for each award and have a contraiettralof 10 years. These awards are amortized tgensation expense over the
estimated vesting period based upon the fair valweir common stock on the award date.

A summary of activity for the year ended December2D13 is as follows:

Weighted
Restricted  Average Grant
Stock Awards Date Fair Value

Balance as of January 1, 2C 294,74 $ 3.58
Grantec 57,600 $ 2.6C
Exercised/Release (236,000 $ 3.2¢
Cancelled/forfeited (10,000 $ 3.44

Balance as of December 31, 2013 106,34. $ 3.62
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Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Restricted  Average Grant  Contractual
Stock Awards Date Fair Value Term (years)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 106,34. $ 3.62 8.4t
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2013 106,34. $ 3.62 8.4
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 85,34 $ 3.9t 8.1%

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

We granted 246,225 performanisased restricted stock awards under the 2004 Etnggntive Plan in February 2011. The awards pre
certain employees until January 1, 2012 to achieviain performance goals established by the Cosgtimm Committee. Effective
January 2012, the outstanding awards were terndnatieir entirety based upon the decision byGbenpensation Committee that
performance criteria had not been met as of Jariua2912. No compensation expense was recognitate¢ddo these awards.

In January 2012, we granted 276,375 performanceebastricted stock awards under the 2004 Equdgritive Plan. The awards provide
certain employees until December 31, 2012 to aehoevtain performance goals established by the @asgtion Committee. Once earr
the awards remain unvested until January 10, ZDdvmination of employment prior to vesting will tdisin the forfeiture of the awards.

In January 2013, the Compensation Committee matiifie awards to allow a portion of the awards totiovie vesting based on partial
achievement of certain performance goals. Asualtrethis modification, 86,229 shares with faalue of $2.74 per share will continue
vesting under the modified terms of the grant thatild have been cancelled under the original teAdslitional compensation expense
$236,000 resulting from this modification will becognized from the modification date through thsting date of January 2014.

We recognized $344,000 and $107,000 of compensakipeanse related to performart@sed awards during the years ended Decemb
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The following table summarizes activity with respirthe performance based restricted stock awdudag the year ended December 31,
2013:

Weighted
Restricted Average Grant-
Stock Awards Date Fair Value

Outstanding at January 1, 20 261,30( $ 3.44
Granted — —
Vested — —
Cancelled/forfeited (109,749 $ 3.44

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 151,55 ¢ 3.4/

Vested at December 31, 2013 — _

The following summarizes the total compensatiori besognized for the stock options and restrictedksawards in the accompanying
financial statements:

Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Total compensation cost for share-based paymesmgements recognized
the statement of operations (net of tax of $ 3,608,000 $ 3,904,000 $ 3,316,00

As of December 31, 2013, the total compensatiohretated to non-vested stock options and stockdsvaot yet recognized for all our
plans is approximately $4,810,000. Of this amo#iat7 25,000 is expected to be recognized as a m@sudisting under service conditions
over a weighted average period of 1.81 years.

As of December 31, 2012, the total compensatiohretsted to non-vested stock options and stock@dsvaot yet recognized for all our
plans is approximately $4,593,000. Of this amo$8{918,000 is expected to be recognized as a mefsulisting under service conditions
over a weighted average period of 1.56 years.
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Cash received from stock option and warrant exescismd employee stock purchase for the years édeleeimber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2
was approximately $225,000, $1,413,000 and $2,849 @spectively. No income tax benefits have lreearded related to the stock
option exercises as the benefits have not beeizeddh our income tax returns.

To settle stock options and restricted stock awawvéswill issue new shares of our common stock DAtember 31, 2013, we have an
aggregate of 64,739,929 shares authorized andabiatio satisfy option exercises under our plans.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2013, 2012 @i, 2ve incurred approximately $60,000, $232,0aD$t66,000, respectively, in
royalty costs in connection with our sales of oeiufion® 800/CRS System products to the Europednfesia-Pacific reconstructive
surgery market, pursuant to our License and Roysdeement and the Amended License/Commercial Ages¢ with the Olympus-
Cytori, Inc. joint venture. Additionally, in Febmty 2012, we purchased second generation Celuti®ys®ems and consumable sets from
the Olympus-Cytori, Inc. joint venture, at a formldased transfer price aggregating to $1,048,2300f December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011, Olympus Corporation was a beneficial ownanofe than five percent of our outstanding shafemmmon stock.

Additionally, refer to note 4 for a discussion efated party transactions with Olympus.

As of December 31, 2013, Lorem Vascular Pty. Lidrém) was a beneficial owner of more than fivecpat of our outstanding shares of
common stock. During the year ended December 3113 PBrem purchased Celution® Systems and consunsabdefrom us for a total of
$1,845,000 pursuant to the License/Supply Agreement

Subsequent Event:

In October, 2013, we entered into a partnership Wwitrem Vascular, to commercialize Cytori Cell Téqay for the cardiovascular, renal
and diabetes markets, in China, Hong Kong, Malay&iizgapore and Australia. On January 30, 2014uly dmended and restated the
Lorem Vascular License/Supply Agreement and entertedthe Amended and Restated License/Supply Ages¢ with Lorem Vascular
(the “Restated Agreement”) expanding the licenseld to all uses excepting alopecia (hair loss)déhthe Restated Agreement, Lorem
Vascular committed to pay up to $500 million irelise fees in the form of revenue milestones. litiaddLorem is required to pay us
30% of their gross profits in China, Hong Kong analaysia for the term of the agreement. Lorem Viaduas also agreed to purchase
Cytori Celution® System and consumables under gmtded Agreement, and committed to purchase ajppatedy $7 million in
Celution® devices and consumables, with an apprateip $2 million order already placed, and an agipately $5 million order to be
placed following regulatory approval in China. eor and Cytori have implemented a regulatory plarCtina and anticipate approval in
2014.

Quarterly Information (unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly financial infortiza includes, in management’s opinion, all themakand recurring adjustments
necessary to fairly state the results of operatanbrelated information for the periods presented.

For the three months endec

September December
March 31, June 30, 30, 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013
Product revenue $ 1,392,000 $ 1,408,000 $ 1,616,000 $ 2,706,00
Gross profit 636,00( 800,00( 685,00( 1,580,00!
Development revenus 2,366,001 859,00( 1,095,00! 754,00(
Operating expense 9,739,00! 8,022,00I 10,241,00 11,452,00
Other income (expense) (930,000 3,152,001 3,203,001 (923,000
Net loss $ (7,667,000 $ (3,211,000 $ (5,258,00) $ (10,041,00)
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.17) $ (0.05) $ (0.0 $ (0.14)

For the three months endec
September December

March 31, June 30, 30, 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012
Product revenue $ 1,481,000 $ 1,947,000 $ 1,314,000 $ 3,967,00
Gross profit 628,00( 915,00( 611,00( 2,555,00i
Development revenus 3,00 2,429,00I 2,00( 3,358,001
Operating expenst 8,996,001 10,304,00 10,945,00 8,674,00i
Other income (expense) (960,00() (923,00() (916,000 (1,062,001
Net loss $ (9,325,000 $ (7,883,000 $ (11,248,00) $ (3,823,00)

Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.1¢) $ (0.17) $ (0.19 $ (0.0€)
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountémon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedu

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requindaetdisclosed in our reports fil
or furnished pursuant to the Exchange Act is reedrgprocessed, summarized and reported withirinfeefgeriods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules andgpamd that such information is accumulated andnconicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officed £hief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to ailior timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In designing and evaluatiegdisclosure controls and procedures, managemengmizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and opkratan provide only reasonable assurance of actydlie desired control
objectives, and management necessarily is regtoragply its judgment in evaluating the cost-beamefiationship of possible controls
and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange we carried out an evaluation, under the supienviand with the participation
of our management, including our Chief Executivéide@f and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiess of our disclosure controls
and procedures, as such term is defined under RBalel5(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchaetjef 1934, as amended, as
of the end of the period covered by this Annuald&epn Form 10-K. Based on the foregoing, our €hieecutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosuretecols and procedures as of the end of the periedrea by this Annual Report were
not effective due to the material weakness destiifsdow in Management’s Report on Internal Con@weér Financial Reporting.

(b) Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repog

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting. Internal control
over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13af]®f 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act@84 as a process designed by,
or under the supervision of, the Company’s princgp@cutive and principal financial officers andeeted by the Company’s Board of
Directors, management and other personnel, to geadasonable assurance regarding the reliabflfipancial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples and includes thc
policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that in retsle detail accurately and fairly reflect the s@ctions and dispositions of the
Compan's assets

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@eled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, tivad receipts and expenditures of the Company @iregbmade only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directorthefCompany; an

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, osaisposition of the Comparg/’
assets that could have a material effect on thenéial statement:

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finarlaieporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstateroéttte annual or interim financial statements wil be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. Because of its inherent limitationggrnal control over financial reporting may nogyent or detect misstatements. A
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies or procedures may detemorat

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand Chief Financial
Officer, we have conducted an evaluation of theaifeness of our internal control over financegparting as of the end of the fiscal
year covered by this annual report on Form 10-ketlam the criteria set forth Internal Control - Integrated FrameworkK1992)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO).

70




Table of Contents

Based on our evaluation, management concludeathanternal control over financial reporting wast effective as of December 31,
2013 because a material weakness existed in arnadtcontrols related to the recognition and mesmant of revenue in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting princip&secifically, our controls did not operate effeety to aggregate and communicate
information necessary to (i) verify that the collen of accounts receivable was reasonably asanddii) evaluate whether
contractual provisions were satisfied in ordergcognize revenue. The Company's management rersnileed that these control
deficiencies, in the aggregate, constitute a netereakness that resulted in material errors imlpcorevenues in our 2013 annual
consolidated financial statements, which were abegkprior to issuance of the Company’s consoliifiteancial statements.

Our independent registered public accounting fiiAMG LLP, has issued an adverse audit report orffeetiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 113, which is included herein.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repog

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting during the quarter endet®&mber 31, 2013 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantraporting other than the material
weakness described above.

(d) Remediation of Material Weakne

We are currently taking steps to enhance our reveacognition policies and procedures and remetliatenaterial weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting , incladiin particular:

1. Reevaluating our processes for the recognitioreémue at our Japan subsidic

2. Relocating to our Japan subsidiary a qualifietividual with appropriate experience to assishwitir review of revenue
arrangements in accordance with U.S. generallypedeaccounting principles and to help facilitagété communication with
our Japan subsidiar

3. Enhancing our assessment of collectability overamstomers to ensure that adequate evidence ettattility is obtained prior 1
the recognition of revenu

Management believes that these steps will remethatenaterial weakness by improving our systendisaflosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial répg; however, during execution their effectiven@sll be subject to testing by us,
and there can be no assurance at this time thatahewill effectively remediate the material weakn described above.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information called for by Item 10 is incorpaatherein by reference to the material under tpéiaas “Election of Directors” and
“Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Gowree” in our Definitive Proxy Statement for our Z04nnual Meeting of Stockholders, to
be filed with SEC on or before April 30, 2014 ({12914 Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorpaetherein by reference to the material under tpéaa“Executive Compensatiorifi our
2014 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

The information called for by Item 12 is incorp@atherein by reference to the material under théaa“Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” in our 2014 PrStgtement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information called for by Item 13 is incorpa@etherein by reference to the material under tpéaa“Information Concerning
Directors and Executive Officers- Certain Relatlips and Related Transactions” in our 2014 ProgyeBtent.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 is incorpaatherein by reference to the material under tpéiaa“Principal Accountant Fees and
Services” in our 2014 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
@) () Financial Statements
Page
Reports of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pubticounting Firm 40
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&01201% 42
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsehehoss for the years ended December 31, 20112 26d 201: 43
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20122011 44
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2 45
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme¢ 47
@ (2 Financial Statement Schedules
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid 201
(in thousands of dollars)
Balance at
beginning of Deductions Balance at
year Additions (A) (B) Other (C) end of year
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Year ended December 31, 2013 $ 27t $ 1,141 $ (16) $ 42 $ 1,44¢
Year ended December 31, 2012 $ 474 $ 144 $ (319 $ 27 $ 27¢
Year ended December 31, 2011 $ 306 $ 48: 3 (256) $ (59 $ 47/

(A) Includes charges to costs and expenses, net aqrigment recovere
(B) Includes deductions for uncollectible accountsirsdge, net of any equipment recove
(C) Miscellaneous activity for product sales recognirach cash bas
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Table of Contents
(@)(3) Exhibits
CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX
Filed
with this Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit Form
Number Exhibit Title 10-K Form File No. Date Filed
3.1 Composite Certificate of Incorporation. S-3 333-192409 11/19/2013
Exhibit 4.1
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Cytori Therapeufins, 10-Q 000-32501 08/14/2003
Exhibit 3.2
4.2 Form of Warrant. 8-K 000-32501 03/10/2009
Exhibit 4.2
4.3 Form of Warrant to be dated February 28, 2007. 8-K 000-32501 02/26/2007
Exhibit 10.4
4.4 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issuedugust 11, 200 8-K 000-32501 08/08/2008
pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreementd datgust 7, 2008, | Exhibit 10.34
and among the Company and the Purchasers identifieithe signatu
pages theretc
4.5 Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 7, 20698nd among tl 8-K 000-32501 08/08/2008
Company and the Purchasers identified on the sigaatages theret Exhibit 10.35
4.6 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn Octobg 10-K 000-32501 03/06/2009
14, 2008 in favor of GE Capital Equity Investmerits,., pursuant to ti Exhibit 10.61
Loan and Security Agreement dated October 14, 2
4.7 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn Octobg 10-K 000-32501 03/06/2009
14, 2008 in favor of Silicon Valley Bank, pursuaot the Loan ar] Exhibit 10.62
Security Agreement dated October 14, 2(
4.8 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to beetssan or abol 8-K 000-32501 05/08/2009
IMay 11, 2009 Exhibit 10.64
4.9 Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 7, 20§%td among Cytd 8-K 000-32501 05/08/2009
Therapeutics, Inc. and the Purchasers identifiedhensignature pag Exhibit 10.65
thereto.
4.10 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 1 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
2010 in favor of GE Capital Equity Investments,.|ngursuant to tk Exhibit 10.73
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreemeted diune 1]
2010.
4.11 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 1 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
2010 in favor of Silicon Valley Bank, pursuant toeet Amended ai Exhibit 10.74
Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated Jur2010,
4.12 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 1 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
2010 in favor of Oxford Financial Corporation, pusst to the Amends Exhibit 10.75
and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated1Iyrz010
4.13 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpoi 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
September 9, 2011 in favor of GE Capital Equity elsients, Ind Exhibit 10.84

pursuant to the Amended and Restated Loan and iSeé&greemer
dated September 9, 20!




4.14 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpoi 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
September 9, 2011 in favor of Silicon Valley Bamyrsuant to th Exhibit 10.85
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeméed deptember
2011.

4.15 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpoi 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
September 9, 2011 in favor of Oxford Financial Qogtion, pursuant Exhibit 10.86
the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreendate
September 9, 201

4.16 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpoi 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
September 9, 2011 in favor of Oxford Financial Qogtion, pursuant Exhibit 10.87

the Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreendate

September 9, 201
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4.17 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 2 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013
2013 in favor of Oxford Finance LLC pursuant to thean and Securi Exhibit 4.17
Agreement dated June 28, 20

4.18 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 2 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013
2013 in favor of Oxford Finance LLC pursuant to thean and Securi Exhibit 4.18
Agreement dated June 28, 20

4.19 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 2 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013
2013 in favor of Oxford Finance LLC pursuant to thean and Securi Exhibit 4.19
Agreement dated June 28, 20

4.20 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 2 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013
2013 in favor of Oxford Finance LLC pursuant to thean and Securi Exhibit 4.20
Agreement dated June 28, 20

4.21 \Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by the @oynpn June 2 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013
2013 in favor of Silicon Valley Bank pursuant teethoan and Securi Exhibit 4.21
Agreement dated June 28, 20

4.22 Stock Purchase Agreement, effective October 2932B¢ and betwe S-3 333-192409 11-19-2013
the Company and Lorem Vascular, Pty. |

10.1# Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option and Stocth&se Plan. 10 000-32501 03/30/2001

Exhibit 10.1

10.1.1# Board of Directors resolution adopted November O0& regardin 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2007
determination of fair market value for stock optigmant purpost Exhibit 10.10.1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10.1 fikesl Exhibit 10.10.1 |
our Form 10K Annual Report, as filed on March 30, 2007
incorporated by reference here

10.10# 2004 Equity Incentive Plan of Cytori Therapeutics, 8-K 000-32501 08/27/2004

Exhibit 10.1

10.10.1# |Board of Directors resolution adopted November O0& regardin 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2007
determination of fair market value for stock optignant purpose: Exhibit 10.10.1

10.12# Notice and Agreement for Stock Options Grant Pursua Cytor| 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
Therapeutics, Inc. 1997 Stock Option and Stock (rage Plaj Exhibit 10.19
(Nonstatutory)

10.13# Notice and Agreement for Stock Options Grant Pursua Cytor| 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
Therapeutics, Inc. 1997 Stock Option and Stock lrage Plaj Exhibit 10.20
(Nonstatutory) with CIiff.

10.14# Notice and Agreement for Stock Options Grant Pursua Cytor| 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
Therapeutics, Inc. 1997 Stock Option and Stock lrage Plaj Exhibit 10.21
(Incentive).

10.15# Notice and Agreement for Stock Options Grant Purst@Cytori 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
Therapeutics, Inc. 1997 Stock Option and Stock Rage Plan; Exhibit 10.22
(Incentive) with CIiff.

10.16# Form of Options Exercise and Stock Purchase AgraeRelating to thd 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
2004 Equity Incentive Plal Exhibit 10.23

10.17# Form of Notice of Stock Options Grant Relatinghe 2004 Equity 10-Q 000-32501 11/15/2004
Incentive Plan Exhibit 10.24

10.22 Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 285 206tween 10-Q 000-32501 08/15/2005
Olympus Corporation and the Compa Exhibit 10.21




10.23 Sublease Agreement dated May 24, 2005, betweereBitec, Inc. and 10-Q 000-32501 08/15/2005
the Company Exhibit 10.21

10.27+ Joint Venture Agreement dated November 4, 200%ydx Olympus 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2006
Corporation and the Compar Exhibit 10.27

10.28+ License/ Commercial Agreement dated November 45 266tween 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2006
Olympus-Cytori, Inc. and the Compatr Exhibit 10.28

10.28.1 Amendment One to License/ Commercial Agreementcdiiterember 10-K 000-32501 03/14/2008

14, 2007, between Olymg-Cytori, Inc. and the Compan

Exhibit 10.28.1
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10.29+ License/ Joint Development Agreement dated Novemb26005, 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2006
between Olympus Corporation, Olym-Cytori, Inc. and the Compan Exhibit 10.29

10.29.1 Amendment No. 1 to License/ Joint Development Agrest dated May 10-Q 000-32501 08/11/2008
20, 2008, between Olympus Corporation, Olympus-ytoc. and the Exhibit 10.29.1
Company.

10.30+ Shareholders Agreement dated November 4, 2005 geet@®lympus 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2006
Corporation and the Compar Exhibit 10.30

10.32 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated August(d®, 2y and 8-K 000-32501 08/15/2006
between Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and Olympus Crafmn. Exhibit 10.32

10.33 Form of Common Stock Subscription Agreement, détegust 9, 2006 8-K 000-32501 08/15/2006
(Agreements on this form were signed by Cytori aadh of respective Exhibit 10.33
investors in the Institutional Offering

10.43 Financial services advisory engagement letter ageeg dated Februal 8-K 000-32501 02/26/2007
16, 2007, between Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and V\@@Burities, LLC Exhibit 10.2

10.46 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated March 29, 2y and 10-Q 000-32501 05/11/2007
between Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and Green HasBitaply, Inc. Exhibit 10.46

10.47 Consulting Agreement, dated May 3, 2007, by and/éen Cytori 10-Q 000-32501 08/14/2007
Therapeutics, Inc. and Marshall G. C Exhibit 10.47

10.48+ [Master Cell Banking and Cryopreservation Agreemeifigctive August 10-Q 000-32501 11/13/2007
13, 2007, by and between Green Hospital Supply, ked Cytori Exhibit 10.48
Therapeutics, Inc

10.48.1 Amendment No. 1 to Master Cell Banking and Cryoprestion 8-K 000-32501 06/10/2008
Agreement, effective June 4, 2008, by and betweaeeiisHospital Exhibit 10.48.1
Supply, Inc. and the Compar

10.49+ License & Royalty Agreement, effective August 2802, by and 10-Q 000-32501 11/13/2007
between Olympt-Cytori, Inc. and Cytori Therapeutics, In Exhibit 10.49

10.51 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated Febru@2g08, by and 8-K 000-32501 02/19/2008
between Green Hospital Supply, Il and Cytori Therapeutics, In Exhibit 10.51

10.51.1 Amendment No. 1 to Common Stock Purchase Agreerdated 8-K 000-32501 02/29/2008
February 29, 2008, by and between Green Hospitahi8ulnc. and Exhibit 10.51.1
Cytori Therapeutics, In

10.52# Agreement for Acceleration and/or Severance, daaediary 31, 2008, 10-K 000-32501 03/14/2008
by and between Christopher J. Calh« and Cytori Therapeutics, In Exhibit 10.52

10.53# Agreement for Acceleration and/or Severance, daaedary 31, 2008, 10-K 000-32501 03/14/2008
by and between Marc H. Hedri and Cytori Therapeutics, In Exhibit 10.53

10.54# Agreement for Acceleration and/or Severance, daaediary 31, 2008, 10-K 000-32501 03/14/2008
by and between Mark E. Sa and Cytori Therapeutics, In Exhibit 10.54

10.55 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated AugustOB, 2y and 8-K 000-32501 08/08/2008
between the Company and Olympus Corpora Exhibit 10.32

10.55.1 Amendment No. 1 to Common Stock Purchase Agreerdated Augus 8-K 000-32501 08/14/2008
8, 2008, by and between the Company and Olympupdtation. Exhibit 10.32.1

10.56 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated August 7,,2808nd among th 8-K 000-32501 08/08/2008
Company and the Purchasers identified on the sigagiages theret Exhibit 10.33




10.59 Loan and Security Agreement, dated October 14, 20p&nd among tf 10-K 000-32501 03/06/2009
Company, General Electric Capital Corporation, #redother lenders Exhibit 10.59
signatory theretc

10.60 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor efé&al Electric 10-K 000-32501 03/06/2009
Capital Corporation or any subsequent holder tHeposuant to the Exhibit 10.60
Loan and Security Agreement dated October 14, 2

10.63 Form of Subscription Agreement by and between Cytoerapeutics, 8-K 000-32501 03/10/2009
Inc. and the Purchaser (as defined therein), degexf March 9, 200¢ Exhibit 10.63
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10.64 Placement Agency Agreement, dated March 9, 2009dma Cytori 8-K 000-32501 03/10/2009
Therapeutics, Inc. and Piper Jaffray & ( Exhibit 10.64

10.65 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 7, 2608nd among Cyto 8-K 000-32501 05/08/2009
Therapeutics, Inc. and the Purchasers identifiethersignature pages Exhibit 10.63
thereto.

10.68 Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement by anddest\Zytori 8-K 001-34375 06/22/2009
Therapeutics, Inc. and Seaside 88, LP, dated &isnaf 19, 200¢ Exhibit 10.68

10.69 Lease Agreement entered into on April 2, 2010, ketwHCP Callan R| 10-Q 001-34375 05/06/2010
LLC. and Cytori Therapeutics, Inc Exhibit 10.69

10.70 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreematgddune 11, 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
2010, by and among the Company, General Electqgt&laCorporation Exhibit 10.70
and the other lenders signatory ther:

10.71 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor efé&al Electric 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
Capital Corporation or any subsequent holder tHeposuant to the Exhibit 10.71
Loan and Security Agreement dated June 11, 2

10.72 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor xib@l Financial 8-K 001-34375 06/17/2010
Corporation or any subsequent holder thereof, @untsto the Loan and Exhibit 10.72
Security Agreement dated June 11, 2(

10.76 Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated DecemBéi.6, by and 8-K 001-34375 12/09/2010
among Cytori Therapeutics, Inc. and Astellas Phdrmz Exhibit 10.76

10.77 Form of Notice and Restricted Stock Award Agreenfengrants of 8-K 001-34375 03/04/2011
performance-based restricted stock awards undet(bé Equity Exhibit 10.1
Incentive Plan

10.78 Form of Common Stock Purchase Agreement by anddestvZytori 8-K 001-34375 07/12/2011
Therapeutics, Inc. and Seaside 88, LP, dated Jylg011 Exhibit 10.78

10.79 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan andriBe 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2011
Agreement, dated June 23, 2011, by and among thg&uwy, Oxford Exhibit 10.79
Finance LLC, the other lenders party hereto andeGdtlectric Capita
Corporation

10.80 Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated LrmhBecurity 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
Agreement, dated September 9, 2011, by and amengdmpany, Exhibit 10.80
General Electric Capital Corporation, and the otbeders signatory
thereto.

10.81 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor efé&al Electric 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
Capital Corporation or any subsequent holder tHeposuant to the Exhibit 10.81
Loan and Security Agreement dated September 9,..

10.82 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favorileé@ Valley Bank 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
or any subsequent holder thereof, pursuant to tta land Security Exhibit 10.82
Agreement dated September 9, 2C

10.83 Promissory Note issued by the Company in favor xib@l Financial 8-K 001-34375 09/15/2011
Corporation or any subsequent holder thereof, @untsto the Loan and Exhibit 10.83
Security Agreement dated September 9, 2

10.88 First Amendment to Lease Agreement entered intavember 4, 201 10-Q 001-34375 11/08/2011
between HCP Callan Rd, LLC. and the Comp: Exhibit 10.88

10.89# 2011 Employee Stock Purchase Plan DEF 14A 001-34375 05/02/2011

Appendix A




10.90+ Contract HHS0O100201200008C dated September 27, p9lzhd 8-K 001-34375 10/03/2012
between the Company and the U.S. Department ofttlaatl Human Exhibit 10.90
Services Biomedical Advanced Research and Developfgthority
(portions of the exhibit have been omitted pursuarst request for
confidential treatment

10.91 Joint Venture Termination Agreement dated May 8 3By and betweg 10-Q 001-34375 05/10/2013
the Company and Olympus Corporati Exhibit 10.91

10.92 Loan and Security Agreement, dated June 28, 2018nt among the 10-Q 001-34375 08/09/2013

Exhibit 10.92

Company, Oxford Finance LLC and Silicon Valley Ba
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10.93+ Puregraft Sale-License-Supply Agreement, dated 32013, by and 10-Q/A 001-34375 11/12/2013
among the Company and Bimini Technologies L Exhibit 10.93

10.94+ Amended and Restated License and Supply Agreena¢ed danuary 3 8-K 001-34375 02/04/2014
2014, by and between the Company and Lorem VasBtjai_td.

14.1 Code of Ethics. 10-K 000-32501 03/30/2004

Exhibit 14.1

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firn] X

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursudo Securities X
Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursug@dtion 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursudo Securities X
Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursugdtion 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13¢urities Exchange X
Act Rule 13a-14(b), as adopted pursuant to Se&@dhof the Sarbaneq
Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS [XBRL Instance Documer X

101.SCH |XBRL Schema Documet X

101.CAL |XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume X

101.DEF |XBRL Definition Linkbase Documer X

101.LAB |XBRL Label Linkbase Documel X

* XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume X

+ Confidential treatment has been granted with respecertain portions of this exhib

# Indicates management contract or compensatory ptaarrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regitthas duly caused this registration
statement to be signed on its behalf by the ungieesi, thereunto duly authorized.

CYTORI THERAPEUTICS, INC

By: /s/ Christopher J. Calhot

Christopher J. Calhot
Chief Executive Office
March 14, 201«

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this annual report has been digredow by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ David M. Rickey Chairman of the Board of Directors March 14, 2014
David M. Rickey

Chief Executive Officer, Vice-Chairman, Directori¢iipal March 14, 2014
/sl Christopher J. Calhot Executive Officer
Christopher J. Calhou
/sl Marc H. Hedrick, ML President, Directol March 14, 2014
Marc H. Hedrick, MD
/s/ Mark E. Saa Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officg March 14, 2014
Mark E. Saac
/sl John W. Townsen Chief Accounting Officer March 14, 2014
John W. Townsen
/sl Lloyd H. Dear Director March 14, 2014
Lloyd H. Dean
/s/ Paul W. Hawra Director March 14, 2014
Paul W. Hawrar
/sl E. Carmack Holmes, M Director March 14, 2014
E. Carmack Holmes, Ml
/s/ Richard J. Hawkin Director March 14, 2014
Richard J. Hawkin
/s| Tommy G. Thompsao Director March 14, 2014
Tommy G. Thompso
/sl Gary A. Lyons Director March 14, 2014

Gary A. Lyons
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EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Cytori Therapeutics, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrégstration statements (Nos. 333-181764, 333-828i@d 333-122691) on Form S-8 and
(Nos. 333-134129, 333-140875, 333-153233, 333-15,/823-159912, 333-169822, 333-172787, and-393409) on Form S-3 of Cytori

Therapeutics, Inc. of our reports dated March D442 with respect to the consolidated balance shdefytori Therapeutics, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 201 2thencklated consolidated statements of operatindsamprehensive loss, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years inttinee year period ended December 31, 2013, tramguanying schedule of valuation and
qualifying accounts, and the effectiveness of maecontrol over financial reporting of Cytori Tlageutics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2013, and to the reference to ourifirtem 6, Selected Financial Data, which repartd reference to our firm appears in the
December 31, 2013, annual report on Form 10-K @by herapeutics, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Diego, Californi
March 14, 201




EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Christopher J. Calhoun, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary te
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigait occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 201
/sl Christopher J. Calhot

Christopher J. Calhou
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Mark E. Saad, certify that:

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Cytori Therapeutics, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary te
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such evaluation;
and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigait occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 201
/sl Mark E. Saa

Mark E. Saad
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350/SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(b), AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES — OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104Cgtori Therapeutics, Inc. for the year ended Delser 31, 2013 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the datehe&taristopher J. Calhoun, as Chief Executive &gifiof Cytori Therapeutics, Inc., and
Mark E. Saad, as Chief Financial Officer of Cyfbhierapeutics, Inc., each hereby certifies, respelgti that:

1. The Form 10-K report of Cytori Therapeutics,.ltiat this certification accompanies fully compligith the requirements of section 13(a)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

2. The information contained in the Form 10-K repdrCytori Therapeutics, Inc. that this certificat accompanies fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and ltesaf operations of Cytori Therapeutics, |

By: /s/ Christopher J. Calhot
Dated: March 14, 201 Christopher J. Calhot
Chief Executive Office

By: /s/ Mark E. Saa
Dated: March 14, 201 Mark E. Saac
Chief Financial Officel




